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To the shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), we are
pleased to present the annual results and the annual report
for the year ended 31st December 2020 of China Star
Entertainment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively as the “Group”) to the shareholders.

The year of 2020 represented a year rife with challenges to
the whole world, Hong Kong and Macao areas where our
operations are located and, to the Group itself. While the
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19") was wreaking havoc,
governments around the world had no way but to adopt
unprecedentedly strictest measures of social distancing and
lockdown management to contain and control the epidemic
situation. As a result, plenty of real economic activities and
tourism became basically impossible to carry out, construction
work came to a halt, industries suffered from depression
and so did the livelihood of people. What was worse, the
international political and economic situations were in turmoil,
coupled with the rise of protectionism and the frequent
emergence of ideological conflicts. Among them, the Sino-Us
trade war have inflicted the largest damage to areas having
export-oriented economy like Hong Kong and Macao, and the
war is yet over.

In light of the above macro environment, various economic
indicators of Macao understandably posted downturn
figures as the gaming revenue, the GDP and the number of
tourists visiting Macao recorded marked respective drops
of approximately 79.3%, 59.8% and 85.6% yearly. With
respect to our three core operations, the film related business
operations were halted or shelved; the property development
and investment operations had its Project Tiffany House
postponed to the second half year of 2021 for sale; likewise,
the restaurant operations experienced a significant drop in
business volume and recorded segment loss owing to the
dining arrangement implemented by Hong Kong Government
to control the spread of the pandemic.
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Amid the toughest times of the anti-epidemic work, we are
pleased to see that, with the kind guidance of the Central
People’s Government, full support from the provinces and
autonomous regions of mainland China, and the joint efforts
of all Macao residents, Macao had achieved relatively good
results in maintaining a record of zero deaths, zero community
and hospital transmissions,
high cure rates. We are also delighted to see the Macao SAR
Government make efforts to unite all circles in stabilizing
economy, reinstating people’s livelihood, giving full play of the
proactively
participating in the cooperation between Guangdong and

low rates of severe cases and

advantages of the “One Country, Two Systems”,

Macao (including the development of Hengqgin New District),
integrating into the overall development configuration of
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, and
in aligning with the opening year of the State’s Fourteenth
“Five-Year Planning”, making new progress towards
Macao’s adequate economic diversification. These involve
driving industrial reposition, transformation and innovation,
encouraging enterprises to tap space resources in Henggin
to forge Macao brands, expediting the development of a
modern financial industry, constructing of a bond market,
developing of wealth management businesses, promoting
industrialization of Chinese medicine with upgraded products
and services targeting international markets, cultivating
cross-border e-commerce industries step by step, propelling
industrialization of culture and sports and fortifying support
to small and medium enterprises (SMEs). Also,
SAR Government has endeavored to establish a cooperation
mechanism for technology and innovation and attracted

the Macao

scientific research institutions and technological enterprises to
set their bases in Macao and so on.
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Entering the year of 2021, the Group opts for looking ahead
positively with hopes. Along with the success in the research
and development of new vaccines in some countries and
the widespread vaccination of the same, the anti-epidemic
work claims one silver lining. It is expected that various
anti-epidemic measures could be relaxed gradually in this
year, and that the economy of Hong Kong and Macao could
be improved following the recovery of the tourism and the
gaming industries. Once the economy is stabilized, people
will be more active in purchasing houses, thus revitalizing the
property market and Tiffany House is sure to benefit from such
recovery. Looking forward, the Group will strive to enhance its
profitability, judge the hour and size up the situation and make
good use of government policies and national development
plans in order to maximize its investment return and position
to appropriate business opportunities in pursuing healthy and
stable growth.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
extend my immense appreciation to the shareholders for their
relentless support, our staff force for their unremitting spirit,
and our business partners for their cooperation and support.

Heung Wah Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30th March 2021
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31st December 2020, the Group recorded
revenue of HK$5,026,000,
from HK$7,053,000 for the year ended 31st December 2019.

representing a decrease of 29%

Loss for the year amounted to HK$110,443,000, representing a
decrease of 67% from HK$335,731,000 for the year ended 31st
December 2019. The decrease in loss is mainly attributable to
the substantial decrease in: (i) impairment loss recognised in
respect of film rights and film in progress of HK$26,384,000
for the year ended 31st December 2020 from HK$135,521,000
for the year ended 31st December 2019; and (ii) recognition
of loss arising on change in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss of HK$97,204,000 for the year
ended 31st December 2020 from HK$183,582,000 for the year
ended 31st December 2019.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31st December 2020 amounted to HK$110,430,000,
representing a decrease of 67% from HK$335,226,000 in the
previous year.

DIVIDEND
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2020 (2019: nil).

During the year ended 31st December 2019, the board of
directors recommended a special interim dividend of HK12.5
cents per share in aggregate amount of HK$339,008,000 to
the shareholders and bonus convertible bondholders of the
Company. The special interim dividend was approved by the
shareholders of the Company in a special general meeting
on 27th September 2019 and was paid out of the contributed
surplus of the Company on 18th October 2019.

7
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has three reportable segments — (1) film related
business operations; (2) property development and investment
operations; and (3) restaurant operations.

Of the total revenue for the year, HK$3,647,000 or 73% was
generated from film related business operations, nil or 0%
was generated from property development and investment
operations and HK$1,379,000 or 27% was generated from
restaurant operations.

Film Related Business Operations

Film related business operations included investment,
production, distribution and licensing of films and television
drama series and provision of other film related services
including artist management services.

In year 2020, revenue from film related business operations
amounted to HK$3,647,000 (2019: HK$6,466,000) and
its segment loss amounted to HK$28,900,000 (2019:
HK$169,199,000). The Group did not distribute any new film
during the year. The revenue for both years were mainly
come from the film “Chasing Dream” which was released
by the Group in last year. After the outbreak of Coronavirus
Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) in early 2020, all film productions
have temporary suspended or slowed down. A film which
started shooting in mid-year 2019 has suspended shooting
and further production after due consideration by the Group
and the production house in year 2020. The segment loss
mainly included impairment loss recognised in respect of
films in progress of HK$26,384,000 (2019: HK$10,275,000)
related to this film. The segment loss in last year mainly
included impairment loss recognised in respect of film rights
of HK$125,246,000 from the film released in last year. The
Group has been engaging in the film business for more than
20 years. Film production normally involves three stages
including pre-production, production or shooting and post-
production. From the pre-production stage to theatrical release
of Chinese film in Hong Kong, it normally takes more than one
year and sometimes several years to complete. The majority
of revenue in film will record within the following two years
after the film is released. As such, it is the characteristic of
film production and distribution that revenue is not recognised
evenly with time. The Group also has investment in production
of film which is co-financing with other production companies
and will share revenue from the invested film according to the
investment percentage in the relevant agreement. The Group
takes a passive role in this kind of co-production arrangement
but needs to contribute less human resource.
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For television drama series, the Group has prepared a
few story board of television drama series on hand but
no production of television drama series will start until the
Group has more confident on the development of the market
condition.

No film or television drama series are now in shooting stage.
The Group will pay close attention to the development of the
COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on our film related
business operations.

Property Development and Investment Operations

Property development and investment operations mainly
included investing and development of properties located
in Macau. Currently, the Group has two projects under
development in Macau, namely (i) Lot C7 do Plano de
Urbanizacao da Baia de Praia Grande, located in the Nam Van
Lakes Zone, at Avenida Doutor Stanley Ho, registered with the
Macau Land and Real Estate Registry under no. 23070 (the
“Property C7”); and (ii) the combined site at Lot 6C, Lot 6D
and Lot 6E at Zona de Aterros do Porto Exterior, Macau which
is named as “Tiffany House” (the “Project Tiffany House”).

No revenue was recorded from property development
and investment operations for the years ended 31st
December 2020 and 2019 and its segment loss amounted to
HK$24,153,000 (2019: HK$14,071,000). The segment loss
mainly represented impairment loss recognised in respect
of property, plant and equipment of HK$8,356,000 (2019:
HK$6,814,000) and administrative expenses incurred during
the year.

Under the Urbanistic Conditions Plan, the Property C7 which
is a lot of land with the site area of 4,669 square meters, will
be developed for residential and parking purpose, with the
maximum allowed height of the building of 34.5 meters above
sea level and maximum utilization rate of 5.58 (parking not
included). An architect has been engaged and is still in the
process to compile a development plan of the Property C7 in
accordance with the parameters for submission to the Land,
Public Works and Transport Bureau of Macau (“DSSOPT”) for
approval. The very preliminary development plan is to develop
a building under strata title with gross floor areas (in square
meters) for residential of 26,047 and parking of 5,200. The
development of the Property C7 is expected to start after the
development of the Project Tiffany House.

)
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Project Tiffany House is located adjacent to Macao Polytechnic
Institute and next to Golden Lotus Square, and is a couple
of blocks away from Macau Fisherman’'s Wharf and Sands
Casino. Project Tiffany House has a gross floor area of (a)
residential — 31,192 square meters, including approximately
1,900 square meters for clubhouse, (b) commercial — 3,716
square meters and (c) parking — 11,250 square meters and will
provide 230 units in two towers, with units ranging from studio
flats to four-bedroom apartments as well as special units. A
prestigious clubhouse will provide a wide range of facilities
and retail space at the podium will become a major shopping
arcade in the neighbourhood. Construction works started
in June 2017 and has obtained its occupational permit in
December 2019. Project Tiffany House is now under final stage
of internal renovation and is ready to sale anytime. Due to the
current market condition and the Group wants to well prepared
for the sale, Project Tiffany House is expected to launch for
sale in the second half of year 2021.

The Group acquired the property leasehold rights (and the
inherent transfer to China Star Creative Development Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company (“CSCDL") of the legal titles)
of Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E at Zona de Aterros do
Porto Exterior (ZAPE) (the “Sites”) from Sociedade de Turismo
e Diversoes de Macau, S. A.. Lot 6B is in trapezium shape
with a site area of 1,420 square meters next to Million Dragon
Hotel (the hotel was owned by the Group at that time) and
Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E are in rectangular shape with each
site area of 1,292 square meters next to Lot 6B and adjacent
of each other with three six-meter width roads dividing them
separately. In order to enhance the commercial value of the
Sites, the Group had decided to build a luxury residential and
commercial complex of two towers with spacious apartment
units in Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E, i.e. the Project Tiffany
House and Lot 6B would be developed into recreational area
in front of the Project Tiffany House, which was expected
to have higher selling prices than the existing development
plan of the individual Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E.
This development plan also responded strongly to the local
planning authorities requirements for connectivity with the
existing city and thus considerable portions of the area of the
Sites have been dedicated to public use. Finally, the DSSOPT
has approved the combination of development of the Project
Tiffany House in July 2016.
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Immediately after the acquisition of the property leasehold
rights of the Sites, the Group held meetings with various
departments of Macau Government to seek their views on
the proposed development of the Sites as the combined
development of Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E. In May
2012, the Group submitted the architectural design and
drawings of the Project Tiffany House to the DSSOPT for
approval. Following the submission, meetings have been held
with various departments of Macau Government for following
up the proposed development plan. Given that the location of
the Sites is adjacent to Macao Polytechnic Institute and several
tourist spots, Forum de Macao, Grand Prix Museum, Wine
Museum and Golden Lotus Square, and is a couple of blocks
away from Macau Fisherman’s Wharf and Sands Casino, it is
believed that the Macau Government required longer time to
study the impacts of the proposed development of the Project
Tiffany House on traffic, environment and cultural heritage
in the surrounding area, before the grant of an approval.
Owing to the delay by the Macau Government in granting the
proposed development of the combined development of Lot
6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E, the land concession of Lot 6B
has expired on 25th December 2014. DSSOPT has started
the administration work to reclaim it on dispatch 50/2016
published in the Official Gazette no. 47, Il, of 23rd November
2016 according to Macau new Land Law effective in March
2014 for the reason that Lot 6B is undeveloped land on the
expiry of the land concession on 25th December 2014. The
Group has filed an appeal to the President of the Macau
Second Instance Court on 30th December 2016. On 11th
June 2018, the Company received a letter dated 8th June
2018 from the Tribunal de Ultima Instancia (43)AFT) of the
Macau Government, in which the Tribunal de Ultima Instancia
(4238 5%Bt) rejected the application of the final appeal (the
“Decision”). Accordingly, Lot 6B will be reclaimed by the
Macau Government.
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As stated above, Lot 6B is planned to develop into a
recreational area besides the Project Tiffany House and the
Group treated the development of the Sites (i.e. the Project
Tiffany House and Lot 6B collectively) as one development
project in its financial position since the acquisition of the
property leasehold rights of the Sites. In addition, in order
to increase the chance of combined the development of Lot
6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E, one of the conditions for DSSOPT to
approve the combination of development of the Project Tiffany
House was to keep Lot 6B as an undeveloped land. Although
Lot 6B will be reclaimed by the Macau Government, based
on the property valuation reports issued at each period end,
the market value of the Project Tiffany House with no value
added factor of the recreational area of Lot 6B is higher than
the book value of the cost of the Project Tiffany House and Lot
6B. Given that the valuation of the Sites is higher than its book
value, no impairment loss is recognised in respect of the stock
of properties as a result of the Decision.

According to the legal opinion obtained by the Company, the
Group has legal ground to seek civil claims against the Macau
Government for compensation of damages sustained by the
Group. In this situation, as Lot 6B is intended to develop as
recreational area and the Macau Government has approved
the development plan of the Project Tiffany House, the Group
considers that it is difficult to sustain its damages incurred. As
such, the Group will closely monitor the development of the
Project Tiffany House and ensure to maximise its investment
return from this project.
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The Group always looks for suitable investment opportunities
to strengthen its existing segment in property development
and investment. On 24th December 2020, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to purchase a property which comprises a
luxury residential apartment with two car parking spaces,
situated in a prime luxury residential location in Taipei,
Taiwan (the “Property”) for consideration of approximately
HK$161,401,000. The Property will be held as an investment
property for long term capital growth purposes and is
expected to generate stable rental income. On 29th January
2021, the Group completed the acquisition of the Property.

Restaurant Operations

In the third quarter of last year, the Group opened a new café
in Hong Kong at the Group’s owned property, serving various
high-ended international cuisine in the brand name of “Obba

Bar”.

In year 2020, revenue from restaurant operations amounted
to HK$1,379,000 (2019: HK$587,000) and its segment loss
amounted to HK$3,116,000 (2019: HK$4,083,000).

Obba Bar aims to deliver high quality food, luxury ambience
and thoughtful service at affordable prices. Our customers are
impressed by our services and food provided.

Our sales have experienced a significant drop following
Hong Kong Government measures on dining arrangement
implemented to control the outbreak of COVID-19.
Nevertheless, we react quickly and effectively as possible to
handle those social distancing regimes and implement control
to protect our customers. Besides, we have placed a stronger
focus on takeaway orders than we normally do in light of the
situation, and encouraged customers to enjoy meal at home by
offering discounts on takeaway orders.
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Geographical Segments

For the geographical segments, revenue of HK$1,450,000
or 29% (2019: HK$752,000 or 11%) was sourced from Hong
Kong, HK$3,537,000 or 70% (2019: HK$5,861,000 or 83%) was
sourced from China and HK$39,000 or 1% (2019: HK$440,000
or 6%) was sourced from other territories.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31st December 2020, administrative
expenses amounted to HK$71,476,000 (2019: HK$78,546,000),
representing a decrease of 9%. The decrease mainly
represented decrease in legal and professional fees incurred
this year and minor decrease in other administrative expenses

in the year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31st December 2020, the Group had total assets of
HK$5,343,571,000 (2019: HK$5,398,206,000) and a net current
assets of HK$4,147,002,000 (2019: HK$3,156,891,000),
representing a current ratio of 7.8 (2019: 2.9). The Group had
cash and bank balances and time deposits of HK$503,726,000
(2019: HK$498,020,000).

As at 31st December 2020, the Group had total borrowing
of HK$1,299,565,000 (2019: HK$1,042,644,000) which
comprised a secured bank term loan (the “Term Loan”) of
HK$1,293,880,000 (2019: HK$1,030,150,000) and lease
liabilities of HK$5,685,000 (2019: HK$12,494,000). The
purpose of the Term Loan is to finance the construction costs
and any other soft costs in relation to the Project Tiffany
House. The Term Loan is in multiple drawdown and secured
by the leasehold land and properties to be erected on the land
of the Project Tiffany House with carrying amount as stock
of properties of HK$1,879,503,000, interest bearing at Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) for three or six month
period selected by the borrower plus margin of 3.35% per
annum for each interest period and repayable by the earlier
of (i) 36 months from date of the agreement of the Term Loan
or (ii) 9 months after date of issuing of the occupation permit
of the Project Tiffany House, i.e. 13th September 2020. During
the year ended 31st December 2020, the maturity date of the
Term Loan is extended to 15th September 2022.
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As at 31st December 2020, the Group had banking
facilities amounting to HK$1,600,000,000 which were
utilised to the extent of HK$1,293,880,000. The Group’s
gearing was acceptable during the year with total
debts of HK$1,299,565,000 against owners’ equity of
HK$3,435,914,000. This represents a gearing ratio, calculated
in the basis of the Group’s total borrowings over owners’ equity
of 38% (2019: 28%).

As at 31st December 2020, the net proceeds from the
allotment and issue of 1,807,406,986 rights shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.25 per share on 6th August 2018
of approximately HK$448,850,000, of which HK$98,850,000
was used to fund the film and television drama series related
business operations as intended during the years ended 31st
December 2018 and 2019; and HK$350,000,000 was originally
intended to be applied to finance the business operations of
the property development and investment. On 21st December
2020, the Company announced that the Board has resolved to
allocate approximately HK$162,400,000 out of the unutilised
proceeds of HK$350,000,000 as consideration for the potential
acquisition of the Property. On 24th December 2020, deposit of
approximately HK$33,430,000 was paid and utilised. As at 31st
December 2020, proceeds of approximately HK$316,570,000
was unused, of which approximately HK$127,971,000 will be
utilised to settle the remaining consideration of the Property.

As at the date of approving these annual results and as at 31st
December 2020, the fair value of the Group’s equity securities
listed in Hong Kong held at 31st December 2020 (excluding
suspended trading security as at 31st December 2020, the
“Suspended Security”) was approximately HK$141,824,000
and HK$142,908,000 respectively. During the year ended
31st December 2020, the Group did not acquired any equity
securities listed in Hong Kong and disposed proceeds of
HK$7,620,000 equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The
loss arising on change in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss of HK$72,320,000 was resulted
from change in fair values of equity securities listed in Hong
Kong between the year ended 31st December 2019 and
31st December 2020. As at 31st December 2020, no single
equity security’s fair value held by the Group accounted for
5% or more of the total assets of the Group. The Suspended
Security held by the Group which valued by an independent
qualified professional valuer at valuation of HK$2,642,000
as at 31st December 2020 resumed trading after the year
end date. The fair value of the Suspended Security as at the
date of approving these annual results was approximately
HK$15,400,000.
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During the year, the Company repurchased a total of
80,390,000 ordinary shares of the Company at an aggregate
price of approximately HK$140,559,000 on the Stock
Exchange. 77,930,000 ordinary shares and 2,460,000 ordinary
shares were cancelled on 11th June 2020 and 23rd July
2020 respectively. The total number of issued shares of the
Company after its cancellation as at 31st December 2020 was
reduced to 2,630,610,479 (2019: 2,711,000,479) and its issued

share capital was HK$26,306,104 (2019: HK$27,110,004).

Loan receivables in carrying amount of HK$199,127,000 in
the previous year had fully repaid during the year ended 31st
December 2020.

During the year ended 31st December 2020, no share options
of the Company were granted, exercised, lapsed, expired or

cancelled.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st December 2020, stock of properties in amount of
HK$1,879,503,000 and quota capital of China Star Creative
Development Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company which is engaged in the business of property
development and investment had been pledged for banking
facilities of HK$1,600,000,000 granted to the Group, and
time deposits in amount of HK$249,000 had been pledged
as guarantee to Macau government for deposits in the
development of stock of properties in Macau.

EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING

The majority of the Group’s transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, Macau Pataca, United
States Dollar, New Taiwan Dollar, and Renminbi. The exposure
to fluctuation in exchange rates in Renminbi mainly arises
from receipts and expenditure incurred in film investment,
production and distribution. The Group has closely monitors its
exposure to this fluctuation and consider appropriate hedging
activities if necessary. The exposure to fluctuation in other
currencies is considered to be minimal and no hedge activity
is considered necessary.
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COMMITMENTS

As at 31st December 2020, outstanding commitments
by the Group amounted to HK$699,738,000, of which
HK$346,069,000 as development expenditure for stock of
properties in Macau, HK$225,691,000 for film rights, films in
progress and film deposits, HK$127,971,000 for acquisition
of investment property and HK$7,000 as expenditure for
equipment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st December 2020, the Group had no material
contingent liability.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

There were no significant investments, material acquisitions or
disposals during the year.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31st December 2020,
staff (2019: 64 staff) with employee benefit expenses of
HK$43,455,000 (after deducting of HK$2,670,000 related to
Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong
government) (2019: HK$43,886,000).
that the quality of its employees is the single most important

the Group employed 69

The directors believe

factor in sustaining the Group’s reputation and improving
its profitability. The staff are remunerated based on their
work performance, professional experience and prevailing
industry practices. Apart from basic salaries, pension fund,
housing allowances, meal allowances, medical schemes and
discretionary bonuses, share options are awarded to certain
staff according to the assessment of individual performance.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
On 29th January 2021,
of the Property at the consideration of approximately
HK$161,401,000. The Property will be held as an investment
property for long term capital growth purposes and is

the Group completed the acquisition

expected to generate stable rental income.

There is no other significant event took place subsequent to
end of the reporting date.

17
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PROSPECT

The outlook for 2021 shows signs of recovery due to the wide
distribution of vaccine and reduction of lockdown globally. The
Group remains optimistic towards economic recovery globally,
especially in greater China region.

For the property development and investment operations, the
Group has postponed sale of the Project Tiffany House to the
second half year 2021. Property market generally continues
to be recovering despite uncertainties persisting in the short
run. The Group is optimistic towards the market prospect for
this year, as there have been signs of an economic recovery
following the gradual lifting of travel restrictions and the wide
distribution of the COVID-19 vaccines. Once the COVID-19
pandemic is under control globally in 2021, and the situation is
considered stable in Macau and Mainland China, the economy
will regain momentum.

For film related business operation, the Group will continue its
furtherance and development of production and distribution
operations in its own established film and television drama
series upon the COVID-19 pandemic has under control. In
the beginning of year 2021, the Group has undergone initial
negotiation with various well-known film/television drama
series production companies to prepare for new productions
if their plots are attractive. Of course, the Group will exercise
extra cautious in this moment and will not start these new
productions until the outlook on film industry is clear. Given
our experience in film and television drama series production
and distribution network in the film and television drama series
industry, the Group is confident in the production of film and
television drama series operations and can maximizing our

value and return.

The restaurant operations encountered the crisis of social
unrest in year 2019 and COVID-19 in year 2020 since its
opening. The Group will focus on its aim to deliver high quality
food and thoughtful service at affordable prices and hope that
performance of the restaurant operations can rebound once
the economy in Hong Kong recovered from its downturn.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to strive to achieve
healthy and stable growth by enhancing profitability, maximize
its investment return and position to appropriate business
opportunity.
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DIRECTORS

Mr. HEUNG Wah Keung, aged 72, is the Chairman and
executive director of the Company. He is the husband of Ms.
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, Vice Chairman and executive director
of the Company. He has over 40 years of experience in the
entertainment and multimedia industries. He was the founder
of Win’s Entertainment Limited (“Win's”) and One Hundred
Years of Film Company Limited (“One Hundred Years”), which
produces films recommended by audiences and distributors
around the world. He is also the honorable chairman and
director of Hong Kong Kowloon and New Territories Motion
Picture Industry Association Limited. Mr. Heung was appointed
as an executive director of the Company in 1996.

Ms. CHEN Ming Yin, Tiffany, aged 64, is the Vice Chairman
and executive director of the Company and the wife of Mr.
Heung Wah Keung. She has over 35 years of experience in the
entertainment and multimedia industries and over 10 years of
experience in property development. Ms. Chen has produced
a number of blockbuster films for Win’'s and One Hundred
Years. In 2003, she was selected as one of 2003 Women
in Entertainment — International Power by The Hollywood
Reporter. For the years from 2006 to 2010, Ms. Chen was
involved in the planning, monitoring and management of the
renovation and operation of “Beijing Jianguo Apartment” into
serviced apartment by Beijing Shama Real Estate Development
Co. Ltd. Ms. Chen was responsible for all planning and
monitoring of the purchase of Macau Kingsway Hotel in 2007
and then renovated and designed it into two years later’s Hotel
Lan Kwai Fong Macau that launched in August 2009. Hotel Lan
Kwai Fong Macau has been awarded with several international
accolades, which included the “5th China Hotel Starlight
Awards 2009 - Best Designed Boutique Hotel of China”
and the “2012 TripAdvisor Travelers’ Choice 2012 Winner —
Trendiest”. In respect of promoting the notion of environmental
protection, Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau has won the “AHF Asia
Awards 2010 - Leading Green Hotel of Asia” and the “Macao
Green Hotel Award 2010 — Bronze Award”. The result has
been obvious and encouraging. Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau
was disposed in 2018 and brought considerable profit to the
Group. Other than the duties and responsibilities of the Vice
Chairman, Ms. Chen is also responsible for implementation,
monitoring and management of the approval, planning and
development of the property development projects of the
Group. Ms. Chen was appointed as an executive director of
the Company in 1996.
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Ms. LI Yuk Sheung, aged 53, is an executive director of
the Company. She has more than 20 years experience of
management in the entertainment and multimedia industries.
She is responsible for the overall operations, and is familiar
with the Group’s system. Ms. Li was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in 2001.

Mr. HUNG Cho Sing, aged 80, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. He has over 30 years
of experience in the film distribution industry and founded
Delon International Film Corporation in 1970. He has been the
chairman of Hong Kong Kowloon and New Territories Motion
Picture Industry Association Limited since 1991 and was the
chairman of Hong Kong Film Awards Association from 1992 to
1995. He was also appointed as a consultant of the China Film
Association. Mr. Hung is also a member of the 1,200-member-
HKSAR Election Committee and a vice-chairman of the Cultural
Profession Committee of the Guangdong, Hong Kong and
Macau Cooperation Promotion Council (EERE E#HRA VEE
et EEXZEEEE(TZE), and was elected the vice-
chairman of Film Association of Guangdong, China for the
period from November 2016 to November 2021. Mr. Hung
was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the HKSAR
Government in 2005 in recognition of his contribution to the
Hong Kong film industry.

Mr. Hung was an independent non-executive director of
Freeman FinTech Corporation Limited (stock code: 279)
during the period from 22nd January 2013 to 25th January
2017. He was an executive director of Universe Entertainment
and Culture Group Limited (stock code: 1046) during the
period from 16th October 2013 to 1st February 2019 and re-
designated as a non-executive director during the period
from 1st February 2019 to 31st July 2019. He was also
appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Unity Investments Holdings Limited (stock code: 913), Miko
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1247) and Oshidori
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 622) since 10th
October 2014, 14th April 2016 and 6th April 2017 respectively.
All these companies are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) . Mr.
Hung was also appointed as an Independent non-executive
director of Koala Financial Group Limited (stock code: 8226),
and an executive director of Eje (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8101) since 15th May 2015 and 23rd May 2016
respectively. Mr. Hung was also the chairman of the board
of Eje (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited during the period from
23rd May 2016 to 20th November 2017. Both companies are
listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung
was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company in
1996.
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Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 69, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. He is the managing partner
of Paul W. C. Ho & Company, Certified Public Accountants
(Practising), and is an associate of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, United Kingdom and
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Ho is currently an independent non-executive
director of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (stock code:
1047), a company is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Ho was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company in 1996.

Mr. TANG Chak Lam, Gilbert, aged 70, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company. He is a practising
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1987 and is a senior partner
of Messrs. Gilbert Tang & Co.. He was a director of Pok Oi
Hospital in 1990 and a member of the Kowloon West Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Bank Foundation District Community
Programme between July 1991 and November 1995. Mr.
Tang holds a Bachelor of Law Degree from the University of
Buckingham in the United Kingdom, and a Diploma in Chinese
Law from the University of East Asia in Macau. Mr. Tang was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Nexion
Technologies Limited (stock code: 8420), a company listed
on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange, on 2nd November
2020. Mr. Tang was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2011.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. TSANG Anna, aged 56, is the Legal Administration
Manager of the Group. She has over 15 years of experience
in the TV & Film Industry. Ms. Tsang has extensive
experience across production, distribution and library content
management of the Film & TV business and expertise in legal
related aspects in Film & TV production, distribution and
copyright enforcement. Ms. Tsang oversees the Department
of Legal Administration, Film & TV Distribution and Content
Library Management of the Group. Ms. Tsang also involves
negotiation on Film & TV production and distribution projects
and took on responsibility of Film & TV production, distribution
and copyright legal-related aspect for the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. Tsang worked at the Legal Department
of Hong Kong Hospital Authority and TVBI International
Limited. Ms. Tsang has completed Company Secretary
studies and had been studied LLB of University of London
and a graduate of Diploma for Legal Studies. Ms. Tsang has
achieved the qualification to use the benchmark as Legal
Executive of The Law Society of Hong Kong. Ms. Tsang joined
the Group in 1999.
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Mr. WAI Kai Fai, aged 58, is the Film and TV Consultant of the
Group. Mr. Wai is a renowned Film and TV Producer, Director
and Scriptwriter, he has produced, directed and script-written
films and TV drama for more than 20 years. Mr. Wai's Feature
Films Production has been invited by Worldwide Film Festival
for screening and nomination for awards, many of Mr. Wai’'s
Feature Film earned awards in Hong Kong and Worldwide.
Mr. Wai's TV series “Look Back with Anger” and “The Greed of
Man” is hugely popular on the premiere run, after many years,
re-run of these TV series is also a hit and has pull in lots of
new generation audience. The feature films produced and/or
directed by Mr. Wai include “Needing You”, “Love On A Diet”,
“Fat Choi Spirit”, “My Left Eye Sees Ghosts”, “Love For All
Seasons”, “Running On Karma”, “Fantasia”, “The Shopaholics”,
“Mad Detective”, “Written By” etc. Mr. Wai joined the Group in
2000.

Ms. WONG Shuk Han, Dorothy, aged 55, is the Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Company. She
graduated from City University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
degree in Accountancy in 1990. She is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Prior to her employment with the Group, she
worked with an international accounting firm for over 10 years.
Ms. Wong is primarily responsible for the supervision of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting procedures and
internal control system. Ms. Wong joined the Group in 2001.
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Ms. YEUNG Porlin, age 55, is the Regional Director of the
Company. She has over 15 years experience in TV and
film industry and as of 2006 she has extend her scope of
services to serviced residences, hotel operations and project
development in Beijing and Macau. In 2013, Ms. Yeung was
appointed as the Executive Director of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong
Macau. She graduated from the University of Leicester,
UK with a MBA and is an Advanced Certification holder
in Hospitality Management at the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Ms. Yeung joined the Group in 1997. Ms. Yeung
is actively participating in the Company’s residential and
commercial real estate project in Macau.

Mr. TODD Evan, aged 55, is the Project Manager of the
Group. He graduated from Cornell University in the U.S. with
a bachelor degree in 1989. Over the years, he has worked for
Andersen Consulting and Swire Pacific Limited. He first joined
our Group in 1995 and worked over five years in the area of
film distribution in Mainland China. In 2009, he rejoined our
Group and began involved in the operation of Hotel Lan Kwai
Fong Macau. Mr. Todd was appointed as the Chief Operating
Officer of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau from 2013 until 2018.
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INTRODUCTION

The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the
Company and the management of the Company are committed
to establishing good corporate governance practices and
procedures. The maintenance of high standard of business
ethics and corporate governance practices has always
been one of the goals of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”).
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective

The Company believes that good corporate
management, successful business growth and a healthy
corporate culture, thereby leading to the enhancement of
shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, sound internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders. By
applying rigorous corporate governance practices, the
Group believes that its accountability and transparency will
be improved thereby instilling confidence to shareholders
and the public. Throughout the financial year ended 31st
December 2020, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the applicable code provisions laid down
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) save for one deviation, details
of which will be explained in the section “Deviation from the
Code” in this report. The Board has, since the amendments
to the Listing Rules regarding corporate governance
practices were first proposed by the Stock Exchange,
continued to monitor and review the Group’s progress
in respect of corporate governance practices to ensure
compliance. Meetings were held throughout the year and
where appropriate, circulars and other guidance notes were
issued to directors and senior management of the Group to
ensure awareness to issues regarding corporate governance
practices.
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THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s business, strategic
decisions and performances and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. In practice, the Board takes
responsibility for decision making in all major matters of the
Company including: the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, the setting of objectives, annual budgets and overall
strategies, material transaction, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. The
day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the senior executives. These
responsibilities include the implementation of decisions of the
Board, the co-ordination and direction of day-to-day operation
and management of the Company in accordance with the
management strategies and plans approved by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by these senior executives
and the Board has the full support of them to discharge its
responsibilities.

Composition

As at 31st December 2020, the Board comprises six Directors:
including three executive Directors, namely, Mr. Heung Wah
Keung (Chairman), Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany (Vice Chairman,
performing the role of chief executive as stated in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules) and Ms. Li Yuk Sheung and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Hung Cho
Sing, Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul and Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert.

One of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The number of
independent non-executive Directors is more than one-third
of the Board. Biographical details of the Directors are set out
in the section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 19 to 23.
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The presence of three independent non-executive Directors is
considered by the Board to be a reasonable balance between
executive and non-executive Directors. The Board is of the
opinion that such balance can provide adequate checks and
balances for safeguarding the interests of shareholders and of
the Group. The independent non-executive Directors provide
to the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience
so that independent judgement can effectively be exercised
as well as ensuring that the interests of all shareholders are
taken into account. They are also responsible for participating
in Board meetings, dealing with potential conflicts of interest,
serving on audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee, scrutinising the Group’s performance
and reporting. Through their active participation, they provide
their valuable skills, expertise and experience to the Board and
the committees on which they serve so that the management
process can be critically reviewed and controlled.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field
of expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal
and professional ethics and integrity. All the Directors give
sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs. The
Board believes that the ratio of executive to non-executive
Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide checks and
balances that safeguard the interest of the shareholders and
the Company as a whole.

The Board as a whole is responsible for the appointment of
new director and nomination for re-election by shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company. Under the
Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”), the Board may from
time to time appoint a director either to fill a vacancy or as
an addition to the Board. Any new director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
after his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election
at the next following annual general meeting. Any new director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office until the next following annual general meeting

of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Bye-law 99(A) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Heung Wah
Keung, Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany and Ms. Li Yuk Sheung will
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN

The roles of Chairman and Vice Chairman (performing the
role of chief executive as stated in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules) are separate and not performed by the same individual
to ensure that there is a clear division of responsibilities at the
board level to entail a balance of power and authority.

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board, for
ensuring that the Board functions effectively, and for ensuring
communication of the views of the Board to the public. In
performing this role, the Chairman’s responsibilities include
chairing meetings of the Board; ensuring the board meetings
receive accurate, complete, timely and clear information
concerning affairs of the Company; ensuring constructive
relations between executive and non-executive Directors;
formulating for discussion and decision, questions which
have been moved for the consideration of the Board; ensuring
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
board meetings; acting as liaison between the Board and
management; in consultation with the Vice Chairman and the
company secretary or his/her designated delegates, drawing
up and approving the agenda for each board meeting taking
into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed by
the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda; and at least
annually hold meetings with independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of the executive Directors.

The Vice Chairman is primarily responsible for recommending
policy and strategic directions for Board approval;
implementing the strategies and policies adopted by the
Board; and conducting the day-to-day operation of the
Company.
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INDEPENDENCE

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors,
at least one of whom has appropriate financial management
expertise, in compliance with the Listing Rules. The Group
has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence. The Company
considers these Directors to be independent under the

guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such
in all corporate communications containing the names of the
Directors. In addition, there is no material relationship among
members of the Board except that Mr. Heung Wah Keung, the
Chairman, is the husband of Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, the
Vice Chairman of the Company.

DEVIATION FROM THE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31st December 2020, the Company
complied with the Code in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules,
except for the following deviation:

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject
to re-election. However, all the independent non-executive
Directors are not appointed for specific terms but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the provision of
the Bye-laws. The Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the

Code.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
remunerated at HK$240,000 for the year ended 31st December
2020.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

The Board regularly meets in person or through other
electronic means of communication at least four times every
year to determine overall strategic direction and objectives
and approve interim and annual results, and other significant
matters. At least 14 days’ notice of regular Board meeting
are given to all Directors, who are all given an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for discussion.
Apart from regular meetings, senior management from time
to time provides Directors with information on activities and
development of the businesses of the Group. The company
secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for the
meeting and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations
in connection with the meetings are observed and complied
with. The finalized agenda and accompanying board papers
are then sent to all Directors at least three days prior to the
meeting. The company secretary also takes detailed minutes
of the meetings and keeps records of matters discussed and
decision resolved at the meetings.

During the year under review, 9 board meetings were held.

Ag BEETQhHEBEZEQZHZFHBOT Details of the attendance of the Directors at the general
meetings, meetings of the Board and its respective committees
are as follows:

HEERRE
Number of meetings attended
RRBEF Exg BREES FWEEE REZEE
- =E E =E =
Annual Audit Remuneration Nomination

EEnR General Board Committee Committee Committee

Name of Director Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting

HiTES

Executive Directors

Gkt 11 9/9* TEA TiE 11

Heung Wah Keung N/A N/A

BREA IR 11 8/8 TER 11 TEfA

Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany N/A N/A

TR 171 8/8 TiEA TEHA TEA

Li Yuk Sheung N/A N/A N/A

BYFHTES

Independent Non-Executive Directors

HEE 1/1 9/9* 3/3 1/1 11

Hung Cho Sing

EER 11 9/9* 3/3 A NiEA

Ho Wai Chi, Paul N/A N/A

B 171 9/9* 3/3 171 1/1

Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert

OER-REEEEREHESEIREAANTESELRE
ZERTERBLFFRTESRT -

* Included a Board meeting where the Chairman of the Board met
with independent non-executive Directors, without the presence of
the executive Directors.
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E=eRF URBTUEREZRNIER -WEER
REFTENEER  WEUERBIEXBAEERSE
ERRAKEX -

HW—2ETBRRAEFFANSER  BRFEMRE
(e tETHH TIAEUNEERERTAERE -
BENGRERZBYFATESHELRE A AREZ
EEHREH -

ZEBE (BREKZBEE FTHZEENRERZEE)
UM AZRESRARMESESALAZERATRAK

During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss
and formulate the overall strategies of the Group, monitor
financial performances and discuss the annual and interim
results, set annual budgets, as well as discuss and decide on
other significant matters. The execution of daily operational
matters is delegated to management of the Group.

The company secretary records the proceedings of each
board meeting in detail by keeping minutes, including the
record of all decisions by the Board together with concerns
Drafts of

board minutes are circulated to all directors for comment and

raised and dissenting views expressed (if any).

approval as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on request by
any Director.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information
at all times as the Chairman ensures that the management
will supply the Board and its committees with all relevant
information in a timely manner. They may make further
enquiries if in their opinion it is necessary or appropriate to

request for further information.

They also have unrestricted access to the advice and services
of the company secretary, who is held responsible for
providing Directors with board papers and related materials
and ensuring that all proper Board procedures are followed
and that all applicable laws and regulations are complied with.
If considered necessary and appropriate by the Directors, they
may retain the service of independent professional advisers at
the Group’s expense.

In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a
substantial shareholder or a director, such matter will be
discussed in a physical meeting and will not be dealt with
by way of written resolutions. Independent non-executive
Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings
dealing with such conflict issues.

The board committees, including the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee, have
all adopted the applicable practices and procedures used in

board meetings for all committee meetings.
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The annual general meeting and other general meetings of
the Company are the primary forum for communication by
the Company with the shareholders and for shareholders’
participation. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the
general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote
at meetings on their behalf if they are unable to attend the
meetings.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
must keep breast of their collective responsibilities as
directors and of the business of the Group. As such, the
Group provides a comprehensive and formal induction to each
newly appointed director upon his/her appointment. Briefings
and orientations are provided and organised to ensure that
the new Directors are familiar with the role of the Board, their
legal and other duties as a director as well as the business
and governance practices of the Group. Such programmes
are tailored to each individual director taking into account
their background and expertise. The company secretary will
continuously update all Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all
Directors.

All Directors also participate in continuous professional
development programmes provided or procured by the Group,
such as external seminars organised by qualified professionals
update materials regarding laws and regulation and the Listing
Rules, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in
relation to their contribution to the Board. A record of the
training received by the respective Directors are kept and
updated by the company secretary of the Company.
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TEBNEETR T _THERENZELTRAES
ZAE BREMBEZHEEXERAIZZELIS

The participation by individual Director in the continuous
professional development programme with appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a Director of a
listed company in 2020 is recorded in the following table.

HEEERE SHEHIMAKEENR
BHER WmieE EE
Attending
Reading external
regulatory seminars/
EEnE Name of Director updates programmes
BITES Executive Directors
[EEEE: Heung Wah Keung v
GEEES Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany v/
FERE Li Yuk Sheung v/
BIFHTES Independent Non-Executive Directors
HEE Hung Cho Sing v
fAfEE Ho Wai Chi, Paul v v/
B IEM Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert v v

BEERREERREZERBEREFALAEEHERLR
DRRABRABAETZBUBALEE  UREMBE
RASE -

5MEES

GMEBRCMMRT YABETHLABBEGE -
K-E-EF+-A=+-0 HHEEQAMEBY
FHTEE RAE EERBERE L) R—ANTE
B (RS R KRR R EBUER G EE -

B 7B

YHMZESRENERMESTSEBFTMBE LA
SEHENATESRSREBAGNFHGENESS
RtEZ HZBEeRIEERRERRZSAAER
MBRBERE TARNBEXER -FMEESTER
MEMERABITHRE -

Each Director will, upon his/her first appointment and thereafter
on a yearly basis, disclose to the Group the number and
nature of offices held by such Director in public companies
and organizations and other significant commitments.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee was formed with specific
written terms of reference. As at 31st December 2020, the
remuneration committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Cho Sing and Mr. Tang
Chak Lam, Gilbert, and an executive Director, namely, Ms.
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany. Mr. Hung Cho Sing is the chairman of
the committee.

The remuneration committee is responsible for formulating
and recommending to the Board the remuneration policy and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and members of
senior management of the Group. This committee consults
with the Chairman on its proposals and recommendations and
has access to professional advice if deemed necessary. The
remuneration committee is also provided with other resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.
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FHEE gz ARBEGEN AR B LTS - #H
ZEBEBFRIBIT—REE -
REBEEEAR FMEESCRT - RIHEUEELE

EEUNTEST BUFNTESRBIZHMNAFE
TAEESELEEAEL -

BE-_FT-_ZF+ A=t RALFEXAKESRERE
ABF MR MR ZE T

FMiEE A
500,001/ 7L £1,000,000/% 7T 1
1,000,001/ 7T £1,500,000/% 7T 2
1,500,0017% 7L £2,000,000/% 7T 1

BE-_ZT-_ZTF+ A=t RALFEHRTESEHE
—HHBENRA M BERERM 14 -

REZES

REZEGERY WUEEPHLAEBESE
—E-TF+-A=1T—H" Tm%é,\aﬂﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁ
HITER(ABEREERREERE) R—BHTES
(B t) K - EMEERRLRZEG 2R -

REZEGZRACEEFRIBTESTIRE A
MERBE—R U ERNEREERNEESROERER

NHREARB 2 EERE WEAERAERALTHE
Exgl B ITHBRENALRBHEES FHEBYL

FHTEZFZBYUNRRZERENZCESTRESHE
8 (CERIRRBTR) AEF RO HERE -

REZEGZABRBREEERARABUE LTH - 245
ZEBERFRIBIT-REE -

The specific terms of reference of the remuneration committee
are posted on the Company’s website. The remuneration
committee meets at least once a year.

During the year under review, the remuneration committee
held one meeting to determine the remuneration package of
each executive directors, independent non-executive directors
and the staff of the Group for making recommendations to the
Board for approval.

The remuneration of the senior management of the Group for
the year ended 31st December 2020 by band is set out below:
Remuneration band Number of individuals
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

Further details of the executive Directors’ emoluments for the
year ended 31st December 2020 are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee was formed with specific written
terms of reference. As at 31st December 2020, the nomination
committee consists of two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert and Mr. Hung
Cho Sing, and an executive Director, namely Mr. Heung Wah
Keung. Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert is the chairman of the
nomination committee.

The duties of the nomination committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually,
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and selecting individuals nominated for directorship,
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the vice
chairman.

The specific terms of reference of the nomination committee
are posted on the Company’s website. The nomination
committee meets at least once a year.
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During the year under review, the nomination committee held
one meeting to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board and to review the Board Diversity Policy.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) in
2013 and amended pursuant to the resolution of the Board
passed on 26th March 2019. The key terms of the Policy are
set out as follows.

. Purpose

This Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve
diversity in the Board.

Vision
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of

having a diversified Board to enhance the quality of its
performance.

. Policy Statement

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees an increase in diversity at
the Board level to be an essential element in the attainment
of its strategic objectives and sustainable development.
In achieving diversity of the Board, a number of aspects
of each director candidate will be considered,
but not limited to gender,

including
age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and the candidates will be
considered based on the objective criteria set out in this
Policy having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

. Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to the
candidate’s gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional skills and knowledge,
and working experience. The ultimate decision will be
made by the Board based on the merit and contribution

which the candidates may be able to bring to the Board.
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5. EERER 5. Monitoring and Reporting
RAZEeEBFECEEARENERES S The Nomination Committee will report annually on the
FEZTCERMMAR - W ERABRAHNIT Board’s composition under the diversified perspectives

in the Corporate Governance Report, and monitor the
implementation of this Policy.

6. B ERE 6. Review of this Policy
RAZESEEBRERBERERIABR  UBERE The Nomination Committee will review this Policy,
ERNARE - REZEEHSTRENITES as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of its
EEMEE]  TRESe R EIEsUHESs implementation. The Nomination Committee will discuss
eEH - any revisions that may be required, and recommend any

such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

EEeRAESCERAMER  RENEREASFHESE The Board considered that the current structure, size and

WHERERNITIEEBINESRE U@ Ax AT composition of the Board to be appropriate in enabling it to

XS FHERESEHTRAERNESHEK perform a balanced and independent monitoring function

hEEeLERZ T on management practices to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy and diversity within the Board has been
achieved as the Board is composed of director from a diverse
range of background.

HE-_Z-_ZTF+_A=+—HESCHEKRINUOT : An analysis of the composition of the Board at 31st December
2020 is set out in the following:

%
10 0 5 (17%)
0 Accounting (17%)
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

M RGender H1 Designation  FERA B Age Group = Expertise
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules requires that the audit committee
must comprise a minimum of three non-executive directors
only, at least one of them should be independent non-
executive directors with appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
main duties of the audit committee include the followings:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
external auditor before submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make

recommendation to the Board on the appointment,

re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated

procedures.

Other duties of the audit committee are set out in its specific
terms of reference which are posted on the Company’s
website. The audit committee is provided with sufficient
resources enabling it to discharge its duties.



ANNUAL REPORT 2020 44 © CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED th Bl 2 B B R A ol

5>
i
03
o
i
w<d
Tff
@
Q
H
e}
o
p-g
v}
=+
(¢')
)
(@]
<
()
H
=
Y}
=
(@)
()
)
(¢]
e}
o
H
(s

RZEZEZF+-_A=1+—H EZXZESTBE=EKE

DRAREELE(BEREEEER) HEEXERY
EBMEE A BUERNTES MEERZEENE
FHERIERAERALZERYARMBEF =2 A AR
AMFEN BARRIZBBERIRAZAEEEA &
“ZECCEMNASEMRMz et R RIEH - W&

ARAERBEBRSRABEERMBEARER - FR
ERZEGCRTZRERNBHAKEZFERS N
hHfRE

ERZBENCRAMBRBELRERREF  UEBAR
A2 MEREE YR K BB B R A T AR 7 S R S NS AZ B
TEHER - R U BT AEATEEARFAREHFELE
EEBAREAZENREREBZEA T HEREZ - &
FeRERZEENER EE BEXRERIEZR
BB R D o

AEENIINEZBMSREEFAMEFHARIA
BEAMEBEMERAFAEAEXZEGHEH MM #
RAEBMBARRME ABYL  YARGSAMEY
FAERAREARNAZEAFEEMAAEKEERS
AFEEBYMNAR REFIIBREEN B
ZIERETGFEHABUNYRAMERZEGHE L]
ERBERT  AREAEBAIINEZAEMN FIFERT
B R INERBBAAEBRE T EZMIERZR
B BRRBEERAERAEEANGEVBRREBH
BRRY - FERRBEETRSIIEZREXTHE
Bl BB E B M2 RT5

As at 31st December 2020, the audit committee has three
members, namely Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul (chairman of the
audit committee), Mr. Hung Cho Sing and Mr. Tang Chak
Lam, Gilbert, all being independent non-executive Directors.
No member of the audit committee is a former partner of the
existing auditing firm of the Company within two years on
the date of his ceasing to be a partner or had any financial
interest in the auditing firm. The audit committee has reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters
with the management team of the Company. During the year,
the audit committee held three meetings to review the Group’s
annual report and interim report.

The audit committee has also reviewed the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, report on the company’s internal
control and risk management review and processes as well as
the re-appointment of the external auditor. There is no material
uncertainty relating to events and conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. There is no disagreement between the Board
and the audit committee regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Group’s external auditors is HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has written to
the Audit Committee confirming that they are independent
with respect to the Company and that there is no relationship
between HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited and the
Company which may reasonably be thought to bear on their
independence. In order to maintain the external auditors’
independence, it would only be employed for non-audit
work if the work does not compromise the external auditors’
independence and has been pre-approved by the Audit
Committee. During the year, the external auditors provided
audit services and non-audit services to the Group. Audit
services include services provided in connection with the audit
of the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Non-audit
services include services such as issuance of special audit
reports or interim review or other regulatory purposes.
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The Company’s annual report for the year ended 31st
December 2020 has been reviewed by the audit committee.
The financial statements for the year were audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The audit
committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited be nominated for appointment as the
auditor of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

For the year ended 31st December 2020, the fees paid and
payable in respect of audit services and non-audit services
provided by the auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited,
amounted to HK$840,000 and HK$138,000 respectively.

The company secretary keeps full minutes of all audit
committee meetings.
Board meetings and other committee meetings, draft and final
versions of audit committee meeting minutes are circulated to
all members of the audit committee for comments, approval
and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

In line with practices consistent with

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by directors of the Company. All the members
of the Board have confirmed, following specific enquiry by
the Company, that they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding directors securities transactions throughout the year
ended 31st December 2020. The Model Code also applies to
other specified senior management of the Group.

The Directors’ interests in shares of the Company and its
associated corporations are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ Report” on pages 45 to 57.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group. The auditors are responsible
to form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on the
financial statements prepared by the Directors and report the
opinion solely to the shareholders of the Company.
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The Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 58 to 66 set out
the reporting responsibilities of the auditors of the Company
for the consolidated financial statements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary. The company secretary reports to the
Board, and is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures
are followed and for facilitating information flows and
communications among Directors as well as with shareholders
and the management. Ms. Wong Shuk Han, Dorothy has
been appointed as the company secretary of the Company
with effect from December 2001 and Ms. Wong has complied
with the professional training requirement of the Listing Rules
during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board will therefore be responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions such as developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements etc.

During the financial year ended 31st December 2020, the
Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk management and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyze,
evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks associated
with any activity, function or process within its scope of
responsibility and authority.
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The Group has conducted a review of the implemented
system and procedures, including areas covering financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management
functions during the year under review. The systems are
implemented to minimise the risk to which the Group is
exposed and is used as a management tool for the day-to-day
operation of business. The system can only provide reasonable

but not absolute assurance against misstatement or losses.

The Group does not have an internal audit function as the
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company and is currently of the view that there
is no immediate need to set up an internal audit function within
the Group in light of the size, nature and complexity of the
Group’s business. The situation will be reviewed from time to
time.

The Group had engaged Infinity Concept Ripple Limited,
external professional consultant, to conduct independent
internal control review for the year ended 31st December
2020 and the review is completed as at the date of this annual
report.

For the year ended 31st December 2020, the Board
considered the Group’s internal control system as adequate
and effective and that the Company has complied with the
code provisions on internal control of the Code.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for decisions in relation to the overall
strategic development of the Group’s business. All Directors
have formal letters of appointment setting out key terms and
conditions relative to their appointment. Due to the diversity
and volume of the Group’s business, responsibility in relation
to the daily operations and execution of the strategic business
plans are delegated to management of the Group.

All committees, namely the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee, have specific terms
of reference clearly defining the authorities and responsibilities
of the respective committees. All committees are required by
their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to
their decisions, findings or recommendations, and in certain
specific situations, to seek the Board’s approval before taking
any actions.
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The Board review, on a yearly basis, all delegations by the
Board to different committees to ensure that such delegations
are appropriate and continue to be beneficial to the Company
as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

Insurance cover has been taken out for Directors’ and
Officers’ Liability to provide adequate cover, as determined
by the Board,

management members of the Company.

in respect of the Board members and senior

SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely
disclosure of relevant information to its shareholders. The
commitment to fair disclosure and comprehensive and
transparent reporting of the Company’s activities can be
reflected in many aspects.

In endeavouring to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders, the annual general meeting provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.

The Chairman was also actively involved in organizing, and
personally held the annual general meeting in 2020 in order
to ensure that shareholders’ views were communicated to the
Board. A separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman in
respect of each separate issue at the annual general meeting.

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are reviewed
from time to time to ensure the Company conforms to the
best practices regarding corporate governance. The annual
general meeting circular, which is circulated to all shareholders
at least twenty-one days prior to the holding of the annual
general meeting, sets out the details in relation to each
resolution proposed, voting procedures (including procedures
for demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant
information. At the Company’s 2020 annual general meeting, all
the resolutions were put to the vote by poll and Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong
Branch Share Registrar, was engaged as scrutineer to ensure the
votes were properly counted. The rights of shareholders and the
procedures for demanding a poll on resolutions at shareholders’
meeting are contained in the Bye-laws.
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The Company also communicates to its shareholders through
its annual and interim reports. The Directors, company
secretary or other appropriate members of senior management
also respond promptly to inquiries from shareholders and
investors.

The annual general meetings and other general meetings of
the Company are the primary communication between the
Company and the Shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged
to participate in general meetings. Board members,
appropriate management executives and external auditors
will attend annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’
questions at the general meetings. The Company’s website
provides the Shareholders with corporate information, interim
and annual reports, announcements and circulars issued
by the Company. It also provides information on corporate
governance of the Group and the compositions and functions
of the Board and the Board committees.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special General
Meeting (the “SGM”)

The Board shall, on the requisition in writing of the
shareholders of not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company upon which all calls or other sums then due
have been paid, forthwith proceed to convene a SGM.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after three months from the date of
the original deposit.



ANNUAL REPORT 2020 44 ® CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED th 2 B G IR A a)

>
HE
B

BRROEZEEFHEAZER

BREAIEREEEARBIAEAVARXIRARWE -
AEFERD  ARAWEZBRAFEOT :

e

F#EH168-2005%
EfEF L PEISBZ09E

{# 5 :(852) 2313 1888

E# : mail@chinastar.com.hk

BRIFANARBERAG LAEEEHFEHER

HREE ZBHF

ARBHNABRRERREEAARBEERELEXE
BoARNRABEBERRPUBREARBE 2B LB K
RARRERNESTEBERIIBRR - AR A
(www.chinastar.com.hk) B AR & RFRE—EERET & -

& #t ¥ Corporate Governance Report

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING
SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company
secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Unit 3409, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central,

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2313 1888

Email: mail@chinastar.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to shareholders and
investors. The Company updates shareholders on its latest
business developments and financial performance through its
annual and interim reports and notices, announcements and
circulars. The Company’'s website (www.chinastar.com.hk)
provides a communication platform to the public and the
shareholders.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a new dividend policy
on 26th March 2019. This policy aims to provide shareholders
of the Company and potential investors the dividend policy of
the Company.

Under the new dividend policy, the Company does not have
any pre-determined dividend payout ratio. The declaration,
payment and amount of dividends are subject to the Board’s
discretion having regard to the following factors:

a. the earnings, financial condition, capital requirements
and future plans of the Group;

b. the shareholders’ interests of the Company;
C. the Company’s availability of reserves;
d. the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends

by the Company to its shareholders;

e. the statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment
of dividends by the Company; and

f. any other factors the Board may consider relevant.

The declaration of dividends by the Company is also subject
to any restrictions under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
the Listing Rules, the Bye-laws and any applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31st December 2020, there had
been no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance is
significant in maintaining investor confidence and attracting
investment. The management will devote considerable effort
to strengthen and improve the standards of the corporate
governance of the Group.
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The directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the Group is principally engaged in investment,
production, distribution and licensing of films and television
drama series, provision of artist management services,
properties development and investment and provision of
catering services.

The activities of its subsidiaries and joint venture are set out
in notes 40 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December
2020 are set out in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
67 and page 68 respectively.

The financial position of the Group as at 31st December 2020
is set out in the consolidated statement of financial position on
pages 69 and 70.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2020.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business review, discussion and analysis of the
development, operating performance and financial position
and particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the year ended 31st December
2020 are set out in sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Five Year
Financial Summary” on pages 4 to 6, pages 7 to 18 and pages
222 to 223 respectively. Such discussions constitute part of

this report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The performance and results of the Group’s businesses
are subject to various important factors, including the
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers. The
Board believes that the employees are one of the Group’s
most important assets. The Company will strive to ensure
that the remuneration level of its employees is in line with
relevant industry practices and prevailing market conditions.
Remunerations of employees will be determined based on their
performance. Details of employees benefits are included in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
annual report.

In addition, the Board places great emphasis on a long-
term and stable relationship with the Company’s customers
and suppliers for the continuous success and growth of the
Group’s businesses. Generally, the Group strengthen its
customer service by providing superior quality service to the
users, and strive to achieve the fastest response times and
highest customer satisfaction levels in the relevant industry.

Supply chain is a critical part of all our operations. Our
suppliers must meet our selection criteria, which include
security, safety, cost, quality, delivery and reliability. The
Group will enter into suppliers’ agreements with qualified
suppliers in order to secure our services and products are

being supplied to our standard within our budgeted costs.

The Group’s continuous effort to build trust and emphasise
mutual benefits with its customers and suppliers has
contributed to the long-term relationships with them.



ANNUAL REPORT 2020 44 ® CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED th 2 B G IR A a)

# & #t % Directors’ Report

TERRBRRTHBARE
AEEMBEYUOTEERRR L THAREE - FIXAK
RONERBENETEZE18B 2 [BEE il ko7
— o AEEZeRAREEBZRBERBAEEHE
RS o

REBEKEREKRE

AEEABUNRRDABERETIRAEBENE - NEE
NEHEFEETABREIGEIRENEZ -EFEH
EUARRTAKLERRBABETETRAER  HETAR
ACEHEEEENER -

FEBZHMAZEREZRMEETHNER - BLETH
BROEEENMERSORK ERUBLER BARE
REANBEET BRRIRS

FRASBRERRERBZFBENTER-_FT=——

FRAZ+—BRRZAEEBE HEREARES
HE -

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The possible business risks and uncertainties, interest rate
risk and foreign exchange risk facing by the Group are set out
in section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 7 to 18. The financial risk management objectives and
policies of the Group are set out in note 5 to the consolidated

financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operating its various business
segments in an environmentally-friendly manner. The Group
also educates its employees on their awareness in promoting
a “green” environment. The Board believes that operating
the Company’s businesses in an environmentally-friendly
manner is crucial to fulfilling the Company’s corporate social
responsibilities.

Green initiatives and measures have been adopted in the
offices of the Group. Such initiatives include energy saving
measures and water saving practices, use of recycling
papers, recycling of used papers and encourage paperless

environment.

Details of the environmental policies and performance of
the Group will be disclosed in our environmental, social and
governance report to be published before 31st May 2021.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the best knowledge of the Board, during the year ended
31st December 2020,
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the Group has complied with the

the business and operation of the Group. Furthermore, as the
shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
the Company is also subject to the rules and requirements
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31st December
2020 is set out on pages 222 and 223.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

STOCK OF PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in stock of properties of
the Group are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of movements during the year in borrowings regarding
bank borrowings and lease liabilities of the Group are set out
in notes 34 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31st December 2020, the total issued share capital of
the Company consisted of 2,630,610,479 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each.

RESERVES

Movements during the year in the reserves of the Group are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 71 to 73. Movements during the year in the reserves
of the Company are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$2,355,023,000 as at 31st December 2020
(2019: HK$2,504,465,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December 2020, revenue attributable
to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 72% of the Group’s revenue and revenue
attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 46% of the Group’s revenue.

For the year ended 31st December 2020, purchases
attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 23% of the Group’s purchases
and purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 11% of the Group’s purchases.
None of the directors, their close associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interests in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Heung Wah Keung
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
Ms. Li Yuk Sheung

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Hung Cho Sing
Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert

Under Bye-law 99(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Heung
Wah Keung, Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany and Ms. Li Yuk
Sheung shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The term of office for each independent non-executive director
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 19 to 23.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into certain transactions
with parties regarded as “Related Parties” under applicable
accounting principles. These mainly relate to transactions
entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of business,
negotiated on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length
basis. Particulars of the material related party transactions of
the Group are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

These transactions do not constitute “continuing connected
transaction” or “connected transaction” of the Group that need
to be disclosed pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company or an entity connected with
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company
which requires the Company to give a period of notice of
more than one year, or to pay compensation or make other
payments equivalent to more than one year’s emolument.
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ESENZD
BEARBZZ-NFFERAMRRE ETRAFE13.51B
BETHRENESERZHHIINOT

RABBIFPTEETSEREER T _2F+—H
— BEZ I ANexion Technologies Limited (— B E
FREIZMR Ez 2R BROKSE : 8420) 2 B IEH1T
5o

EEzROER

18 AR R B e B a5 E 2 B (T
HHEMD AR RRECENRTAETETBERS
8 =7 B (112 <9 B 1) 7238 0K 2 ) B B 32 2
BOR-E-BFET-AS-H EEFREZIH

RALHA AL REIAR AR 2 R EST

FAREBERES
EENE 3%
Name of director Capacity

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
The changes in information of directors as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules since
the date of the 2019 Annual Report of the Company are set out
below:

Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert,
director of the Company, was appointed as an independent

an independent non-executive

non-executive director of Nexion Technologies Limited (stock
code: 8420), a company listed on the GEM Board of the Stock
Exchange, on 2nd November 2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
As at 31st December 2020,
and their associates in the shares of the Company and its

the interests of the directors

associated corporations, as recorded in the register (“Register
of Interests”) maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
were as follows:

Interests in ordinary shares of the Company

Pz

ERalg k-

FrislRBEE Approximate
Number of percentage of

shares held interests held

AR T4
Mr. Heung Wah Keung

BREASE 2+
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany

FilEmE ATR -
* It E B B Rk A KR L 5 5 E & % B50% K%50%

¥ #5 2 2 "lHeung Wah Keung Family Endowment
Limited#5 75

AR R
Interest of controlled corporation

XEEE 2t m

Interest of controlled corporation

1,640,375,695* 62.35

1,640,375,595* 62.35

All interests stated above represent long positions.
* These shares are held by Heung Wah Keung Family
Endowment Limited which is beneficially owned as to 50% by
Mr. Heung and as to 50% by Ms. Chen.
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RHIZHBE ARAZEERERITBRABRBE I HE
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BRI EXVE) 2 ERIRG - BERGOIESFFHERE
MERIKE -

ESBREROIEST 2EF

AR R 3 E A A T B 7R 6 A9 o] B ] 3 B 22 AR ]
ZH BEARFRZESARESAZEEHEAL(E
ERETHRA THEBARDBREMEMEABRE
A BAD AR 77 T 4

TERR
R-B-FF+-A=+—0 BREEZRMEEE
SHEARAET BELTERRBRAMFRL B E

Other than as set out above, as at 31st December 2020, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company or their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the Register of Interests or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company or their respective close associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2020, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company under Section 336 of

N HWEATESZ ZRHN UWTITREHEEALFEE the SFO showed that, other than the interests disclosed above
TR ARE% SR IA £ 2 #Eas in respect of certain directors, the following shareholders had
an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of the
Company:

FiEEEE A

FrislRBE B Approximate

=y 14 Number of shares percentage of

Name Capacity held interests held

Heung Wah Keung Family BEmEAA 1,640,375,595 62.35

Endowment Limited Beneficial owner

LiigmERER -
BRENHIEESEN RZZE=TF+=A=+—H &

RAYARENEEEAEMALHEE R RB S EITARAE%
A L2 BEIKE ©

All interests stated above represent long positions.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified of any other interests or short positions representing
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital as at 31st
December 2020.
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3B K18 A 5T &

AEEZRKRAGEFBFHN RS M HERERMEES -

ﬁ%\ﬁ%ﬁa@$“72tﬁ
RBE-F-TE+-A=+—BLEER KRR
B AR AR T

:lJ I

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the Company
repurchased its own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange

as follows:
BRER
Price per share

B A G ZEREE BE B1E ENARE
Month of Number of Highest Lowest Aggregate
repurchase ordinary consideration
shares paid

BT BT ETT

HK$ HK$ HK$

—E-TFEMA April 2020 37,910,000 1.75 1.72 66,342,000
—E-TFERR May 2020 37,880,000 1.75 1.75 66,290,000
—ETERA June 2020 2,230,000 1.75 1.70 3,898,000
—ETFELR July 2020 2,370,000 1.70 1.70 4,029,000

80,390,000

77,930,000/% I 38 A% K 2,460,0008% @A E 5 FIRA =
T-_EFRNA+—BRZZE-ZEFLtA=-+=BHH-

EERRADABNIURERERBR MO ZEEFESR
ik BOSSENARRAERKRNIEERFE -

BEXHBEEESN RBEE_FT_FTF+_A=1+—H
HEERA - $’AET§JZEIE@WEAEWEH%E§E CHER
BOERARRZ EHES -

140,559,000

77,930,000 ordinary shares and 2,460,000 ordinary shares
were cancelled on 11th June 2020 and 23rd July 2020
respectively.

The directors considered that the Company’s shares were
trading at a discount to the net asset value per share, the
repurchase would increase the net asset value per share of
the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31st
December 2020.
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ARRRABERETEERHESRAERER 25E
BRAARRZ BEREBFEHN A M RRM 38 -

R EONE

BARNRERE SN RRFHETLNFARNEF
BRETEZREHBHEN K S X T RLERARRET
BHEREARBR LM BZEMS S L AEERAR
BE N

BREE
BER-2——FAA=+\BRGZARAREES
KU BB —EARE KATRMT —HHWG
sEl (BB 81)) - AR ABRET BRERRES
8175 % 2 38 -

RZZE-ZEFFTZR=+—H BRBEREFEN X2

AR E AR B o

RBE-Z-_TF+_A=t—-HLFEAMERLRE
WARTTEE - ERE 176 KM CEWNEH -

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to their duties
and responsibilities in the Company. Details of the emoluments
of the directors are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
share option schemes of the Company are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year, except for the share
option scheme of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special general meeting
of the Company held on 28th June 2012, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme (the “Option Scheme”).
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out
in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

Apart from the Option Scheme, the Company has no other
share option scheme in place as at 31st December 2020.

No share option was outstanding, granted, exercised, lapsed,
expired or cancelled during the year ended 31st December
2020.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31st December 2020 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Company has undertaken and
maintained a collective liability insurance policy covering,
among others, all directors of the Company and its “associated
companies” (as such term is defined under the Companies

Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong)).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the directors of the Company or their respective close
associates had any interest in a business which competes with
or may compete with the business of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages
24 to 44.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, the Company has maintained the prescribed amount
of public float during the year and up to the date of this report
as required under the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company have been audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as auditors of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as the auditors of the Company for the subsequent
year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Heung Wah Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30th March 2021
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11 Pedder Street
HETITRE3 1
Central
Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Star Entertainment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 67 to 221,
statement of financial position at 31st December 2020, and the

which comprise the consolidated

consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements,
policies.

including a summary of significant accounting

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group at 31st December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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AREXER

BREESCEXAE BRELZZRAREZERAYME
MEENBERETFEERNEH - BESEBRRRANT

BEREBMERBERRRELEER T
HEBHURER -

HUHEE

HEEREE

Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

EEzENIHRNMNEEBRREERSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

WEFEZKREE

Carrying amounts of stock of properties

BRI A B R R M 7520 ©
Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RIZBZZTF+-_RA=+—H uUMEMNNEFE
2 BRE B4 /33,275,151,000% 7T ﬂ EEEEER
EBEKX-

At 31st December 2020,
of stock of properties located in Macau was
approximately HK$3,275,151,000, which was
significant to the Group’s total assets.

the carrying amounts

EREHAEREUDERS
$@%:
Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s

S ZERHENFHZEZEFERE

assessment of the carrying amounts of stock of properties
including but not limited to:

. MEERBENEREFMAAEZRE —
checking the consistency of management’s calculations
against the methodology used in the prior years;

. AR EEE - JIER
ZEELLE

evaluating the properties areas by comparing them with

Bz REHEBEBZEALER

the areas which were verified and confirmed by the
relevant institution;

. R G EE  TARR 2 EBBLT
HIM R AREEER L

examining the estimated sales price by comparing it

YE L OE TR RS PSS

with the recent sales price and recently available public
sales information of neighbouring properties;

. FHERTAERRRO A EM RIS
assessing the fairness and appropriateness of the
source of information used;
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REEXSEE(E

HRBELEE

Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EEzENITHRNMEEBRREREE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

WH*FEZIREE (F)

Carrying amounts of stock of properties (Continued)

A R P A B 1T IR U (DR PIIRAT ) iE BB IERR
I ROMEBIR S [ FeBih B ([FeBi ) v M E# &
ReFER MBEFEFBE L MBEEGRROFL E
BEURPIBT 7 40 Y Bl £ 42 ITE T AF ©

The development of the property located in Lot 6B
at Zona de Aterros do Porto Exterior (ZAPE) (“Lot
6B”) could not commence development due to the
delays caused by the government of Macau Special
Administrative Region (the “Macau Government”)
and the Macau Government has started the
administrative work to reclaim it as a consequence
of ongoing litigation in respect of the terms of the
land lease.

EREN2RERDEIHNEEREHERIME
EMHEFENAERFE APPREEENHE R
&t o

Management determined the net realisable values
of stock of properties by reference to recent sales
price of similar properties less selling expenses,
which involve managements’ judgement and
estimation.

EEEHERRUHMEFECREEN M ERIEFBEE
TR : (&)

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
assessment of the carrying amounts of stock of properties
including but not limited to: (Continued)

. AMEFEEBMERUNBREEREET YIRS EENHE
REESTEEREET
conducting site visits to stock of properties projects
to observe the development progress and evaluating
whether the development progress for each project was
consistent with the development plan;

. R EEAFBU R 2 T EREERDERR T O
BREEEMBANINDERE R REMIM
inspecting the external legal opinion and other
documentation referred to by management in its
assessment of the outcome of the court proceedings in
relation to the litigation in respect of the land lease for
the Lot 6B;

. 2EHARESENM TR BN RER AR RIHEH
X Rk
evaluating the construction costs to be incurred and
selling expenses by reference to information such as
project budgets; and



ANNUAL REPORT 2020 44 ® CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED th 2 B G IR A a)

¥ 57 %% B Rl #t 5 Independent Auditors’ Report

REEXSEE(E

HRBELEE

Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EEzENITHRNMEEBRREREE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

WH*FEZIREE (F)

Carrying amounts of stock of properties (Continued)

EEEHERRUHMEFECREEN M ERIEFBEE
TR : (&)

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
assessment of the carrying amounts of stock of properties
including but not limited to: (Continued)

. FHESNEfLER 2 BB  BUMREESE  UHES
2RI A REINE (L BT R E LR -
assessing the objectivity, independence and expertise
of the external valuers, and compared out test results
with the valuations made by the external valuers.

EERBYERECEHAL AN ERNRIIEAZ -
We found the carrying amounts of stock of properties were
supported by the available evidence.
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BREEXSEE(E)

HRBEREE

Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EEzENITHRNMEEBRREREE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEYRBERRFFEZZRETE
Impairment assessment on film rights and films in
progress

WIRMER & W B MK M E21 K22 -
Refer to notes 21 and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements

RZZB_ZTF+_A=+—H EXRERREFE
&2 IREED B 511,828,000 7T &% 77,634,000/5 7T
At 31st December 2020, the carrying amounts of film
rights and films in progress were HK$11,828,000
and HK$77,634,000 respectively.

EEETERZESEHE  DEEREMIEN G RE
FAFIE - IR ERRER REEHEL -

We focused on these areas as the assessment
made by management involved application of
judgements and was based on assumptions and
estimates.

ErTEYMERBEFEZTOIERER EEES
ZE BEERBMAIHOETREERHZEARE A TR
i TR TR HR i 1t R B ME AR I B 1T R A B 93]
DM E o REEE TR AW E S RN REE 2 B
R-BE_ZEZ_ZEFF+_A=+—BLEFEAN I
EREXRERRAESE  EREEPEZERR
1B &71826,384,0007% T °
In determining whether impairment on film rights
and films in progress is required, management
takes into consideration of the distribution and
licensing agreements entered into by the Group and
the current market environment to project cash flows
expected to be received through film box office
receipts and distribution and licensing income.
Impairment loss is recognised in the period in which
the recoverable amount is less than the carrying
amount. During the year ended 31st December
2020, no impairment loss was recognised in respect
of film rights and impairment loss of HK$26,384,000
was recognised in respect of films in progress.

EEFMETHREREEREY 2 REMNGNEZEF2EER
PRI

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment assessment on
film rights and films in progress including but not limited to:

. THRERBHEXRENMEFEREZETREN GNE
%
understanding the process of how management
performs impairment assessment on the film rights and
films in progress;

. AREBERETECRERMETPEY 2T REEE
RFTERAAENRENL &
evaluating the appropriateness of the methodology
used by management in determining the recoverable
amounts of the film rights and films in progress; and

. AzARBReRERAPAARIRNGEN  WERE
PEAMHEAESYRELREEREZHELNEH KA
e AR EYRERZRETREEREZE
HeERY URBEASTERERE DS FraE U
BYNELBEIEEY -
evaluating the reasonableness of the assumptions used
in the future cash flow projection and challenging the
management’s assessment on the expected revenue to
be generated from film rights and films in progress by
checking the film budget summary to the contracted
amounts of the distribution and licensing agreements
and the estimated film box office receipts to the
historical trend of similar film released.

EEERREEMERBEREY 2 RERHHE AT ERNBE
ERHF -

We found the impairment assessment on film rights and films
in progress were supported by the available evidence.
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ERZBEERAEE ERENMBHRERERE-

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other

Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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*z %{ Eﬂi ,T‘f:jﬁ % *}Z l%’,-:f'-\ é Ezl' i% $ﬁ %% 2E 7 AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
%-H’gfé:ﬁg (/555) AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

. AZEEMEASTEENREERELERE o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
SRR RN SR - used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by the directors.

. HESHABELERSTEMNBREHELE o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
W WIREFENNEN RS BEESFEH of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
ZENEREHANERNTEEN - M EEHK on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
o BEENEERLENELETEARE -HE uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
ERRFEERTETEMN - AU EEZ AR may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
EPRBEAEIEFRAVBRRTPVBERSE - continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
MAEBRETRE EBERRIFERBER TS a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
,uumB%EA@Ziﬁ%(Eﬂi#ﬁiEHﬁﬂ:ﬁﬁﬁl o draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related

B AT RREBEXBRAGEESR BEEE disclosures in the consolidated financial statements

/ﬂ—*fi““’ g o or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o TG EMBHRERNEEERFA  BERASR - o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
PREBEEER  UMGAUEHERGHERB of the consolidated financial statements, including the
AR 5 MEIE - disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial

statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. # BERECERIEBSTHOUBEENEDNT o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
RRBEMNETRE UWEHRAUBHRRER the financial information of the entities or business
ER-ESAESEFHANAM  EENHIT - activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
EERERERKRERNEFE - consolidated financial statements. We are responsible

for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

Exmm

EEEEZZE e (HPaiE) Bt TIEMETEIEE - We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among

BELZHELEARARER AEESHESBIEHR  other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

R B 796 S 1 ) ] E KR K o significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah

Practicing Certificate Number: P06417

Hong Kong, 30th March 2021
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%% & W A\ F Consolidated Income Statement
—E-FF+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

—T-NF
2019
B it AT
Notes HK$'000
Wz Revenue 7 5,026 7,053
5 B AR Cost of sales (1,351) (1,998)
EF Gross profit 3,675 5,055
Hab s R E KA Other revenue and other income 8 97,403 95,252
THAX Administrative expenses (71,476) (78,546)
MIGHEERETHX Marketing and distribution expenses (2,458) (29,167)
BRBEEAAFEBENEZ Loss arising on change in fair value of
cRMEEZ AT EBRY financial assets at fair value through
PRES B profit or loss (97,204) (183,582)
HiigEmx Other operating expenses (40,167) (144,030)
K EA Loss from operations (110,227) (835,018)
BhE Bl AN Finance costs 9 (250) (408)
EH—HEeEBENEEE Share of result of a joint venture 2 (270)
BRFE AT E 18 Loss before tax 10 (110,475) (335,696)
Frigfiiie, (Bx) Income tax credit/(expense) 11 32 (35)
FEBR Loss for the year (110,443) (335,731)
UTATEGEFEESE: Loss for the year attributable to:
ZANCIE 2 WN Owners of the Company (110,430) (335,226)
JEVE R AE RS Non-controlling interests (13) (505)
(110,443) (335,731)
Al Al
HK cents HK cents
BREE Loss per share 13
HEARRE#T Basic and diluted (4.15) (12.17)

BEM 2 M EE BRI FRA M B RERZ — 8D -

consolidated financial statements.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
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22 I\ . .
%% & 2 1 W A 3 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020
—T-NF
2019
FHET
HK$'000
FEBE Loss for the year (110,443) (335,731)
Hih2HEEE Other comprehensive loss
HENEEF P BEEREZHA - Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
MEBINEBEEZIELEZE Exchange differences arising on translation
of foreign operations (852) (205)
ZETIE N AT i — g s Reclassification of cumulative exchange
M@ A EIRER DR reserve upon deregistration of a foreign
subsidiary 764 _
FEHMEEER Other comprehensive loss for the year (88) (205)
FE2EEEEN Total comprehensive loss for the year (110,531) (335,936)
LTATELEFELZEBEERE: Total comprehensive loss for the year
attributable to:
ZAN/NETEF SN Owners of the Company (110,518) (335,431)
FEFE R A Non-controlling interests (13) (505)
(110,531) (335,936)

BEM 2 M ERBAR U SERAMBRERZ — 8D -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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R-ZZE-_ZTF+-A=+—H At 31st December 2020

—E-hF
2019
M iF FHET
Notes HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
W R EE Property, plant and equipment 16 128,960 151,144
e RIEMFIE Deposits and prepayment 25 33,664 16,000
RETFT - REFZER Loan to a director 17 420,504 369,974
R—EEERELER Interest in a joint venture 18 2 -
583,130 537,118
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 19 128 101
MEFTE Stock of properties 20 3,275,151 3,047,123
AT Film rights 21 11,828 12,792
FERER Films in progress 22 77,634 115,156
EEIE Investment in film 23 29,939 29,939
2 5 AR R Trade receivables 24 290 1,377
e ENRERE Deposits, prepayment and
H b B I SR IA other receivables 25 653,255 644,169
BRBEEARFEER Financial assets at fair value
SR &R E E through profit or loss 26 208,460 313,284
Bl —E&ELENREA Amount due from a joint venture 18 30 -
EUE R Loan receivables 27 - 199,127
FEHER Time deposits 28 276 272
He MR1TEE Cash and bank balances 29 503,450 497,748
4,760,441 4,861,088
HmEE Total assets 5,343,571 5,398,206
EXREE Capital and reserves
N Share capital 30 26,306 27,110
o Reserves 3,409,608 3,660,429
EAREEAELESR Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 3,435,914 3,687,539
R R Non-controlling interests (643) (630)
HER Total equity 3,435,271 3,686,909
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4 & W B Ik I % Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

NZE-ZFF+-F=+—H At31st December 2020

—T-hF
2019
bt iF FAT
Notes HK$'000
FnRBEME Non-current liabilities
HEBE Lease liabilities 31 981 7,100
RITIEE Bank borrowings 34 1,293,880 -
1,294,861 7,100
REAE Current liabilities
E 5N IRR Trade payables 32 22,710 78,251
BUEZES - EETIEE & Deposits received, accruals and
E b JE A FRB other payables 33 82,908 87,254
HESE Lease liabilities 31 4,704 5,394
RITEE Bank borrowings 34 - 1,030,150
JE 15 JE 22 AR 2 R IE Amounts due to non-controlling
interests 35 503,116 503,116
FERTRLIE Tax payable 1 32
613,439 1,704,197
BEAE Total liabilities 1,908,300 1,711,297
EEREELAHE Total equity and liabilities 5,343,571 5,398,206
RBEEFEE Net current assets 4,147,002 3,156,891
BEERRBAERE Total assets less current liabilities 4,730,132 3,694,009
REAFBREAANA—_ZE-_—E=A=+HHa=5e)E The consolidated financial statements were approved and

LERET ST ETIEEREES

LE-¥:
Heung Wah Keung
EFE
Director
BEPM Z BT BRI SR A MR 2 — /2 ©

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30th March

2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

R BA 2
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany

EF

Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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%5 o BE 45 5% B) &£ Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

KEARAARE
Attributable to owners of the Company

AHTERR
i hfad SABH EiGR RERRE ERHARE MREGER REER &  #ERER aR%

Bonus

convertible Capital Property Non-
Share Share  Contributed Exchange bonds reduction  revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
TR TR FiEn TR TR TR TR TR TR TR FiEn
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
(Wia) (Wv) (Wike) () (Hize) (W)

(Note 3) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note g) (Note e) (Note f)

RZZ-nE-A-A At st January 2019 28,011 1,986,306 542,961 836 1,182 316,008 48171 1,508,538 4431962 (125) 4431831
31 | Loss for the year - - - - - - - (335,226) (335,226) (505) (335,731)
EEEbRAER Other comprehensive loss fo the year - - - (205) - - - - (205) - (205)
EEREEALE Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - (205) - - - 335,226) 335,431) (505) 335,036)
BROTTERR Shares repurchased and cancelled (901) (68,787) - - - - - - (69,688) - (69,688)
BEREERAERRK Costs aftributable to repurchase and

cancellation of shares - (296) - - - - - - (296) - (29)
SRR BRE (Hi) Special interim dividend (note 12) - - 339,008) - - - - - (330,008) - (330,008)
g 4028 Transfer to contriouted surplus - - 316,008 - - (316,008) - - - - -

At 31st December 2019 and

at 1st January 2020 21,10 1,917,223 519,961 630 1,182 - 48171 1173312 3,687,539 (630) 3,686,909
31 | Loss for the year - - - - - - - (110,430 (110,430) (13) (10,443)
EREMREES Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - (88) - - - - (88) - (88)
FERAEELE Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - (88) - - - (110,430) (110518) (13) (110531)
BRETIHHRR Sheres repurchased and cancelled (804) (139,755) - - - - - - (140559) - (140,559)
BE R EGH K Costs atiributable to repurchase and

cancellation of shares - (548) - - - - - - (548) - (548)

R-E-EE+-AZt-A At 31st December 2020 26,306 1,776,920 519,961 542 1,132 - 481 1,062,882 3,436,914 (643) 3,436,211
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(ZE-E-FFE+_-F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

Hiat -

Notes:

BEAFRE-NN-FRREGER)  AREAZEkH  (a)
HERAEMRARARRZ RETRN - ERBRA RS
TFARRBER -

RNEBZEABARBRDERAR=_ZSZ=_FNA+HE (b
Bz B AN BRI 18 % RA AR T 88 8 IR AN AR 2 SR8 o

REBRE-NN\— i BVE (BIERT) - A RERAH
JE‘JZ&%%Q@E BARZTABBEARBIRZER
BEETERBEREARREM R EE - A
E@DAT’I%?R CARBNFEHARSBTERFRM RS
RAEH DK : (VAR B E R HROR 1% 8N EED S
MEEEZEE  RNARFAEEZTERESEAME
REBEBERECETRARBRMEER -

EXRBEAASASESIEG FEERATER (o)
BHEEALE2EE BT (BT MERZ
BoOYERNEM2ERAERRRELZERE - %

SREXBHBRIZERZRNHE SN EBHEEHD
CESEE

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the share premium of the Company can be used in paying up
unissued shares of the Company to be issued to shareholders

of the Company as fully paid bonus shares.

The contributed surplus of the Group brought forward
represents the amount transferred from the capital account due
to the capital reduction effective on 10th September 2002 and

various capital reduction subsequently.

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is available for distribution or apply
the amount standing to the credit of the contributed surplus
account in such manner as the board of directors considers
appropriate, including but not limited to setting off against any
accumulated losses of the Company. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
the contributed surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii)
the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium

accounts.

Exchange reserve represents exchange differences relating
to the translation of the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations from their functional currencies to the Group’s
presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollar (“HK$")) and
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange reserve. Such exchange
differences accumulated in the exchange reserve are
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign

operations.
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%5 o BE 45 5% B) &£ Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020
Hiat - (&) Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(f)

BEARRAR-ZF-—F+A-tTRBERITZERRES
RE LBBAEBETANBRD (BRREEEZRIAF
AR ES (AR ES D ARBE LB D) 2 &
BARBRR RARBBTARNSRBEESRONETE
BAEBBRZAR AR ES o A H AR A S AR

RAN A MBS FEE] 25 o MR ES
YARETRAAER  EHEENATRERSHSBAA (T4
FMARRESBSEADBRARN BERENESRR
BARBAFEITA STREZ AR ZE - Bk
R AR IR BUCERAL M AT 2 R (& 77 o AL R A) R BB 55 00 4%
ARFHEMBRRE ZRRE - REBRAN AREE
FZBRVEREZGEREGSE AN RRESHE
AR FEBEATAL R AT S iR (B 55 1R B B 77 R R PR -

BN IR R — UL\ 7K 2 B1332,640,0000%
ERTEDzEEASREEI.0ETHREEREE
005BTLMEL 2R REFREARFZAFMEA
F120FMB B —HRRE  BAHRRETBIEX
NARREREZEE AE IAREBE URTRAE
BEEFMEREER  #RESHEFMEMEARR]EF
AEEERZAE EEINENHFFHEEFEFRAE
AERMEL Z@ANBREARZHE - @ZFEETIR
BERHEZ - BEFEREREABARKRE UG
EARRBZ /-

MEEGREFTHERBRERANEZYE - RE
BEMYEZATEERRAERBREGANEE
hFEE - YRERDERASHERERARBER

(d)

()

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 25th October
2012 in relation to the bonus issue of shares (with a right for
shareholders to elect to receive bonus convertible bonds
(“Bonus CBs”) in lieu of bonus shares), Bonus CBs can be
converted into ordinary shares at initial conversion price of
HK$0.01 per share issued by the Company. The Bonus CBs are
recognised as equity and are presented in “bonus convertible
bonds reserve”. The Bonus CBs are unlisted and irredeemable
but have conversion rights entitling the bondholders to convert
into an equivalent number of shares as the number of bonus
shares which the bondholders (the “Bonus CBs holders”) would
otherwise be entitled to receive under the bonus issue had the
shareholder not elected for the Bonus CBs. The Bonus CBs do
not carry voting rights at any general meeting of shareholders
of the Company. The Bonus CBs holders can exercise the
conversion rights at any time after the issue of Bonus CBs,
subject to the terms and conditions of the applicable deed poll

constituting the Bonus CBs.

The capital reduction reserve represents the amount arising in
relation to the reduction of the nominal value of 332,640,000
issued shares of the Company from HK$1.00 each to HK$0.05
each in 1998. Pursuant to a resolution passed by the directors
pursuant to Bye-law 129 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the capital
reduction reserve shall be applicable for meeting claims on or
liabilities of the Company or contingencies or for paying off any
loan capital or for equalising dividends or for any other purpose
to which the profits of the Company may be properly applied.
Considering that the capital reduction reserve has same nature
as the contributed surplus account of the Company which was
also arising from capital reduction, the reserve is transferred to
the contributed surplus account pursuant to a board resolution
approved by the directors in order to simplify reserves of the

Company.

Property revaluation reserve relates the property transferred
from owner-occupied to investment property. The excess
amount between the fair value and the carrying amount of
the property at the date of transfer is included in the property
revaluation reserve, and will be transferred to retained earnings

upon the retirement or disposal of the relevant property.
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% & Bl £ il & & Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
—E-FE+-A=+—HILEE For the year ended 31st December 2020

“E-NF
2019
it FHET
Note HK$'000
REEBHERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
bR A B 1R Loss before tax (110,475) (335,696)
AT EIEMIERE - Adjustments for:
&N Finance costs 250 408
MEHA Interest income (88,318) (92,173)
B B A Dividend income (775) (1,344)
BRI Amortisation of film rights 964 1,747
MmE - BBERRERTE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 13,025 14,019
HH-FNEARZET Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary (764) -
BAEBZEH Gain on reassessment of lease term (108) -
BEREYmELEHERREESE Impairment loss recognised in respect of
film rights - 125,246
EREFETREY 2 OHEARERE  Impairment loss recognised in respect of
films in progress 26,384 10,275
BRmE BERFHEEBR Impairment loss recognised in respect of
HEEE property, plant and equipment 8,356 6,814
BEREKER 2 ERRREESE Impairment loss recognised in respect of
loan receivables - 873
AR e R EMER Impairment loss recognised in respect of
FEZERRAREBE deposits and other receivables 5,427 822
BEBRBEENATEEYEY Loss arising on change in fair value of
CREEZATEEEZD financial assets at fair value through profit
PEEZER or loss 97,204 183,582
EE—HRELEZER Share of result of a joint venture (2 270
FHRERER 2 EER Reversal of impairment loss recognised in
AERBEED respect of loan receivables (873) -
BEREHREWRT 2 D HBR Reversal of impairment loss recognised in
HEEEEED respect of trade receivables - (230)
WEME  RERZE Written off of property, plant and equipment 2,145 14
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4 & Bl £ i & & Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
—E-FF+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

Hret
Note

“E-NF
2019
FET
HK$'000

FEEM
MEFREM
SHEPEREN
BHRYSRTR D/ (1)
e BRAFER
HtRIER D/ (100)
el —EaEEFEEM
FEBRRALNTEEIRZ
EMEERD /()
EHRMAERCAD) /Em
BRI S  EEHER REM
& A SRIRR D

ZEMRARE
ENHRE

REXBHARERR

REXBZRERE

BEWREE

EUH B

BHEH

REMEBB=EAZEH
FRIE M

RREMEENT 2

BAME  BERREMAN R

HEBBEGURTEEIRZ

TREEMSIA
ARG R
B E R

REXBHBRERR

Operating cash flows before movements in

working capital
Increase in inventories
Increase in stock of properties
Increase in films in progress

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, prepayment

and other receivables

Increase in amount due from a joint venture
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss

(Decrease)/increase in trade payables
Decrease in deposits received, accruals and

other payables

Cash used in operations
Tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividend received
Interest received
Advance of loan

Increase in time deposits with original
maturities more than three months
Deposits paid for investment property
Payments for purchases of property,

plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Payments for entering new lease
Loan receivables received

Net cash generated from investing activities

(47,560) (85,373)
(27) (101)
(164,132) (501,832)
(425) (52,733)
1,087 (1,139)
11,573 (207,457)
(30) -
7,620 (43,450)
(55,541) 39,830
(4,346) (2,268)
(251,781) (854,523)
- (3)
(251,781) (854,526)
775 1,344
42,107 48,018
- (100,000)

(4) 3)
(33,430) -
(2,198) (11,257)
- 65

(576) -
200,000 100,000
206,674 38,167
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B=E

% & Bl £ il & & Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
—E-FE+-A=+—HILEE For the year ended 31st December 2020

—E-NE
2019
k=3 TAET
Note HK$'000
METH2HERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
BEARAE Interest paid (64,146) (37,131)
EIRNRE Dividend paid - (759,334)
ROEEZERE Proceeds from bank borrowings 263,730 1,030,150
BEHEARE Repayment of lease liabilities (5,269) (5,847)
BB Bl B 15 BT A5 7B Payment for repurchase of shares (141,107) (69,984)
METEMBHLSFE Net cash generated from financing activities 53,208 157,854
RERBRESEEREM, (AL) Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 8,101 (658,505)
RBEHN2HERBELSMEER Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the reporting period 497,748 1,156,466
MEEZEFH o TE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (2,399) (213)
ABREBRZRERELSMEER  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting period
Be RRITHER Cash and bank balances 29 503,450 497,748

BEM < MR BRI SRa B RER 2 — 7D -

consolidated financial statements.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
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i Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-_FF+-A=+—HILEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda and Unit 3409, Shun
Tak Centre, West Tower, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong respectively.

[ts ultimate parent is Heung Wah Keung Family
Endowment Limited which is equally owned by Mr.
Heung Wah Keung (“Mr. Heung”) and Ms. Chen Ming
Yin, Tiffany (“Ms. Chen”), spouse of Mr. Heung.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except otherwise
indicated.

The principal activities of the Group are investment,
production, distribution and licensing of films and
television drama series, provision of artist management
services, properties development and investment and

provision of catering services.
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#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1st January 2020
for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to Definition of a

HKFRS 3 Business
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Benchmark Reform

The application of the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards and the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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i Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—EF+=HA=1+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December 2020

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following

new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions*

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, - Phase 2°
HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 between an Investor and its
and HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current and

related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)'

Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment
HKAS 16 - Proceeds before Intended
Use?
Amendments to Onerous Contracts - Cost of
HKAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract?
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-20202

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st January 2022.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st January 2021.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st June 2020.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after a date to be determined.

The directors anticipate that the application of all
the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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4% & B % #t 3 Mt 5% Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

3.

TE

(a)

SEBRBE

RREX

AR BREDBEEESHAMREH
B2 BB RE LA MARE o BLALR
AMBHRRZENME  HWEEHATAE
EHeYEIE2EMAEMELNRE A
BREHBRRENRN - I AEAH
HEREEBRAES LTHRA (TLETR
AN REBERAGIZHERERRZ
ERBEEAR -

RUERGEMBHRRE EXFEHEAE
HRARARRAEEFRAERITES
& Al BRENREARAMBERE
BERMNSTLOBESEEE -

A ERBHRREBELRAREERE
RN EBEPRZATEEFENET
SET ARSI - HRTXEI &R

EERE—BUEARRERBEZ RE
AT EEAEE -

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of
presentation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material
if such information is reasonably expected to
influence decisions made by primary users. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The directors have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured
at fair values at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.
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3.

TE

(a)
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted
at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure
fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.
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BE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

3.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level
1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs
for the asset or liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;
° is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the

investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns.



ANNUAL REPORT 2020 44 ® CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED th 2 B G IR A a)

4 A W B it 3% B 5 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to
give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it
power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion
of holdings of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.
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#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests

having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally

recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions,
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed must meet the definitions of an
asset and a liability in the Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in

October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are

recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and
assets or liabilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee

Benefits respectively;
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Business combinations (Continued)

liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date (see the accounting
policy below);

assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that
standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and
measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments (as defined in
HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except
for leases for which (a) the lease term
ends within 12 months of the acquisition
date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as
the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to
reflect favourable or unfavourable terms
of the lease when compared with market
terms.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
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#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-FTFE+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units (the “CGU”) (or group
of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU
(or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any
of the CGU within the group of CGUs, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of
an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within
a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill
disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the CGU)
disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the
group of CGUs) retained.
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3.

i Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-_FF+-A=+—HILEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Interest in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint
venture are incorporated in these financial
statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of joint
venture used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
Under the
equity method, an investment in a joint venture is

events in similar circumstances.

initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the joint venture. Changes in net assets of
the joint venture other than profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are not accounted
for unless such changes resulted in changes
in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of a joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture.
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3.

#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-FTFE+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Interest in a joint venture (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the
joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct goods or services.
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3.

#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-FTFE+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is

due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating
to the same contract are accounted for and
presented on a net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, the Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the customer,
at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the customer for more
than 12 months, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable,
discounting using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the
effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under the contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.
The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
does not adjust the consideration for any effects
of a significant financing component if the period
of financing is 12 months or less.

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sales of goods or the
provision of services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other

income recognition policies are as follows:

Artist management service income

The Group provides artist management
services by arranging for the provision of artist
services to counterparty under fixed-price
contracts. Artist management service income is
recognised in which the services are rendered.
Certain contracts include multiple performance
obligations and the transaction price of such
contract will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on the stand-alone selling
prices. Artist management service income is

recognised at a point in time.

Distribution fee income

The Group licenses of the distribution rights of
films and television drama series internationally
through its sales agent. Distribution fee income
is recognised when the Group’s entitlement to
such payments has been established which,
subject to the terms of the relevant agreements,
is usually upon the master materials have been
delivered or the sharing of the relevant revenue
have been reliably ascertained. Distribution fee

income is recognised at a point in time.

Revenue from restaurant operations

The Group recognises revenue from restaurant
operations which provides catering services.
Revenue from restaurant operations is
recognised at a point in time when the services

are rendered.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Consultancy fee income and management fee
income

Revenue from the consultancy and management
services are recognised over the scheduled
period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group.

Dividend income

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investments goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset.

Income from investment in film

Income from investment in film is recognised
when the Group’s entitlement to such payment
has been established, which is subject to the
terms of the relevant agreements.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application or arising
from business combinations, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of
the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which includes
both leasehold land and non-lease building
components, unless such allocation cannot be
made reliably.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-
alone prices.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option.

The Group also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on
a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and
° an estimate of costs to be incurred by

the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the site
on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term, upon exercising purchase options, the
carrying amount of the relevant right-of-use asset
is transferred to property, plant and equipment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in
“property, plant and equipment”, the same line
item within which the corresponding underlying
assets would be presented if they were owned.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option
if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.
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3.

#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-FTFE+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the related
right-of-use assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is
a change in the assessment of exercise
of a purchase option, in which case the
related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date
of reassessment; or

° the lease payments change due to
changes in market rental rates following
a market rent review/expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in
which cases the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount
rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as
a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one
or more underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases
by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remains outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended
use or sale is included in the general borrowing
pool for calculation of capitalisation rate
on general borrowings. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(M

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them
and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under
“Other revenue and other income”. Grants
relating to compensation of expenses are
deducted from the related expenses.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of
that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Employee benefits
Annual leave

Employee entitlement to annual leave is
recognised when it accrues to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees during the year. Employee
entitlements to maternity leave and sick leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses
when there is a contractual obligation and the
amount can be estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), pension fund
schemes and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are
held in separate trustee-administered funds.

105



106 CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED B E 4B BB 2 0] © ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4F#

4% & B % #t 3 Mt 5% Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

3.

TE

(k)

SEBRBME (&)

EBERA (&)

BIKEFEMF (&)

RERESHE  BEEXNEEHARRES
BREWA Z5%M T EIEH 50 R E
AT A BRI A30,000/8 T A HIE -
AREBZFEHFREER TS WIRIE
HEICRERERE -WEENREEZEE
REHRKZAEHE Rz H2EH
MR A LR 2 B -

AREZMBRA/RMIZAERERR
VERBEHGE o EREFGEHBLE
BRARRIKEE - AEEBRE FIH7
EEAREZHZK -

HEREES
AEBEZ2REBC2EBFABIMNE
BESEE - B BABSSEERX
NEBEERAKEN - HR—REEEREE
HEMEH - BEREZAS AREMBA
BEEsHEREESHFT N EENER -
ARELAEERTEHRES  KEAHEK
SN+ U H A AHE -

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions
to the scheme are expensed as incurred are
vested in accordance with the scheme’s vesting
scales. Where employees leave the scheme prior
to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to
reduce the contributions payable by the Group.

The Group’s subsidiaries operate a defined
contribution scheme for eligible employees in
Macau. The defined contribution scheme is
established and managed by an independent
management company. Both the Group and
the employees make equal share of monthly
contributions to the scheme.

Social security fund

Full-time employees of the Group are covered
by a government-mandated defined contribution
plan pursuant to which a fixed amount of
retirement benefit would be determined and
paid by the Macau government. Contributions
are generally made by both employees
and employers by paying a fixed amount
on a monthly basis to the Social Security
Fund Contribution managed by the Macau
government. The Group funds the entire
contribution and has no further commitments
beyond its monthly contributions.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment expenses

Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity
under the heading of share-based payment
reserve. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in the profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options
reserve. For share options that vest immediately
at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to the
profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share-based payment reserve will be transferred
to retained earnings.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U}

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘loss before tax’ as reported in the consolidated
income statement because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interest in a
joint venture, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such
investments and interest are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U}

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and
the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are not recognised at initial recognition and
over the lease terms due to application of
the initial recognition exemption. Temporary
differences arising from subsequent revision to
the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement
of lease liabilities and lease modifications, that
are not subject to initial recognition exemption
are recognised on the date of remeasurement or
modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same
taxation authority.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U}

(m)

Taxation (Continued)
Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible
assets that are held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to
the profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of the
property, plant and equipment, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

111



Ji2

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED th B2 Bl B BB 2 0] e ANNUAL REPORT 2020 “F#t

4% & B % #t 3 Mt 5% Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

3.

TE

(m)

SEBRBME (&)

M- BERRE(E)
ARBEpMEzAAREES (BREEL
WRBFRD)NRE  2BRERNEE
T RABEFT KD 2 IR 156 HE R B 4 18R
RFEEZEPIDE - HHRMREE S
HfEH DB - E L2 B TR ERE B
BMRRARZIIRYE  BIRREETZ
ERAREERE WMRAEELIEHBEAE L
ZIFHEBFRO RAD B mE A St
NEE - A2EMEIBR/NE HER
R o

TETDABHEE ZKARKE 2 FHE
EREMHERFHMUNE LT IARER
et A ERFH  FREERFTETER
BEREHRRT U B WEETAE
B ERRAK-

FEFERMT :

BF 2%-5%
HEWHEEE 20%-33%
AE L bigich:
HEmE % 7 57

R RERRE 10%-50%

RE 15%-20%

ME BERREEARLERHEHRA
KT eEREEREERSEEN SR
RILHER - A% BERREBALE
HEHMEL ZEMEMKERREER
BRREZEERAEEZEZ®E  YNES
R o

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To
the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interests in leasehold
land is presented as right-of-use assets under
line item of property, plant and equipment in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated
reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as
property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

The principal annual rates are as follows:
2%—-5%

20%-33%
Over the lease term

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Leasehold land

Over the lease term
10%-50%

Leased properties
Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles 15%-20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

i Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-_FF+-A=+—HILEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Film rights

Film rights represent films and television drama
series produced by the Group or acquired by
the Group. Film rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. The Group begins
amortisation of the capitalised costs of film
rights when a film is released and it begins to

recognise revenue from that film.

The Group reviews and revises estimates of total
projected revenue and total production costs of
film rights at the end of each reporting period.
If estimates are revised, the Group adjusts the
amount of total projected revenue from the
period when such changes in estimates take
place and re-calculated the ratio for amortisation
of film rights. The effect from changes in
estimates is recognised on a prospective basis.

Amortisation expense is charged to profit or loss
based on the proportion of actual income earned
during the year to the total estimated income
from the sale of film rights. The amortisation of
film rights will not exceed twenty years. In the
case where there is any impairment in value, the
carrying amount is written down to its estimated
recoverable amount.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal
and external market information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication that
film rights are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are
assessed and where relevant, an impairment
loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
estimated recoverable amount. Such impairment

losses are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

Films in progress

Films in progress represents films and televisions
drama series under production and is stated
at cost at the date incurred, less any identified
impairment losses. Cost includes all costs
associated with the production of films including
remuneration for the film director, casts and
production crew, costumes, insurance, makeup
and hairdressing as well as rental of camera
and lighting equipment. Films in progress
is transferred to film rights when the film is
released.

At the end of each reporting period, both
internal and external market information are
considered to assess whether there is any
indication that films in progress are impaired. If
any such indication exists, the carrying amounts
of such assets are assessed and where relevant,
an impairment loss is recognised to reduce
the asset to its recoverable amount. Such
impairment losses are recognised in the profit or
loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an asset individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant CGU when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU or group of
CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of CGUs.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a
group of CGUSs) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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3.

i Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-_FF+-A=+—HILEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

("

Stock of properties

Stock of properties, which are held for trading,
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost and net realisable value are
determined as follows:

Properties under development held for sale

The costs of properties under development
held for sale comprises specifically identified
costs including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, borrowing
costs capitalised, material and supplies, wages,
other direct expenses and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to the sale proceeds of
properties sold in ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion, or by
management estimates based on prevailing

marketing conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are
determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as cost of
sales in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as cost of
sales or administrative expenses as appropriate
in the period the write-down or loss occurs as
appropriate. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is offset against the
cost of sales in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest and dividend income which are derived
from the financial assets and shareholders’
rights are presented as other revenue and other
income.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the date of
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that are required to be
measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other revenue and other income” line item.
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3.

#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-FTFE+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on
financial assets (including loan to a director,
investment in film, trade receivables, deposit
paid, other receivables, amount due from a joint
venture, loan receivables, time deposits and
bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting period to reflect changes in

credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting period.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting period as
well as the forecast of future conditions.
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3.

i Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-_FF+-A=+—HILEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables. The ECL on these trade
receivables are assessed individually for debtors
with significant balances.

For all other instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood
or risk of a default occurring since initial

recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting period with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that

is available without undue cost or effort.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

. significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; or

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available,
the financial instruments are grouped on the
following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group’s trade and other receivables and
amounts due from customers are each
assessed as a separate group. Loans to
related parties are assessed for ECL on
an individual basis);

o Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as financial liabilities or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Financial liabilities (including bank borrowings,
lease liabilities, trade payables, deposits
received, accruals and other payables
(excluding receipt in advance) and amounts due
to non-controlling interests) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at
the date when derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
the profit or loss.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short
term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision, including
those arising from the contractual obligation
specified in the service concession arrangement
to maintain or restore the infrastructure before
it is handed over to the grantor, is the best
estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised
as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Related party transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group

if:

(a)

A person, or a close member of that

person’s family, is related to the Group if

that person:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the
other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;

135



136 CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED thEl E 4B BB 2 0] © ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4F#

4 A W B it 3% B 5 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

3.

TEEHRRBE(ZF)

(x)

BEALXRS (F)
(b)  MEKTERGEER  RIXE
BHEASEHRE: (&)

(v) ZiEEARNEBEKEAE
BEHMEC AR EER
T MR8 L 2 BE B 18 1R R ET

£l

(viy ZEERW(FMERE
i A TR Bl s R BT H]

(i) (Q()FT#EBl 2 B ATH
ZEBBEEATENL
RzEE (ZER 28
PR ZEEERBABYZ
BB 3k

o

\

(viii) ZERREMBEE TR
RERAIMASERAE
BEARREHRIZEEEA
&R -

BEALZHAFEER  RBIAES
B XHWREREEALRS  MAE
BEREWE -

I B

RUALZBREFGKE SEZERET
RGERBAEFEZALTEARZALE
BIAERGKE -

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Related party transactions (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any

of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity);
or

the entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group or
to the Group’s parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of
resources, services or obligations between the
Group and a related party, regardless of whether
a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those
family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.
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i Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-_FF+-A=+—HILEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The followings are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Classification of Sparkle Star Entertainment Limited
(“Sparkle Star”) as a joint venture

Sparkle Star is a limited liability company whose legal
form confers separation between the parties to the joint
arrangements and the company itself. Furthermore,
there are no contractual arrangements or any other
facts and circumstances that specify that the parties
to the joint arrangements have rights to the assets and
obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangements.
Accordingly, Sparkle Star is classified as a joint venture
of the Group.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Control over Over Profit International Limited (“Over
Profit”) and its subsidiaries (“Over Profit Group”)

The directors assessed whether or not the Group has
control over on Over Profit Group based on whether
the Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of Over Profit Group unilaterally. In making
the judgement, the directors considered the Group’s
absolute size of holding in Over Profit Group and the
relative size of and dispersion of the shareholdings
owned by other shareholders. After assessment, the
directors concluded that the Group has sufficiently
dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities
of Over Profit Group and the Group has control over on
Over Profit Group.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments under
Level 3 fair value hierarchy

Certain of the Group’s financial assets classified as
FVTPL under Level 3 fair value hierarchy amounting
to HK$65,552,000 at 31st December 2020 (2019:
HK$91,852,000) are measured at fair values with fair
values being determined based on unobserved inputs
using valuation techniques. Judgement and estimation
are required in establishing the relevant valuation
techniques and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes
in assumptions relating to these factors could affect
the reported fair values of these instruments. See note
5 to the consolidated financial statements for further
disclosures.

Provision of ECL for financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for ECL individually.
The provision rates are based on the Group’s historical
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL are disclosed
in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-FTFE+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at costs
less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if
any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the
Group has to exercise judgment and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in estimating the recoverable amounts
including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
the assets belong. Changing the assumptions and
estimates, including the discount rates or the growth
rate in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test.

Impairment of film rights

Impairment assessments on film rights are performed
at the end of each reporting period with reference
to both internal and external market information, for
example, sales forecast based on expected popularity
of the respective titles, the expected production, sales
and distribution costs to be reviewed to conclude
the sales, and the general economic condition of the
relevant markets. Changes in assumptions used in
this assessment, including the forecasted revenue,
may result in additional provision being made in the
consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of films in progress

Impairment assessments on films in progress are
performed at the end of each reporting period. The
recoverable amounts are determined with reference to
sales forecast and expected production and distribution
cost. Changes in assumptions used in this assessment,
including the forecasted revenue, may result in
additional provision being made in the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, the Group carries out
review on each film at the end of each reporting period
and makes impairment for any films in progress which
no longer proceeds.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining provision for taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises tax liabilities based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
year in which such determination is made.

Estimated net realisable value on properties under
development classified as stock of properties

In determining whether allowances should be made for
the Group’s properties under development, the Group
considers the current market and the estimated market
value (i.e. the estimated selling price less estimated
costs of selling expenses) less estimated costs to
completion of the properties. An allowance is made if
the estimated market value is less than the carrying
amount. If the actual net realisable value on properties
under development is less than expected as a result of
change in market condition and/or significant variation
in the budgeted development cost, may result in
material provision for impairment loss.
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5. QEQIE\_ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) SBMIAEH: (a) Categories of financial instruments:
—E-NF
2019
FETT
HK$'000
EREE Financial assets
BBIEEARFEEYEZ Financial assets at FVTPL
ERMEE 208,460 313,284
B AR AN Amortised cost 1,600,821 1,733,994
ok = Financial liabilities
B AR AN Amortised cost 1,908,299 1,711,265
(b) SREBEEASREX (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies
$%I$E/\Eﬂlﬂﬁ%}g{ﬁ%—%% The Group’s major financial instruments

E2EF -BERRE BEHEUENR -
DEMZS - HiEURRIE L}a?ﬁﬁ
RFEEINGEZ2RHAE BR—HA
BhERIE - BRER  EHER  R1T
B HEAE EHEMER  BlUR
% EETTEA REMEMNKE  RITEE
REMFEEREZZE AEERLHMIA
ZHBREAVBRRE@AMNTRE -

HMZESR TARBNERRSIET SRR
(WEJ—L B RABRRERRFERR) -
EERBEABESRR - MWEMZE
J—L&Zﬂlﬁ%@ﬂﬁﬂ? cEREERREE

ZER L ARER LA RO IR B E R
1 °

include loan to a director, investment in film,
trade receivables, partial deposits paid, other
receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, amount
due from a joint venture, loan receivables, time
deposits, bank balances, lease liabilities, trade
payables, deposits received, accruals and
other payables, bank borrowings and amounts
due to non-controlling interests. Details of the
financial instruments for the Group are disclosed
in respective notes to the consolidated financial

statements.

The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (foreign
exchange risk, equity price risk and interest rate
risk),
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.

credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies

The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

There has been no change to the types of

the Group’s exposure in respect of financial

instruments or the manner in which it manages

and measures the risks.

Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong,
Macau, Netherlands. The Republic of
China (“Taiwan”) and The People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and majority
of transactions are denominated in HKS$,
US dollar (“US$"), Macau Pataca (“MOP”),
Euro (“EUR”), New Taiwan Dollar (“NT$")
and Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities, which are denominated in
a currency that is not the functional
currency of the group entities.

The Group is not exposed to material
foreign exchange risk exposure in respect
of HK$ against US$ and MOP as long as
these currencies are pegged. Therefore
US$ and MOP are excluded from the
analysis below.

The transactions and monetary assets
denominated in EUR and NT$ is minimal,
the Group considers there has no material
foreign exchange risk exposure in respect
of EUR and NT$. Therefore, EUR and NT$
are excluded from the analysis below.
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5.

@@I =1 (/f/éé 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) SREREBEERBEKE) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
TR (&) Market risk (Continued)
(i) S)E JE % (4B) (i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
REREHR  AEEAARE At the end of each reporting period,
GEDEEEB) SHECEBEER the carrying amounts of the monetary
BEZEEBENT assets and liabilities of the Group, which
are denominated in RMB, that is not the
functional currency are as follows:
=R BE
Liabilities Assets
—E-NF —E-hF
2019 2019
FHEIT FHEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
AR RMB 76,968 87,401 156,621 144,787

RS BRI EH S SN EHE
REERBEMNINEEREE -
ERERTIEREINERR
WA BB E B E RSN

& o
A

The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy
in respect of assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency. The
management will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's
sensitivity to a 5% increase and
decrease in HK$ against RMB. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used which represents
management’'s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates a decrease in post-
tax loss where HK$ weaken 5% against
RMB. For a 5% strengthening of HK$
against RMB, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the loss and the
number below would be negative.

—ZE-NF
2019
FHEIT
HK$'000

WMETTH AR EER5% If HK$ strengthens against
RMB by 5% (3,326) (2,396)

WMETH AR EEH5% If HK$ weakens against

RMB by 5% 3,326 2,396

EEERRZHREDN AR
FEBIERR  AREREH
RZBBRTRBRERZER

Management considered the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign exchange risk as the
exposure at the end of each reporting
period does not reflect the exposure
during the years.
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5.

#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-FTFE+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk through its investments in equity
securities measured at FVTPL. For equity
securities measured at FVTPL quoted
in the Stock Exchange, the directors
manage this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different
risks. In addition, the Group also invested
in equity security listed in the Stock
Exchange without quoted market price.
The management has monitored the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been
determined based on the exposure
to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period. Sensitivity analysis
for equity security listed in the Stock
Exchange without quoted market price
with fair value measurement categorised
within Level 3 fair value hierarchy were
disclosed as below.

If the prices of the listed equity securities
with quoted market price had been 5%
(2019: 5%) higher/lower,
loss for the year ended 31st December

the post-tax

2020 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$5,966,000 (2019:
HK$9,245,000) as a result of the changes
in fair value of listed equity securities
under Level 1 fair value hierarchy
classified as FVTPL.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

At 31st December 2020 and 2019, the
Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank borrowings obtained for financing
construction project in Macau. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) arising
from the Group’s HK$ denominated bank
borrowings. The Group aims at keeping
borrowings at variable rates. The Group
manages its interest rate exposures by
assessing the potential impact arising
from any interest rate movements based
on interest rate level and outlook. The
management will review the proportion of
borrowings in floating rates and ensure
they are within reasonable range.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of each reporting
period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 25 basis points increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. If interest
rates had been 25 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s interests capitalised
to stock of properties for the year ended
31st December 2020 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$3,235,000
(2019: HK$2,575,000).
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to loan to a director, investment in film, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables,
amount due from a joint venture, loan
receivables, time deposits and bank balances.
At 31st December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk, which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties arising from the carrying amounts
of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements to cover its credit
risks associated with its financial assets, except
that the credit risks associated with loan to a
director is mitigated because loan to a director
is secured by way of a share charge over the
entire issued share capital of Reform Base
Holdings Limited (“Reform Base”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI”) and wholly owned by Ms. Chen.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on financial assets individually or
based on provision matrix. In this regard, the
directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group applies simplified approach to
measure lifetime ECL for trade receivables on
an individual basis. The directors assessed
customers’ ability to settle the receivables
based on historical observed default rates.
Trade receivables with gross carrying amount
of HK$290,000 (2019: HK$1,377,000) are due
from customers that have good track record
with the Group, the directors conclude that
there is no significant change in credit quality
and no impairment loss is recognised. The
expected loss rate for trade receivables with
gross carrying amount of HK$640,000 (2019:
HK$963,000) which were considered as credit-
impaired is 100% (2019: 100%). During the year
ended 31st December 2020, no impairment
loss was recognised (2019: impairment loss of
HK$230,000 was reversed).

The Group assessed the ECL for deposits and
other receivables individually. The expected
loss rate was determined by reference to past
default experience and have been adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors that affecting the
ability of settlement. The directors conclude that
there is no significant increase in credit risk of
these amounts since initial recognition and the
Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL.
The expected average loss rate for deposits and
other receivables is 0.91% (2019: 0.13%). During
the year ended 31st December 2020, impairment
loss of HK$5,427,000 (2019: HK$822,000) was
recognised.

The Group assessed the ECL for loan
receivables individually. The directors make
periodic assessment on the recoverability of loan
receivables on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. For the year ended
31st December 2019, the expected average loss
rate for loan receivables was 0.44%. During the
year ended 31st December 2020, impairment
loss of HK$873,000 was reversed (2019:
impairment loss of HK$873,000 was recognised).
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5.

#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-FTFE+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group had advanced a loan to a director
and considered the credit risk is limited since
the borrower has an appropriate credit history
and good reputation. The directors monitored
the financial background and creditability of the
borrower on an ongoing basis.

The Group regularly monitors the business
performance of the joint venture. The Group’s
credit risks in these balances are mitigated
through the power to participate or jointly
control the relevant activities of the entity. The
management believes that there is no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition. For the year ended 31st
December 2020, the Group assessed the ECL for
amount due from a joint venture is insignificant
and thus no impairment loss was recognised.

The Group actively monitors the outstanding
amounts owed by each debtor and uses past
due information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

The Group deposited time deposits and bank
balances with approved and reputable banks.
Bankruptcy or insolvency of the banks may
cause the Group’s right with respect to time
deposits and bank balances held to be delayed
or limited. The directors monitor the credit
rating of these banks on an ongoing basis, and
consider that the Group’s exposure to credit risk
at 31st December 2020 and 2019 were minimal.

At 31st December 2020,
concentration of credit risk as 100% (2019:

the Group has

100%) of investment in film was due from a
production house.
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5.

EWMIR(E
(b) SEERESDEEREE(E)
FBES AR

AGEBBERARRESMASEFER
B EERANERRERENLEAS
MEELEBRAEE IMEEER  BUHE
ERBETER

EREREEERDESRR - AR
EEINPHAREZBEHZRBEERRZ
HEEEHRMERERANMEM VB
B EEESEMRITEE Y EETR

o

R-ZF-FFE+=-A=+-RB %
SENSHBEMABAZETREESE
/306,120,000 L (ZF — AL & -
569,850,000/ 7T) °

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate cash and cash equivalents, monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring
by the management. Reports with maturity
dates of bank borrowings and thus the liquidity
requirements are provided to management for
review periodically. Management will raise or
refinance bank borrowings whenever necessary.

At 31st December 2020, the Group has available
unutilised banking facilities of HK$306,120,000
(2019: HK$569,850,000).
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5.

EMIA(E
(b) SEERESDEEREEE)

nBEEmE (&)

TRIRAEE ZFETESBAEBZFER
ARHRFER - ZFXRRDERAKEER
FEX Mz &FHBRBESRAGBZ R
RATRERR - FTESRABZEHY
ATABEERA P RELERSR -

TRAKBERBRESRERE o WF
BREAIHNE  BREBEENER
BEHR 2 FIEGY -

5.

(b)

METH
ERAE
Weighted
average
effective rate
%

%

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table shows details of the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The maturity dates for non-derivative financial
liabilities are prepared based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting

period.
RERH Ba-% AERRS
R-%R BHREF BENE REST REESH
On demand  More than 1 Total Total
or within  year but less Over undiscounted carrying
1year than 5 years 5years  cash flows amount

TiEn FiEn TiEn TEn TR
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W-B-Z£+-A=+-H At31st December 2020

ETER AN Non-derivative financial
liabilities

BARRER Trade payables

BlEES  EHER R Deposits received, accruals
AR and other payables

HEaRE Lease liabilities

BOEE Bank borrowings

EREERERTE Amounts due to

non-controlling interests

@it Total

2.67
3.89

22,7110 - - 22,7110 22,7110
82,908 - - 82,908 82,908
4,785 983 - 5,768 5,685
35,589 1,344,228 - 1,379,817 1,293,880
503,116 - - 503,116 503,116
649,108 1,345,211 - 1,994,319 1,908,299
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5. €@ IE (& 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) SREREBEERBEK(E) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
REELER (&) Liquidity risk (Continued)

il 28 EP L BR-F AMERE
BRANE R—Em  EIREE AENE RESH  REERH
Weighted ~ On demand ~ More than 1 Total Total
average or within  year but less Over  undiscounted carrying

effective rate year than 5 years 5years  cash flows amount

% TR TERL TERL TERL TEL
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

WZE-NET-F=1—H At31st December 2019

HiEeRak Non-derivative financial liabilities
EVLLES Trade payables - 78,251 - - 78,251 78,251
BUEES  EHEAR Deposits received, accruals

AR A and other payables - 87,254 - - 87,254 87,254
HEEE Lease liabilities 27 5,651 7,220 - 12,871 12,494
RITRE Bank borrowings 562 1,088,074 - - 1088074 1,080,150
EfFERRERNE Amounts due to

non-controlling interests - 503,116 - - 503,116 503,116

@t Total 1,762,346 7,220 1,769,566 1,711,265
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5.

EMIA(E
(€ SBIAZATMEE

et R FEERN  AEERERATSA
BRBE  RERBE - FREABE
B AREEZREBEYAERMGEMET
hE EEEEZAERIMNEGEEMER
ABfF BMUEERERMEZEX 28 A
B EEHEREREPRAEFERH
MER  URBEEATEERDZRA -

TRENAEH Z BT ARNRE HIRR
BRELEEFBCAVEE  BAAFE
EREA=BATEERR (ERRER
MBRELENEIBRAFEEFE) - R
FEEFEMBAZBRIZZ G ERM
EMzBABBZAIBREREREM
EE BT

. F-ERMHE ATEEERA
F-FRBABEE ARG
ERHRAEEXABENEEMS
ZAREFHERE

. F_ERMHE-ATEERASE
ZERBAZE (DRTEE—F
BZABRBABE) FTERTE
REETUBEEGARE T
BRAa A NBESTAESTS R
BZBARE &

. E-FRHE- AFEEERR
ETABRBAREAE -

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages independent
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model.
The management reports the findings to the
directors at the end of each reporting period to
explain the cause of fluctuations in fair value of
the asset.

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 valuations: fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are input for which
market data are not available; and

o Level 3 valuations: fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.
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5. QEQIE\_ (/{éé 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) EMIBECAFEE(E) (c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
£-44 F-ER F=EH @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
TER TERT TERL TERT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
RZB-ZFF+=-A=1+—H At 31st December 2020
BEENEEZNFER Fair value on a recurring basis
EBEZULTEMESKZ  Financial assets at FVTPL
SREE
~HERB LM RAES - Equity securities listed in
Hong Kong 142,908 - 2,642 145,550
—REF-REEZEHAN - Call option embedded in
ez R g loan to a director - - 62,910 62,910
142,908 - 65,552 208,460
RZZE—NF+-A=1+—H At31st December 2019
BEEMEEZ N FIRE Fair value on a recurring basis
EBREHUATEMGYEY  Financial assets at FVTPL
—HABLTZRAES - Equity securities listed in
Hong Kong 221,432 - 4,059 225,491
- RHF-REEZERAN - Call option embedded in
fra v AR EE loan to a director - 87,793 87,793
221,432 - 91,852 313,284
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5.

#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
into and out of fair value hierarchy levels at
the end of the date of the events or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

On 27th November 2017, one of the Group’s
equity securities listed in Hong Kong classified
as financial assets at FVTPL was suspended
trading, therefore, no unadjusted quoted price
in an active market is available. The Group
measured fair value of suspended trading
security by reference to the valuation carried out
by Graval Consulting Limited in which fair value
was measured by using significant unobservable
inputs and was reclassified as Level 3 category.

During the years ended 31st December 2020
and 2019, there were no transfers between Level
1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.

The following table presents the changes in
financial assets at FVTPL which are classified
as Level 3 category for the years ended 31st
December 2020 and 2019:

FHET

HK$'000

RZE—NF—A—H At 1st January 2019 222,921
BBEBEZEARATFEBEINERESMEEY Loss arising on change in fair value of

NP EBEEHEL ZERE financial assets at FVTPL (131,069)

RZE-NE+_A=+—HEK At 31st December 2019 and

RN-ZZE-ZTF—HF—H at 1st January 2020 91,852
%ﬁiﬂ EmAATEBEVEC EMEE Y Loss arising on change in fair value of

FEEZHELEEIE financial assets at FVTPL (26,300)

R-B-ZEF+=-H=+—H At 31st December 2020 65,552



ANNUAL REPORT 2020 44 ® CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED th 2 B G IR A a)

4% & M % #t 3 Mt 5% Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

5. €I A(&E
(c) EMIBECAFEE(E)

EHFEF=SRAFEBTEZEHN

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

BEATEE
L E R BAHE BETTERBAYBEATEEZHE
Significant Relation of significant
Valuation unobservable unobservable
techniques input inputs to fair value
RET-ZBEZER “EAHE EBEERBE EHEEBEERREERIATEENS
Az REDNE EEER REEEBE
Call option Binomial option Underlying The underlying asset value is positively correlated to
embedded in pricing model asset value the fair value measurement of the call option
loan to a director
EHRE ERREERREE A TERHEFEEERE
Expected The expected volatility is positively correlated to the
volatility fair value measurement of the call option

EREEER M5
FWES

Suspended trading Market
security listed in approach
Hong Kong

BEROREEES620% BROGELRTEEEEFELIMESFZATEE
(ZZ—NE:4244%) HEGELEBEF

Holding return basis of ~ The holding return basis is positively correlated to

negative 56.29% the fair value measurement of the suspended
(2019: 42.44%) trading security listed in Hong Kong
MR RHEE13.09 TREARGRECHEERE L TESCATEE

(ZE-n%:4812) FHEFELEHE
Price-to-earning basis of The price-to-earning basis is positively correlated
13.09 (2019: 48.12) to the fair value measurement of the suspended
trading security listed in Hong Kong

IR ET2.36% FREREEEERRELMESCATEEME
(ZZ—NF :74.29%) FEABBE
Discount rate of 72.36% The discount rate is negatively correlated to the fair
(2019: 74.29%) value measurement of the suspended trading
security listed in Hong Kong
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the
management works closely with Graval
Consulting Limited to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model.
The management reports the findings to the
directors at the end of each reporting period to
explain the cause of fluctuations in fair value of
the asset.

Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the above fair value
are disclosed above.

Binomial option pricing model is used for
valuation for the call option component. The
inputs into the model at 31st December 2020
and 2019 are as follows:

—ET-NF

2019

HEEEEE(TAERL) Underlying asset value (HK$’000) 465,615 469,568
1TEE (FE7T) Exercise price (HK$'000) 500,000 500,000
T8 HA K 18 (%) Expected volatility (%) 41.45 32.22
% B W2 (%) Dividend vyield (%) AERA N/A NiE A N/A
BARER WE (4F) Option life (years) 1.27 2.27
42 [ B8 1) 2R (%) Risk free rate (%) 0.08 1.72

BRATFEEBRZE-SHPEEREET
—HESZERAMEZRABPEZAT
EEFE  WHEBAAEEERERREY
MR 5% BT A H it B BRI E
ARETF - ZEE2ERAMEZRER
B EREE RS 6 43,146,000
TL(ZF— L4 : 4,390,000/ L) °

For fair value measurements of call option
embedded in loan to a director in Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy, a 5% increase/
decrease in the underlying asset value and
expected volatility holding all other variables
constant would increase/decrease the carrying
amount of the call option embedded in loan to a
director by approximately HK$3,146,000 (2019:
HK$4,390,000).
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

For fair value measurements of suspended
trading security listed in Hong Kong in Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy, a 5% increase/
decrease in the holding return basis and price-
to-earning basis and 5% decrease/increase in
discount rate holding all other variables constant
would increase/decrease the carrying amount
of the suspended trading security listed in Hong
Kong by approximately HK$132,000 (2019:
HK$203,000).

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

Except as disclosed below, the carrying amounts
of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at
31st December 2020 and 2019:

—g-%F —E-NF
2020 2019

REE ~TEE

Carrying Fair

amount value

FET FHETT

HK$'000 HK$’000

RBIEF—REEZEZEFH  Loan to a director 420,504 463,252 369,974 413,923

RAFEEBREHRT REFZERD
REBEIBR/F=FMER  HENEL
BAREREOMREERMZEEBRN
EE ERBEHARBEAFTRETRK
RAEARBREREBLUERTAMERNE
& o

The fair value of loan to a director is classified
as Level 3 category in fair value hierarchy
which has been determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most
significant inputs being the discount rate that
reflects the return required by the holder for
investing in similar financial instrument.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
net debts (which includes bank borrowings and
lease liabilities) and equity attributable to owners
of the Company (comprising share capital and
reserves).

The Group is not subject to any external imposed
capital requirements.

Gearing ratio

The directors review the capital structure
on annual basis. As part of this review, the
directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on the recommendations of the directors
of the Company, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through payment of
dividends, issue of new shares or repurchase of
existing shares as well as issue of new debts or
redemption of existing debts.
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5. €@ TR (/f/ég 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) EXEHE#E) (d)  Capital management (Continued)
BEESERF(E) Gearing ratio (Continued)
AEEEEHRFEEABLXTBA The Group aimed at maintaining a gearing ratio
50% c RImEHRZEEBRLENT ¢ of not more than 50%. The gearing ratio at the

end of the reporting period was as follows:

—E-NE

2019

FHET

HK$'000

BER (W) Total debts (Note) 1,299,565 1,042,644
B EHETUERRER Less: time deposits and cash and bank

RITH B balances (503,726) (498,020)

B 55 Net debt 795,839 544,624

/NG RPN Equity attributable to owners of the Company 3,435,914 3,687,539

(EUGOE R R s Net debt to equity ratio 23% 15%

BEBHERL X Total debts to equity ratio 38% 28%

K BEREEHEaGREFTES Note: Total debts comprises lease liabilities and

BRI RERE I B REM 31 %34 - bank borrowings as detailed in notes 31 and

34 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.
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#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-FTFE+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”),
for the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments and that are
used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has three reportable segments - film related
business operations, property development and
investment operations and restaurant operations. The
segmentations are based on the information about the
operations of the Group that management uses to make
decisions.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that operate different activities. They are managed
separately because each business has different
markets and requires different marketing strategies.

Particulars of the Group’s reportable segments are
summarised as follows:

Film related - Investment, production,
business distribution and licensing of
operations films and television drama

series and provision of other
film related services including
artist management services

Property — Investment and development of

development properties
and investment
operations

Restaurant — Provision of catering services

operations through a restaurant



w5 B R R

BEZ

6.

T—

= —=

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 44 © CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED thEl 2 B B R A ol

TEER (&) 6.

BRAZESRERBZORERZ5IMT

()

FEMEEETRE D 2 RBERERDT

i Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
THE+=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment information about these operations is

presented as below:

(a)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating segments

A ENE pEEL
Segment revenue Segment results
3 ZE-nE
2019 2019
TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EYRBEREREE Film related business operations 3,647 6,466 (28,900) (169,199)
NERBRREEEER Property development and investment
operations - - (24,153) (14,071)
ZELEER Restaurant operations 1,379 587 (3,116) (4,083)
5,026 7,053 (56,169) (187,353)
PEEEERKABEZHE Reconciliation from segment
results to loss before tax
AABEERA Unallocated corporate income 88,578 87,517
FEEHNATEEYEZ  Loss arising on change in fair value of
SREEZATEEEE  financial assets at FVTPL
MEEZER (97,204) (183,582)
EIR—RABLE2EE  Share of result of a joint venture 2 (270)
RAREEET Unallocated corporate expenses (45,682) (52,008)
BEAEE Loss before tax (110,475) (335,696)
Xz BWEEREINATRZ Segment revenue reported above represents

Yas - MIEFEARBESBEHE -

DREBESOIBRERDEEIADED
%%ﬁi‘iJlﬁTZ?@ﬁBﬁﬂlﬁ-ﬁi CBORE
RARBEMmEER% [ROREZE
HSZ/\JIET*B\HTMSZm&EPM&)\ b

BEGSARFEEINRZEREEZRT
EEEDMEEZERURESE-—B&aE
CEZEENMEAEZBERE - W ART
BRERREZREERD B RFHER
ZETETNE

revenue generated from external customers.
There were no inter-segment sales for both
years.

Segment results represent the loss suffered
by each segment without allocation of central
administrative expenses, partial finance costs,
and partial other operating expenses under the
heading of “unallocated corporate expenses”,
partial other revenue and other income under
the heading of “unallocated corporate income”,
loss arising on change in fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL and share of result of a joint
venture. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.
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6. ﬁiﬁﬁ*ﬁ} (/fég) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) AEEREESEE D 2 HBEMRRD M (b) An analysis of the Group’s financial position

by operating segments

—E-NEF
2019
AT
HK$’000
BE ASSETS
DIEEE Segment assets
—BYHBEREEEMR - Fim related business operations 643,497 660,535
— W EFIE LI B LG TS — Property development and
investment operations 3,467,790 3,234,065
— BB EER — Restaurant operations 7,603 7,071
DIEERT Total segment assets 4,118,890 3,901,671
IO EE Unallocated assets 1,224,681 1,496,535
5,343,571 5,398,206
—E-NEF
2019
FAT
HK$’000
=R LIABILITIES
DIEEE Segment liabilities
— B HBEBKLEET - Film related business operations 71,946 88,118
—ERERIEE KL ET — Property development and
investment operations 1,816,827 1,597,986
—BEREER - Restaurant operations 754 2,227
DIEBERTE Total segment liabilities 1,889,527 1,688,331
RKOBEE Unallocated liabilities 18,773 22,966

1,908,300 1,711,297
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6. DEEHR (&)

(b)

AEMREES RS 2 HBRR S
(&)
HRABERHEERD B LT EERME -

. FIBEENNETATRENE -
ERHT - RESZEFR R —
HeBtx#s HBOo%E B
MRIE R E AW R IE BB
SARFEBEIRZEREE
W —-—MAELENR BRE
K WMo RE RRITHE R AE
BEBTHBEZBOME K

HEHI R

. FEREDNNIETATHRENE
Ry ERiRE  EEFBRERE
N RERBYHER BRI

i Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

An analysis of the Group’s financial position
by operating segments (Continued)

For the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment between segments:

° all assets are allocated to reportable
segments, other than loan to a director,
interest in a joint venture, partial deposits,
prepayment and other receivables,
financial assets at FVTPL, amount due
from a joint venture, loan receivables,
partial cash and bank balances and
partial property, plant and equipment for
central administrative purposes; and

° all liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments, other than partial deposits
received, accruals and other payables
and partial lease liabilities.
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(c)

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

4% & B % #t 3 Mt 5% Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EE-EF+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

HthoBER (c)  Other segment information
BYRERROERE  DRMRRRESERM fEOEEE R &
Film related Property development and
business operations investment operations Restaurant operations Unallocated Consolidated
ZEE SR RN g E-pE
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
Thn TEn Thn Thn Tin
HK§ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
SATBAEREAIBREEZ  Amounts included in the measure of
B segment results or segment assets:
EYMERH Amortsaton offim rights 964 1747 - - - - - - 964 1747
EREE (Gain on reassessment of ease erm - - (108) - - - - - (108) -
% BRRRENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,082 1085 3,44 4161 1,688 612 A 8,161 13,025 14019
EEEYMECCEDAESE  Impaimentloss recognised in respect
of fim rights - 125,246 - - - - - - - 125,246
RERENSY2EED Impairment loss recognised in respect
nEEE of films in progress 26,384 10275 - - - - - - 26,384 0,275
BENE BERREL Impairment loss recognised in respect of
BRIAEEE property, plant and equipment - - 8,356 6,614 - - - - 8,356 6814
REERESZCBIAESE  Impaiment loss recognised in respect
of loan receivables - - - - - - - 873 - 873
BERSREMENZEZ  Impaimentloss recognised n respect
BRIHEER of deposis and other receivables 5,035 - - - - - 39 822 541 822
BEZSRNEHNZCED  Reversal of mpairment loss recognised in
HEGRRR respect of frade receivables - (230) - - - - - - - (230)
EWER Reversal of impairment logs recognised in
PEZiEERAE respect of oan receivables - - - - - - (673 - (673) -
WEnE BERGE Written off of property, plant and equipment - - 2142 - 3 - - 14 2145 14
RENE BERRE Additons to property, plant and equipment - 7 579 3799 2,182 73% 13 115 2714 11,267
EHRITEEARARE  Amounts regularly provided to
BRFAEABRES the CODM but not included in
ABEEZRE: the measure of segment results
or segment assets:
FHERA Bark nterest income 1,258 273 87 3,791 - - 1574 8016 NI TR
BZHEMA Loan interest income - - - - - - 84,599 77,589 84,599 71559
ERfBNA Other nerest incore - - - B - B . 0 . o
BRIT Finance costs - % 4 8 - - 26 m 20 40
Eli-BrEtirzE Share of result of a ot venture - - - - - - @ m ® m
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6.

TREER (E)

(d)

EREREFZEN

REEFEAERMARBEEHEERI0%A L
ZEPZWEMT

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(d)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding
years contributing over 10% of the total sales of
the Group is as follows:

—E-NF
2019
FAET
HK$’000

HERERREER Film related business operations
EEH Customer A - 794
BRZ Customer B 1,240 -

B EXARESN RMEFE  BEEM
EPERAEEWZEI0%HIA L

Except disclosed above, no other customers
contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue
for both years.
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6.

TREEFR (E)

(e)

TREFEB>)REIREP 2 Wz (i)
FRBDEE (TEERNFELEBTE)
ZHERZEMN FEEMEMRTIER
RERBIRXNERZAELR - FERE
BEZMAEMBDERZTEE C ARL
=,

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(e)

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about
geographical location of (i) revenue from external
customers and (ii) non-current assets (excluded
prepayment and financial instruments). The
geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided
or the goods delivered. The geographical
location of non-current assets is based on the
physical location of the assets.

FRBEE(FEE
REIREF 2 W E BANREAREHMIA)

Non-current assets

(excluded
Revenue from prepayment and
external customers financial instruments)
—ET-NF —E-hF
2019 2019
FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Hong Kong 1,450 752 127,628 145,015
Y P Macau - - 1,334 6,128
H The PRC 3,637 5,861 - 1
Hib Others 39 440 33,664 -

5,026 7,063 162,626 151,144
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7 LIQ é 7. REVENUE
PFREEFEHZ W Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers
INTEINEREFAN T MEB D EERPATE SR Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from
SRR contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in

the segment information.

—E-EF —E-NF

2020 2019

FE T FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETBIA Distribution fee income 3,576 4174
2 AEERBUEA Artist management service income 71 2,292
BEKEER Restaurant operations 1,379 587
HEEE 42 W Revenue from contracts with customers 5,026 7,053

—E-%F —F-NF
2020 2019
TERT THT

HK$’000 HK$'000

U 2 TE 3R 2 IR A M Timing of revenue recognition
(AR A point in time 5,026 7,053
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8.

H o g 28 e H 1 YL A

8. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

—ZE-NF
2019
FHET
HK$'000
B8 8 AR 75 U A Consultancy service income - 972
i S WA Dividend income 775 1,344
BT B A Bank interest income 3,719 14,544
BRFRLE B A Loan interest income 84,599 77,559
HAth F) B WA Other interest income - 70
EEBEWA Management fee income 30 390
BT Bh & (B 7) Government grants (Note) 444 _
- Rl L= /N) iy Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary 764 -
BRHEBZET Gain on reassessment of lease term 108 -
P& 5 5 A Foreign exchange gain 4,750 -
BEHRESRBEFRZ Reversal of impairment loss recognised in
B R R (B 5 18 o) respect of trade receivables - 230
FHEEREZRZEERRE Reversal of impairment loss recognised in
EE# D respect of loan receivables 873 -
HIEBA Sundry income 1,341 143
97,403 95,252

We: BE_T-TE+_A=+-BLFERN &

SEBE BB RRPIBAA R H 2 Covid-1948
28 470 B T SR KT 175 B © 444,000 7T ©

ME A

Note:

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the

Group recognised government grants of HK$444,000

in respect of Covid-19 related subsidies provided by

Hong Kong government and Macau government.

9. FINANCE COSTS

—ET-hF

2019

FAT

HK$'000

RITEEZF A Interests on bank borrowings 63,896 36,723
HEBEZFE Interests on lease liabilities 250 408
64,146 37,131

MEFTEZEREFE Interests capitalised to stock of properties (63,896) (36,723)
250 408
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BRBAEREME, (Gt A) THI&E :

10. LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax has been arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

i Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-_FF+-A=+—HILEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

—NF
2019
FHET
HK$'000
BRI (GFAEERA) Amortisation of film rights
(included in cost of sales) 964 1,747
% HAD BN & N E b AR A Auditors’ remuneration and other services:
AR B AZ BRD Auditors of the Company
—E5 IR — audit services 840 1,273
— IEBET RS - non-audit services 138 187
H 4% ZAm Other auditor - 282
978 1,742
DEFERA (GFAERA) Cost of inventories sold
(included in cost of sales) 387 251
ME  WBERREITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13,025 14,019
EBERMEZ (HiF14) Employee benefit expenses (note 14) 43,455 43,886
BRAESHEE 2RAX Expense relating to short-term leases 676 7
EREKBEEEZHE Expense relating to leases of low-value assets,
MY (FEEEEBEEEY excluding short-term leases of low-value
REHMEE) assets 98 95
B EZRE 2 ERRRBIE Impairment loss recognised in respect of film
BB (Gt AEMEERE) rights (included in other operating expenses) - 125,246
ERREREZ 22 HRRME Impairment loss recognised in respect of films
BiE(GtAEMEERE) in progress (included in other operating
expenses) 26,384 10,275
BREWME  HEREZEZ Impairment loss recognised in respect of
BRERREEE (FFA property, plant and equipment (included in
H&erY) other operating expenses) 8,356 6,814
BEBWER 2 B ERBIE Impairment loss recognised in respect of loan
B (FFAEMEERZ) receivables (included in other operating
expenses) - 873
Bk R EMERKIE Y Impairment loss recognised in respect of
BRI EEE (GTA deposits and other receivables
HEiphgEermYy) (included in other operating expenses) 5,427 822
FRERAANTEBEVEZ Loss arising on change in fair value of
CRMEEZATEEZS financial assets at FVTPL
FELZ BB 97,204 183,582
X Cafl) BiFE Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss (4,750) 261
BHEEFHEWERR Reversal of impairment loss recognised in
BRI EEEEE respect of trade receivables - (230)
BRRWERZEERRE Reversal of impairment loss recognised in
EiE R o respect of loan receivables (873) -
sy  HERERE Written off of property, plant and equipment 2,145 14
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11.

#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-FTFE+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

Fﬁ *}E}Eﬁ%/ 5 3'2 11. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)
—T-NF
2019
FHET
HK$'000

BEARR 18 - Current tax:

—BABNEH - Hong Kong Profits Tax - (32)
—FREMEMER - PRC Enterprise Income Tax - (3)
- (35)
FFHEERE Over-provision in prior year 32 -
32 (35)

RZF—-N\F= A= t—H ERUEERBE_
T—LEBRK (BT (B75R) RO ER (TZI&D)
BR]) SIANGHMRS - ZEPERR-F

—NFZAZF+NBREZBREXNEEXHL
RBBEFE - REBEMETMAS - 4EREBE
BEWE BB EF 5 128.25%H K& T - i
BRASBTAIK165%H BT - THAEHME
B s EBEBEEBHEEMNGDAKR
16.5% /) 5% — Bl BEFL

EERAEHRANEHMES TS REEYGZAD
BRELEDK - BENE B AWM EFE RIEF
JERFEF 216.5% & ©

HRAEERERESELRRATN SN ZER
m/ﬂaiﬁﬁkﬁm%ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ A0 4 T
HE-_Z-_ZF+_FB=1+—HBUEFEZHEF
\mwm%ﬁ

o B B B 2 A X R M 6 E P9 425 % B P B b X

{375t o SRPTHY /8 & ) 10 W {8 4F /2 15 9% ff 5t e
RBEM 2 &m BERE12%BRPIFS/H T

it o 17 B3 B /& 2 &) ¥ = BR200,0008K 7T HY FE 7 Uk
AZ20%EMMI TR - SR BIIR T R 25% 8 o

BEMBARABMEEDLER 1 E5120,000
HEBRERRKABRROER  MEBRA

120,000%7 & & A _F1#720% & F »

On 21st March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative
Council passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No.
7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law
on 28th March 2018 and was gazetted on the following
day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
for the year ended 31st December 2020 as the Group
has no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong or
taxable profits were wholly absorbed by estimated tax
losses brought forward.

The PRC subsidiaries are subject to the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax at 25% for both years. Macau
subsidiaries are subject to Macau Complementary
Tax at the maximum progressive rate of 12% on the
estimated assessable profit for both years. Netherland
subsidiary is subject to the corporate tax at 20% of
the taxable income up to and including EUR200,000,
above which the rate is 25%. The Taiwan subsidiary is
subject to Taiwan corporate tax, the first NT$120,000
taxable income of Taiwan subsidiary is exempted from
corporate tax and taxable income above NT$120,000 is
taxed at 20%.
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11.

FEBiESR, (BX) (&

HAAEELBENRM  FEREEBELRRY
A A BERZMEFE RIS HIR
WHEERRSELERIELBE -

HRAREERBE-_Z_ZEFE+_A=+—B1
FETERNTHRELERRT N - Bt EEL
PRI EMETEE -

FAARSEEWARARRAERY R ZMER
(&) /BT :

11.

INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)
(Continued)

No provision for Macau Complementary Tax, Netherland
corporate tax and Taiwan corporate tax has been made
for both years as the Group has no assessable profit
arising in Macau, Netherland and Taiwan.

No provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax has
been made for the year ended 31st December 2020 as
the Group has no assessable profits arising in the PRC.

The income tax (credit)/expense for the year can be
reconciled to the loss before tax per the consolidated
income statement as follows:

—E-NF

2019

FHET

HK$’000

BrEiRTE 1R Loss before tax (110,475) (335,696)

REMAEHR M EAHZRIE  Tax at domestic income tax rate (17,577) (55,070)

INT 2B e - Tax effect of:

EE—HEERE XA Share of result of a joint venture - 45

A FERRT WA Income not taxable for tax purpose (14,395) (18,856)

R Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 14,945 62,482

KRR AFARIEERE Estimated tax losses not recognised 17,261 11,434
BABATARERTIEES Utilisation of tax losses previously not

recognised (234) _

EFBRERE Over-provision in prior years (32) -

FERERH (ER) X Income tax (credit)/expense for the year (32) 35

PR EBR - NEE A KR R OE T 2 @EE R
B AR IARIE1,478,644,0008 T (Z T — NLF ¢
1,375,450,0007% 7T.) ° 7 77~ A T8 ORI R 2 s F)
ENEBEREERBEE - AERBEFHENE
PR HAAEE o

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
estimated unused tax losses of HK$1,478,644,000
(2019: HK$1,375,450,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The unrecognised tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.
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12.

13.

Hﬁ/%\

FAYERMNKEZERNTRAKRE - RBREHK
% BEEENEBEERRNEARE (ZT—NF:
&) -

RZZE-hhFNA=1+B EFgRR=ZT—AN
FTANBRIARRABIRREMZBRE - RE5
ARARANAHRBRESFHFEA (FEAER TR
RABIRRMIN S ZBRLEN) &Mz 47
AMBRESFEASTRERN RS ERE AR
1258l - 3245 5l #3 % £.339,008,000% 7T 2 1
“E-NETATN\BEARRRBABRIKLT o

BREE
AR TR AR S AR TR0 TR

st

g

12.

13.

DIVIDEND

No final dividend was paid or proposed during the year,
nor any dividend has been proposed by the board of
directors subsequent to the end of the reporting period
(2019: nil).

On 30th August 2019, the board of the directors
declared the payment of a special interim dividend of
HK12.5 cents per ordinary share of the Company to the
shareholders whose names appear on the Company’s
register of members and the Bonus CBs holders whose
names appear on the Company’s register of Bonus CBs
holder (holders conferred the holders with the same
economic interests attached to the shareholders of the
Company) on 8th October 2019. The special interim
dividend of HK$339,008,000 was paid on 18th October
2019 out of the Company’s contributed surplus.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

—Z-NF
2019
FET
HK$'000
B8 Loss
ARTEEREREIE ZEHE Loss for the purpose of basic loss per share
(RATEB AEIEEEEE) (loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company) (110,430) (335,226)
—ZT-hF
2019
F &
‘000
ROEE Number of shares
ARG ESREREREZ Weighted average number of ordinary shares
IIREF Y TR E B for the purpose of basic loss per share 2,659,166 2,754,030
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13.

14.

SREE (Z) 13. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)
RIBALF AR ES 2 FiBRIE - AF R E Pursuant to the deed polls of the Bonus CBs, the
A FHEBEAEALRQREAME Z R K Bonus CBs conferred the holders with the same
ERES o B 0 18 A4 K8 49265,000 T (Z & economic interests attached to the shareholders of the
— L ¢ 265,000870) 2 R TEAF AR E Company. Accordingly, 1,060,317 (2019: 1,060,317)
i E)1,060,3178% (ZZ— 1.5 1,060,317/%) fully paid ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each which
EREECOIBTZHAREBRAARNGTES shall be convertible from an aggregated amount
PREREE 2 METH L BREE - of approximately HK$265,000 (2019: HK$265,000)
outstanding Bonus CBs are included in the weighted
average number of ordinary shares for calculating the
basic loss per share.
HERREEEHEEE LRI WT2YFkE No diluted loss per share were presented as there were
SEEE o no potential ordinary shares for both years.
{Eéﬁ%”ﬁi 14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
—E-NF
2019
FHET
HK$’000
EEHM Directors’ remuneration
—E582 — directors’ fee 720 720
— e KHEAMER, — salaries and other allowances 16,070 17,050
—RREF T B R — retirement benefits scheme contributions 36 36
16,826 17,806
e KEAMERL Salaries and other allowances 28,270 25325
RRERETEME R (NBIEEE 2 Retirement benefits scheme contributions
RORAEFFT B30 (excluding directors’ retirement benefits
scheme contributions) 972 669
RBRERBAFEXL Staff welfare expenses 57 86
46,125 43,886
B BRI Bh & (K7 i) Less: government grants (Note) (2,670) -
43,455 43,886

Wi BEZZ-_ZTF+-_A=t+—HULEFER X
SERRBRNEBBFMRERORMEESEZ
BT B £2,670,0008 L - CEEBRBFAHX

0kR ©

Note: During the year ended 31st December 2020, the Group
recognised government grants of HK$2,670,000 related
to Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong
Kong government which are deducted from employee

benefit expenses.
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14. EERARAX (&

(a)

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Continued)
EEMe (a) Directors’ emoluments
RAABEEEENABA=-R(ZT—LF: The Company’s board of directors is currently
SR)BURTEFR=F(ZF N composed of three (2019: three) independent
Fr=RB)PITEFMEK - non-executive directors and three (2019: three)
executive directors.
he HeRHEtRE RGBT LR @
Salaries Retirement
and other benefits scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
Z3-nE “E-NE ZE-N0F ZE-nE
2019 2019 2019 2019
TEL AL TEL AL
ESp? Name of director HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HTEE Executive directors
Ak Mr. Heung - - 7,560 8,060 - - 7,560 8,060
Bt Ms. Chen - - 6,960 7440 18 18 6,978 7458
ZIgnt Ms. Li Yuk Sheung - - 1,550 1550 18 18 1,568 1568
BIFHTES Independent non-gxecutive
directors
HRELE Mr. Hung Cho Sing 240 240 - - - - 240 240
feHLE Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul 240 240 - - - - 240 240
HEHEE Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert 240 240 - - - - 240 240
720 720 16,070 17,050 36 36 16,826 17,806

HE_Z-_ZTFR-_ZFT-NEFE+=A
ZST-BUEFER AEEHERESSE
R & 1E R I A 5 B i hn B2 R 2 22 B 3
KEBO 2 HE - REVMEFEHEE
EMEHRAERETAME

MM BREMAIOCERBEALR
SHBEEEIN  RERKFREMEHE
ARBRARREAMER A ESEET
VEBASBEGMETAEXLAERS
EARESCEMRS RHEREL -

During the years ended 31st December 2020
and 2019, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors of the Company waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments in both years.

Except for those disclosed in material related
party transactions in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements, no other transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any
subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in
which a director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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14. EERARAX (& 14

LEREHFMAL (b)

(b)

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(Continued)

AEBRAFERAERESFTHZALTEE
—HR(ZT-NF ZR)EF HEBSE
R £ X(a)F /R A16,106,000/8 7T (=&
— L 17,086,000 7T) ° A FE N E
BME(ZE—NF WE) AL 2B S
s

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include
three (2019: three) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in (a) above and amounted to
HK$16,106,000 (2019: HK$17,086,000). The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2019:
two) individuals during the year were as follows:

—E-NF
2019
FAT
HK$'000

e KEAMERL
R ET B 5K
contributions

ZME(CE-NAF WB) ALTBE—
HZ(CE-NF: —R)REERRE
BEANBRE| -—fRELSREEAE -

ERpMA (ZT—NF: MA) RE M
ALBUzZMERBEEN FUATAS

Salaries and other allowances

3,290 3,356

Retirement benefits scheme

36 36

3,326 3,392

The two (2019: two) individuals include one
(2019: one) senior management as disclosed
in the section “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management”.

The aggregated emoluments of each of
the remaining two (2019: two) highest paid
individuals fell within the following bands:

AE
Number of individuals
—E-NF
2019

1,500,001 7T £2,000,0007% 7T

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 2 2
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15. R IK4E A 51 &

(a)

AL BERERGIMEAES R Z R A
MR BEMBETEBRZEBR LA

MEFE - ARBEMBEEEREHAESN
wEeE AREDEEREETHK

RE NEEREBEEABHENKAZE%
HFX - BEERAWRA ERREE 230,000
7E°f, ARELERELRABARE - &

BB ZEERAGEZEEN AR
ﬁ VHBIEERESHA -

AREZHMBRARAAERMERZEER
BEREREMREE - ERMHRFET
HBYERBARRLKERE KAEERE
BRZTEELERAMHNK - HARELE
BR&EZEAKRARATIX -

15.

#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(a)

The Group operates the MPF Scheme under
rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all its employees in
Hong Kong. All employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF Scheme.
The Group has chosen to follow the minimum
statutory contribution requirement of 5% of
eligible employees’ monthly relevant income but
limited to the mandatory cap of HK$30,000. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated
income statements as incurred. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administrative
fund.

The Group’s subsidiaries operate a defined
contribution scheme for eligible employees in
Macau. The defined contribution scheme is
established and managed by an independent
management company. Both the Group and
the employees make equal share of monthly
contributions to the scheme. The contributions
are charged to the consolidated income
statement as incurred.
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16. tw}% N %%ﬁ&%ﬁ{ﬁ 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
HENE G- %2E
RELH g7 i #4 &L RE a3
Furniture,
Leasehold Leased Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land Buildings properties improvements  equipment vehicles Total
iR TiEn Thn TiEn TiEn Thn Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A Cost
RZE-NE-A-H At 1st January 2019 53,409 94,680 18717 6,473 8,589 10418 192,286
HE Additions - - - 10,038 467 752 11,257
i Written off - - - - (1,031) - (1,031)
RZE-NET-F=t-B  At3ist December 2019 and at
RR-E-%F-5-A 1st January 2020 53,409 94,680 18,717 16,511 8,025 1,170 202,512
HE Additions - - 576 2,160 38 - 2,174
EREEE Reassessment of lease term - - (2.745) - - - (2.745)
i Written off - - - (3,000) (152) (350) (3,502)
RZE-SE+-A=+-H  At31st December 2020 53,409 94,680 16,548 15,671 791 10,820 199,039
BHFERAERE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss
RZE-NE-A-H At 1st January 2019 - 11965 - 5,875 7,463 6,249 31,552
EEXH Charge for the year 1,876 2,013 6,330 1,395 446 1,959 14,019
CEZAERR Impairment loss recognised - 6814 - - - . 6814
ikelEEa g Eliminated on written off - - - - (1,017) - (1,017)
RZE-NE+-A=1+-8  At31stDecember 2019 and at
RR-Z-%%-8-H 1st January 2020 1,876 20,792 6,330 7,210 6,892 8,208 51,368
EEXH Charge for the year 1,874 1872 5,609 2,286 435 949 13,025
ERRiE] Reassessment of lease term - - (1,313) - - - (1313)
ERABERR Impairment loss recognised - 8,356 - - - - 8,356
L ElEEE ] Eliminated on writien off - - - (1,077) (149) (131) (1,357)
RZE-FE+-A=1+-H  At31st December 2020 3,750 31,020 10,626 8,479 7,178 9,026 70,079
BEE Carrying amounts
WZZZZE+-F=1-H At31st December 2020 49,659 63,660 5,922 7,192 733 1,794 128,960
RZE-AE+ZAZF-8 At31st December 2019 51,533 73,888 12,387 9,241 1,133 2962 151,144

MN-Z-TF+-_F=+—H ETHAEEE
FZAREESEETEMNN2ZEHABUAERE
EHEMTREIEEBEDARQARNETZEE -
ZERBFLEUUBYECEBFERARLE
ERF_EMERZATFEENE - AREFZ
AFEEEERHEXNANERAEERE  HEH
1 FRE R E 188,356,000/ 7T (ZE — AL -
6,814,000/ 7T) °

At 31st December 2020, the directors conducted
a review of the recoverable amount of the Group’s
buildings with reference to valuation performed by JP
Assets Consultancy Limited, a firm of independent
qualified professional valuers. The buildings were
measured at fair value on Level 2 hierarchy using direct
comparison method with reference to the selling prices
of comparable properties. Since the amount of fair
value less cost of disposal of the buildings is lower than
the carrying amount, impairment loss of HK$8,356,000
(2019: HK$6,814,000) has been recognised in respect
of buildings.
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16. %% N *g%%%&é 1% (/f/éé) 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
FXFREFZEREEERE The carrying amounts of buildings shown above
comprise:
—T-NF
2019
FAT
HK$'000
UREBEBZETF Buildings located in Hong Kong:
— R ERFE 4Y - Medium-term lease 4,160 4,588
—RHEIMAL - Long-term lease 59,500 69,300
63,660 73,888
TEBEREEA The Group as lessee
RHAEZSE (GTAYF  BERRE) Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and
equipment)
HELTH HEME @t
Leasehold Leased
land properties Total
TER TER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
RHEE Carry amounts
RZZ-NE—-A—H At 1st January 2019 53,409 18,717 72,126
FRMEXH Depreciation charge for the year (1,876) (6,330) (8,206)
R=ZE-hF+=-A=+-H At 31st December 2019 and
ER-E-TF—F—H at 1st January 2020 51,533 12,387 63,920
AE Addition - 576 576
R Reassessment of lease term - (1,432) (1,432)
FRMEXH Depreciation charge for the year (1,874) (5,609) (7,483)
R-B-_FEE+-A=+—-H At 31st December 2020 49,659 5,922 55,581
ZENE
2019
THEL
HENME Leased properties HK$'000
EREHBEC AT Expenses relating to short-term leases 676 7
BERERBEREREZRX Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets 98 95
HEZRERLAE Total cash outflow for leases 6,869 6,357
FXFTREELORNES  WAREBBELYESR - The leasehold land shown above is located in Hong

Kong and is held under medium-term lease.
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LOAN TO A DIRECTOR

17 REF—RBEZEZER 17.

—T-hF

2019

FET

HK$'000

R—HA—H At 1st January 369,974 327,903
HER B A Imputed interest income 75,599 67,071
2 Uk K e Y FI) & Interest received and receivables (25,069) (25,000)
R+-—A=+—H At 31st December 420,504 369,974

RZZE—A"F+—A=Z+NLB A2FRZ2EMH
J& /A ®1Best Combo Limited ([Best Combo ] * 1
REFAN)EBREZT (ERBERAN) T LER B H
([ExW#]) » &t Best ComboB [ & [ R
TR — 2 A% % A500,000,000% T (R TE
HEEIELAR) 2 MERTER]) - BRI
FRIE5ERT B - BRER ZREA B r60(E
AEmzBEE RUBZLI2EHEZREE
BEZ BB MR 2 2 AReform BaseZ B & 3%
TRARROMEIERER -

Mz A R ERE BEBEERCGERAFE)M
© 150 B [IBest Combo® £ AL R+ 1A%
¥AMBLEMBA -

BEERWZ  MRLZ LB R ERBest Combol®
R ([REHE]) - 7t 5TBest ComboH
BRI AROMAREMZITERNERMRL
=+ £A500,000,000/% 7T (1% F & 5 & % F H 38 %)
& Reform Base2 28 B B 1T A »

N-T—+EMANE EREND  &2%
BUAEREEGLEMITEECEERERAA
BITZHEEMSHARATEE BEEERERD
D RRBEES N 28D R4 /271,908,000
% 7T }2.228,092,00058 7T

HE-_Z2-_ZFR-_FT—-—NF+ZAR=+—
BEFER WAEETAEEZEREHEA
500,000,000 7T °

On 29th November 2016, Best Combo Limited (“Best
Combo”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as a lender, and Ms. Chen, as a borrower, entered into
a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) pursuant
to which Best Combo has agreed to grant a fixed
term loan (the “Loan”) to Ms. Chen in the principal
amount of HK$500,000,000 (subject to the loan amount
adjustment). The Loan is interest bearing at 5% per
annum, repayable on the date falling 60 months from
the drawdown date of the Loan and secured by way
of a share charge over the entire issued share capital
of Reform Base, a company incorporated in BVI and
wholly owned by Ms. Chen.

Ms. Chen can repay the Loan (together with accrued
interest) in full after the date of drawdown without
penalty provided not less than ten business days’ prior
written notice has been given to Best Combo.

Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, Ms. Chen has
agreed to grant the call option (the “Call Option”) to
Best Combo which allows Best Combo to require Ms.
Chen to sell the entire issued share capital of Reform
Base at HK$500,000,000 (subject to the loan amount
adjustment) during the exercise period falling on the
expiry of 60 months from the drawdown date of the
Loan.

On 6th April 2017, the drawdown date of the Loan, the
directors has recognised the amounts of approximately
HK$271,908,000 and HK$228,092,000 for the loan
portion and the call option portion respectively by
reference to the fair value arrived on the basis of
valuation performed by Graval Consulting Limited, a
firm of independent qualified professional valuers.

During the years ended 31st December 2020 and
2019, the maximum amount outstanding to the Group is
HK$500,000,000.
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18. M—Eé\ﬁﬁﬁz*gé 18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
—E-NF
2019
FHET
HK$'000
R—HEEEREZREXAE Cost of investment in a joint venture,
WEB - JEL™ unlisted in Hong Kong -
EE—RAENEWEE SRR Share of post-acquisition profit and other
HEa2mBA - BB R E comprehensive income in a joint venture,

net of dividend received

EEZEECERELITOXMER  WELE The Group’s joint venture is a unlisted corporate entity
BEFB®RE - which quoted market prices are not available.
AEBRECENRERRZFBHIDOT ¢ Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the

reporting period are set out below:
rEAFREREREERR
RELEERE EERE SRR LBE  FEROER REEZLH TEER
Form of Proportion of ownership
business Place of Class of interest and voting power
Name of joint venture structure incorporation  shares held held by the Group Principal activities
“§-¥F T A%
2020 2019
% %
RE Baiifev Bk LRk 50 50 REBAEBRER
HEEREEE
Sparkle Star Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary Provision of artist

ZRBELENRAEDEN N EV B HRRAAR -

method in these financial statements.

management
services and
production of
television drama
series

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity
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BE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020
18. ]}Q — & '% ﬁ _{E% Z*Eﬁ_ﬁ (,,./éf_ 18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)
—EEBENEAZEELECHEEN Aggregate information of a joint venture that is not

individually material
—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
THERT TET
HK$°000 HK$'000

KREEEGEFEREEAN,(EE) KX The Group's share of profit/(loss) and total

2EEA (BB EE comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 2 (270)
AEBR—HEELERER Carrying amount of the Group’s interest

BRMEE in a joint venture 2 -
ABAEE—HEEENERZRELEZER Unrecognised share of loss of a joint venture that is

not individually material
—E-EF —E-hF
2020 2019
THET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000

FERERELH—BEELE Unrecognised share of loss of a joint

2B venture for the year - 2)
RERBRELE—FEERE Cumulative unrecognised share of

2R loss of a joint venture - 2)
R_Z_TF+-_A=+—8 ER—HEEDL At 31st December 2020, amount due from a joint
¥ FIE30,0008 T (ZT—NF + &) HEEKF venture of HK$30,000 (2019: nil) is unsecured, interest-
BERBNEREERE - free and repayment on demand.
BE-_ZT-_ZF+ A=+ HLFERAEE The maximum amount outstanding during the year
ZHEE e A30,0008T(ZE—NF &) - ended 31st December 2020 is HK$30,000 (2019: nil).

4
19. 78 19. INVENTORIES

—E-BF —E-NF
2020 2019
THERT FHBT

HK$°000 HK$'000

EREEEB2RM RS Food and beverage, and other operating
VA B2 E A 45 18 B item for restaurant operations 128 101
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20. STOCK OF PROPERTIES

4% & B % #t 3 Mt 5% Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

—E-NF
2019
FHET
HK$'000

BELHEZBRREDRYE Properties under development

held for sales

Hn—H—H At 1st January 3,047,123 2,508,568
NE Additions 164,132 501,832
BT B Interest capitalised 63,896 36,723
R+=-—A=+—H At 31st December 3,275,151 3,047,123

MEFEMNRFILRETBEORE -

RELEZERTOERINER —FRED -

RZZEZTF+ZA=+—HB KB 2WET
5 8% {E #91,879,503,000/8 7T (Z T — fL & -
1,651,619,000& 7T) EEMIEA RN EHMERR
TEERZER -

R-Z—=FA RFFHTRERRA (HRF
BT B L0k ([ EE]) IR -F
—ME=ZHER - EHDERE  RPIBUR AR
BKRENREHNHAMEMRTRZOEERR
/R B B A TR PR I 6 Lt T R 2R
R EEE AMEEMEE -

The stock of properties is located in Macau and held
under medium-term leases.

Properties under development held for sales are
expected to be recovered after more than one year.

At 31st December 2020, the Group’s stock of
properties with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$1,879,503,000 (2019: HK$1,651,619,000) have
been pledged to secure bank facilities granted to the
Group.

In September 2013, the government of Macau Special
Administrative Region (the “Macau Government”)
promulgated the Macau New Land Law (the “MNLL")
which came into effect in March 2014. The MNLL
provides that the Macau Government will have the right
to resume the land of any property development that is
not completed and/or where the conditions as stated in
the land concession for which have not been fulfilled by
the stipulated expiry date without any compensation to
the property owner.
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20.

MEFE (E)

B R R P BAT AE 5R 4t R 7 A0 S HE 8 [ SE6Bi
B ([E6BHER ) 2 WEMBERATF I IR
B FBH R TaL MG R MAPI BN EMEA
el L3t 7 IR TE - 6B A —AEFRIE
BHREOMEMmE s — MEBHMERERA—E
KEE AEBCR - R"E+-A=+EMA
BPIR G AR RIEL LR RZ2E—NF XA
+T—H AERAKIBPIBRFAREERAH A=
Z-NFERANBHRY  BERREER O
RSB SR - At - F6BH R #5 f R PI BT IR
Bl o RIBEARFNEHEZER  AEFBAER
BERAEEARTZ 2BESKEE  MEk
HERLFTREEE - BERPIRTIER 2T
MoA  AREDESREBMERRRZER
EROUEERNFZHRUIRLSS -

EE2ETFUAEREXGHENTE A T84
HORF) ERARMEFEEERARAAME
THEMFEERTMEZATZEFE YR
HAZRFESNERAE SRRLLERE
& o ) 5 2 R T B4 L ORL

20.

STOCK OF PROPERTIES (Continued)

Owing to the delays caused by the Macau Government
in granting the requisite approvals and permits for
the development of the property located in Lot 6B at
Zona de Aterros do Porto Exterior (ZAPE) (“Lot 6B”),
Lot 6B could not commence development and the
Macau Government has started the administrative work
to reclaim it. Lot 6B is one of the four lots of land in a
project held under development and Lot 6B is intended
to be developed as recreational area. The Group
has filed an appeal to the president of the Macau
Second Instance Court on 30th December 2016. On
11th June 2018, the Group received a letter dated 8th
June 2018 from the Tribunal de Ultima Instancia of the
Macau Government, in which the Tribunal de Ultima
Instancia rejected the application of the final appeal.
Accordingly, Lot 6B will be reclaimed by the Macau
Government. According to the legal opinion obtained
by the Company, the Group has legal ground to seek
compensation for damages sustained by the Group as
a result and the Court will consider and rule taking into
account all the essential points including delays caused
by the Macau Government. As such, the Group has
sought legal advice from its Macau legal representative
and consider to make an application in this regard if
necessary.

The directors had assessed the net realisable value
of the properties under development with reference to
valuations performed by Savills (Macau) Limited and
JP Assets Consultancy Limited, firms of independent
qualified professional valuers, and concluded that no
write-down of carrying amounts of the properties under
development are considered necessary as the net
realisable value are greater than the carrying amounts.
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#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-FTFE+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

== /
ﬁ%hﬂﬂé FILM RIGHTS
= —NF
2019
FET
HK$’000
R Cost
R—A—HEWR+=-A=+—H At istJanuary and at 31st December 886,485 758,178
BRI BB e Expired film rights (18,656)
ERRMERER (Mitz2) Transfer from films in progress (note 22) - 128,307
867,829 886,485
ATBEERESE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses
w—H—8 At 1st January 873,693 746,700
NEE TR R E 8 Amortisation provided for the year 964 1,747
BRI EEE Impairment loss recognised - 125,246
BRI E R Expired film rights (18,656) -
Rt+—_A=+—H At 31st December 856,001 873,693
REE Carrying amount
R+-_A=+—8H At 31st December 11,828 12,792
EYREZBENR Impairment testing of film rights

&

RENANES  EXRECHEEEZ A4
BEBZREELEN -

H

RZZZZTF+-A=+—H0 EELEEEE
REsEXHRERERTFECREZLRGE
EBEzARESE  MASEESBMN2AKE
CHEaREAE Bt  BE2-T=-FF+=A

S+ -—AEFEABRERRREBE(ZT—1

F 1 125,246,000 7T) °

For the purpose of impairment testing, film rights have
been allocated to the CGU of film related business
operations.

At 31st December 2020, the directors assessed the
recoverable amount of the CGU of film rights with
reference to the film budget summary prepared by the
management and the recoverable amount of the CGU
is higher than the carrying amount. Accordingly, there
was no impairment loss recognised during the year
ended 31st December 2020 (2019: HK$125,246,000).
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BYREZRENRE)
BEYMECREELESN 2 MBS BIHENK
HEZEXREAZR FEL G RREFER
ZHRERERAFHMEANSEZRE 2 EEWRAM
B R-_ZT_TFT+-_A=+—8 &M
AERBERE(WEHE)FEN2ERTEERRE
RABPTETHENZRBERTRE14% (ZF
—NEF 1 17%) °

FRBEBRESRA S REGFHOFEZ T ERR
BREEHEBRENX BEREXRFARE &%
A REREBEERIEEERMSRR A -

BE-_ZT-_FTF+_A=t—BLFER HE
RAEBBELMELAEFE MZEBRIDE
MARAREDIITSEHETREZLRAES
REAKESE -

BHE-_Z-NEF+_A=+T—BLEFEAN®ER
RMEBEERAEE  EXEUERKEELE
B-mRZRASESEMNDEREE A RE S HE
#912,792,0008 7T - M E AW E S REAEA 2
B2 EAADFIE B 5| BE — P REFIE -

21.

i Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-_FF+-A=+—HILEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

FILM RIGHTS (Continued)

Impairment testing of film rights (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU of film rights was
determined based on either net realisable values of film
rights to be disposed of or estimated future cashflows
from box office receipts and licensing income of
film rights over a five-year period. At 31st December
2020, discount rate of 14% (2019: 17%),
referenced to valuation performed by JP Assets

which was

Consultancy Limited, was considered in the calculation
of estimated future cashflows as appropriate.

Key assumptions for the above calculations in relation
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin, growth rate
and discount rate, such estimation is based on past
experience and management’s expectations of the
market development.

During the year ended 31st December 2020, no
impairment loss is recognised in respect of film rights,
any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of
film rights to exceed its recoverable amount.

The impairment loss recognised during the year ended
31st December 2019 solely relates to the Group’s film
related business operations. As the CGU has been
reduced to its recoverable amount of approximately
HK$12,792,000,
assumptions used in the calculation of the recoverable

any adverse change in the

amount would result in further impairment losses.
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BE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

22. HEHREF

FILMS IN PROGRESS

—T-hF

2019

FHET

HK$'000

R—HA—H At 1st January 115,156 201,005
NE Additions 425 52,733
B E R R (WEZU Transfer to film rights (note 21) - (128,307)
7 H b JE UK Transfer to other receivables (11,563) -
B iR HTEJEETE Impairment loss recognised (26,384) (10,275)
Rt+t—-_A=+—H At 31st December 77,634 115,156

SERBERUARAR R HESBR(WA)FE-

HEZT-_TF+-A=+—BLEFER £&
@%fﬁé%%ﬁ BIRT S ek DA AR IE — B B4
REEMNEE MRRLEEZEYEEARCH
= M4 [E (8 (11,563,000 7T - ALt - B
ZER E 7 2 BUE K N T SRR (B B 1826,384,000
BT B Z A AR A IR E o

HE-_Z-NF+ZA=+—-BLEFER B
%%¢E%Z%¢ﬁ$$mﬁ@%ﬁwzmpm
BT AREEERABIERFEY 2 8ETER
BRI UWRABBERBEETIWRE -

The films in progress were measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the Group
entered into agreement with a film production house to
terminate production for a film in progress and the film
production house agreed to repay HK$11,563,000 to
the Group upon termination. Accordingly, impairment
loss of HK$26,384,000 was recognised in respect of
production cost of this film in progress which will not be
recovered.

During the year ended 31st December 2019, an
impairment loss of HK$10,275,000 was recognised
on the production costs for films in progress as the
management was in a view that the production plan for
the films in progress was halted and considered that
the amount will not be recovered.
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== /

. 8% }xﬁ 23. INVESTMENT IN FILM
i g 23 —E-NF
2020 2019
FHET FHEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEXRERE Investment in film production 29,939 29,939
REZREZREDERN THARERTZK Investment in film production represents fund advanced
B ULEBEARREEY  EMIHEELTE to licensed production house for co-financing the
B MEXASEEERIERNT I WABHER production of film, which is freely exploited by the
TR AEESEZMHBEZEHTMENR - B production house. The investment is governed by the
e EEEANER RS EEEEAEREE Y RIT relevant investment agreement entered into between the
W EBENEEHEkRD - 22 B REERE Group and the production house whereby the Group

//:\\ﬁHIE{/\&ﬁEWU °

FEBZEXZREDAARKIIE -

B 5 B WUk =X

is entitled to benefits generated from the distribution
of the related film. The amount will be recoverable
by the Group from a pre-determined share of the net
distribution revenue of the respective co-financed
film to be provided and confirmed by the relevant
production house.

The Group’s investment in film is denominated in RMB.

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

15 R BR 3K
HtE 5 EUWERK
o EERRRE

i g 23 —E-NF

2020 2019

THET FHT

HK$°000 HK$'000

Credit card receivables 5 16
Other trade receivables 925 2,324
Less: allowance for credit losses (640) (963)

290 1,377
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#F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-FTFE+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables,
presented based on the invoice dates, which
approximates the respective revenue recognition dates
and net of allowance for credit losses:

—hF

2019

FET

HK$'000

0230H 0 to 30 days 5 1,097
31260H 31 to 60 days - -
61290H 61 to 90 days - -
B #®90H Over 90 days 285 280
290 1,377

REEZEBRERBHREFP IR GBEREEMN The Group’s trading terms with its customers from
BERERFREE - CHRARZEEHBRE A restaurant operations are mainly by cash and credit

MR RR M HERTH o

BTHMAERPZFHREYN F30AE0R

g o

FRNEHRBIERENEIRUERNEEREE

card settlement. The settlement terms of credit card
companies are usually 7 days after the service
rendered date.

The average credit period granted to other corporate
customers ranges from 30 to 90 days.

The movement in the allowance for credit losses in

BREEZHNT respect of trade receivables under simplified approach
during the year is as follows:

2 HFEH 2HEH

FEEBR FEER

(BEERE) (BEEERE)

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-

impaired) impaired)

FHET FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

A\ —F—-hF—HA—H At 1st January 2019 - 1.201

BEERAESE Impairment losses reversed - (230)

SNEE H s F Foreign exchange translation gain - (8)

jli‘f’ —“A=+—HBK At31st December 2019 and
34‘* - F—HF—H at 1st January 2020 - 963
8 Written off - (323)

R-EB-EE+=-HA=+—H At 31st December 2020 - 640
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25. B4 FENHEREMELWS 25. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENT AND OTHER

I8 RECEIVABLES
—E-NF
2019
FET
HK$’000
Bf%e  IREEBERE Deposits paid, net of
allowance for credit losses 425,541 392,015
TR IR Prepayment 6,923 24,612
EHith el 1B - HIR 2 EE1EE{E Other receivables, net of
allowance for credit losses 254,455 243,542
686,919 660,169
EREWMABIESINT Analysed for reporting purposes only:
B &R Current 653,255 644,169
JERNEA Non-current 33,664 16,000
686,919 660,169
FABEW@ENiEE REMEYFRIEN12E A 78 47 The movement in 12m ECL in respect of deposits paid
EEEBBEZ2EZHNT : and other receivables during the year is as follows:
—E-NF
2019
FET
HK$’000
12BEAEBEESR 12m ECL
Kn—H—H At 1st January 822 -
BRERREEE Impairment loss recognised 5,427 822
R+-—BA=+—H At 31st December 6,249 822
LR T ERREARBERHIECONILES RIKE The above balances mainly consist of deposits paid for

MECHFTE  BNEABRERINE -

prepaid artiste fee and interest receivable.

film production, deposit paid for investment property,

BE-_Z-ZTHF+_A=+—HBLFERN O3t During the year ended 31st December 2020,
& N H & WK 5k I8 1 R R (B /E5 185,427,000/ impairment loss of HK$5,427,000 (2019: HK$822,000)

T (ZZ— L% : 822,000/87T) °
receivables.

was recognised in respect of deposits and other
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E-FTFE+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

ﬁ ?@ E £ L;{ /N $ f’f {E §|J Z 26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
ﬁ ﬁﬂﬁ?&_ THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
—E-NE
2019
AT
HK$’000
DEABIEEEIRE 2 FmES - Listed securities classified as held for
trading investments:
—REB LT ZRAE — Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 145,550 225,491
fTHESs I A Derivative financial instruments:
- RETF-RESZERA — Call option embedded in loan to
e 2 R EARE a director 62,910 87,793
208,460 313,284

RBEMKR MEEBBRENAFEENIEZE
MEEGARFEEIK- "*EI%TM’FEE&J%‘
ZETEF(EEEERELMRESKRIIN ZA
BENZERBzMBSRMEMEE °

RZTZEF+ZA=+—H EEFEEEEL
MES 2N FEE2642,0008 T (ZF—NF
4,059,000 7T) IHIE 2 EFH L& EREEGERM
AEECEBRERARETZHENSL - »
ZEZTF+ZRA=+—HB REEFEEEEL
MEH 2 AT EEDRATSERTIER72.36%
(ZZ—NF :74.29%) EITHEE - FAZITHEE
EERMBAEREFEEEMERKSPIENRD
JMSE2HEEMREEECEER BROHOTRE
1R BB D E RS -

At the end of the reporting period, all financial assets
at FVTPL are stated at fair value. Fair values of listed
securities classified as held for trading investments
(other than suspended trading security listed in Hong
Kong) are determined with reference to quoted market
closing price.

At 31st December 2020, the fair value of suspended
trading security listed in Hong Kong with the amount
of HK$2,642,000 (2019: HK$4,059,000) was reference
to valuation performed by Graval Consulting Limited,
a firm of independent qualified professional valuers.
At 31st December 2020, the fair value of suspended
trading security listed in Hong Kong was valued by
using the market approach with a discount rate of
72.36% (2019: 74.29%). The discount rate is used to
reflect the risk of exposure to corporate governance,
illiquidity and financial distress, etc perceived by
market participants who hold the suspended shares
with remote likelihood of trade resumption.



w5 B R R

HE-Z

26.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 44 ® CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED th 2 B G IR A a)

BEBABUANFHENRZ
CRHEE(Z)

RZZZTF+= HE+—E| CREBHE DT
1B {862,910,000/% 7t (= Z — L4 : 87,793,000
ﬁ%m)M%%%}%Iéé%%%faﬁﬁﬂim V1
XERBRARSITZGEMSE - REHEL
REBENRB-_EBAMREERAUTRE
12.85% (ZF— /L9 : 15.38% ) #E1THE - T
ERREERERERERE MARERRR K
HtBRARREE c SHEREMARE ZBHE
7 (hlas) = -

RLELSHEEMBERRAY  AEEZEE L

THRAZES (TEER-_ZE-_ZF+=-_A=+—
A EEEEES) 2 AFBEYA141,824,000
BT °

26.

i Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—EF+=HA=1+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December 2020

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
At 31st December 2020, the fair value of the Call
Option with the amount of HK$62,910,000 (2019:
HK$87,793,000) was arrived by reference to valuation
performed by Graval Consulting Limited, a firm of
independent qualified professional valuers. The fair
value of the Call Option was valued by using the
binomial option pricing model with discount rate of
12.85% (2019: 15.38%). Discount rate is the expected
rate of return (or yield) that an investor would have
to give up by investing in the subject investment
instead of other available alternative investments that
are comparable in terms of risk and other investment
characteristics.

The fair value of the Group’s equity securities listed in
Hong Kong (excluding suspended trading security at
31st December 2020) at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements were approximately
HK$141,824,000.
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ﬂgqﬂﬁ%—’k 27. LOAN RECEIVABLES
—E-F —E-NF
2020 2019
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B TEBRER  MNEREERE Fixed-rate loan receivables, net of

impairment loss

ENEBERERMI2EAENEEBEZ 2
mT

- 199,127

The movement in 12m ECL in respect of loan
receivables during the year is as follows:

—B-%F —E-hF
2020 2019
FTERT FET
HK$°000 HK$'000

12 A G EEE 12m ECL
n—H—H At 1st January 873 -
B (BE) R EEE Impairment loss (reversed)/recognised (873) 873
R+ZA=+—H At 31st December - 873

EWERTIRFFERIFEESEE - ARKRRE
TZEANEER URSAEEREXRREEZK
/TA ﬁ&%&/\* 7E'Ir//|u§jJi§§ °

//

HE-_T-_ZTFF+_A=T—HLEFERN BE
B 5 B &5 18873,0008 T (=T — NF : BRI
{HE518873,000/ 7T) ©

Loan receivables are interest bearing of 3% to 8% per
annum, repayable within the next twelve months and
contain a clause of repayable on demand and thus
classified as current assets.

During the year ended 31st December 2020,
impairment loss of HK$873,000 was reversed (2019:
impairment loss of HK$873,000 was recognised).
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EHIE D 28. TIME DEPOSITS
—ZE-NF
2019
FHET
HK$’000
RIRITRB 2 E BFER Time deposits held at bank 276 272

RZB-ZF+-A=+—H THEFAUEHN

ENFOIEE1SE (ZE—NF : 0.7EE155
E):tE  URTFEMBEE365H (ZZ—AF : 365
H)REIHE -

MRZB_ZEF+_A=1+—B ETHEZH
249,000/ 7T (ZF — L : 249, ooo;‘%fc) EE#
EARERMNEPFINMEGEL TRIBF 2
ER o

RIBITHEZERFERTIARPIETIE -

At 31st December 2020, the time deposits are interest
bearing ranging from 0.9% to 1.55% (2019: 0.7% to
1.55%) per annum and mature within 365 days (2019:
365 days) from the placement date.

At 31st December 2020, time deposits with amounts
of approximately HK$249,000 (2019: HK$249,000)
are pledged as guarantee to Macau Government for
development of stock of properties located in Macau.

Time deposits held at bank is denominated in MOP.
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HE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—BIEFE
29. BEeRIIRITHER

RITERIZFRF RS  UERRTHETR
R BEREERT RETHERZFHE—A
EZEANE BFAEENSRESFTEZME -
VTEREAEZEHTHERFNENT0IER
2AB(ZZ—AF : 0.125BE2.98 ) HEFI B -

REARERERME  AERBTEBRERET
BRe BRORLEHEHER - R_T_F
ERZZE-NAFFT A=+ -—HEGARERE
REFR 2B & RIRITHRS T EERIEB WKW
T

29.

For the year ended 31st December 2020

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates and
placed with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default. Short-term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day to three months depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates ranging from 0.01% to 2.4% (2019: 0.125% to
2.9%) per annum.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and bank balances include cash on hand
and cash at banks and short-term time deposits. Cash
and bank balances at 31st December 2020 and 2019
as shown in the consolidated statement of cash flows
can be reconciled to the related items as follows:

—T-hF
2019
FET
HK$'000

FEAE MRTHFR
R HIE B E R

W_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—H AEFZHSE
RBITHEBRE - UET - RPIE BT - FaK
RARBIMESE DB AE77,0008 T (ZE— 1
F : 676,000/ 7C) ~ 2,174,000 L (=T — A, :
2,179,000/ 7t) ~ 14,0008 T (=T — L4 ¢
71,0007 L) ~ 2,142,000 70 (Z T — N5 : &)
%:26,394,0007% 7T (== — L& : 25,586,000/
JT) °

ARBETEYFTEALR G BELS
BZEeXPEBNETHIMNEEHRE - A&
BUREBLBPFIAARBINE 2 RS RRITH
B EARSNEE ] o

Cash on hand and cash at banks
Short-term time deposits

282,249
221,201

99,815
397,933

503,450 497,748

At 31st December 2020, the Group's cash and
bank balances denominated in US$, MOP, EUR,
NT$ and RMB are approximately HK$77,000 (2019:
HK$676,000), HK$2,174,000 (2019: HK$2,179,000),
HK$14,000 (2019: HK$71,000), HK$2,142,000 (2019:
nil) and HK$26,394,000 (2019: HK$25,586,000)
respectively.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the PRC
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to the foreign exchange control promulgated imposed
by the government of the PRC. The Group’s cash and
bank balances denominated in RMB which located in
Hong Kong and Macau are not subject to the foreign
exchange control.
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30. Hﬁz]: SHARE CAPITAL
R4 EE k|
Number of shares Amount
—E-NF ZE-NF
2019 2019
T FET
‘000 HK$’000
SREE0.01BTZ Ordinary shares of
ZER HK$0.01 each
EERAE Authorised:
Rn—A—BE+=A At 1st January and
=+—H 31st December 50,000,000 50,000,000 500,000 500,000
BRTRAZRA : Issued and fully paid:
n—H—H At 1st January 2,711,001 2,801,111 27,110 28,011
B8 B0 5 85 2 AR Shares repurchased and
(H&) cancelled (Note) (80,390) (90,110) (804) (901)
R+—-—A=+—H At 31st December 2,630,611 2,711,001 26,306 27,110
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TN 30.

Hiet -

REBE-Z-_ZF+_A=Z+—HLFER  KIAHE
B FHREARGEHMT :

F+=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note:

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the Company
repurchased and cancelled its own shares as follows:

ZER¥AE ERER ENBANKE

Number of Price per share Aggregate

ordinary 55 H{K consideration

BEAfm Month of repurchase shares Highest Lowest paid
F] BT BT FHET

’000 HK$ HK$ HK$’000

—E-ZHFNA April 2020 37,910 1.75 1.72 66,342
—E-FFHA May 2020 37,880 1.75 1.75 66,290
—E-EEXRA June 2020 2,230 1.75 1.70 3,898
—Z2-Z2%+tA July 2020 2,370 1.70 1.70 4,029

77,930,0000% = 38 % % 2,460,0000% Z @K E 5 5l =
ZEFAAT-BRZZ-ZZEFELAZT=HFEHE-

REE-Z-NF+_A=+—-BLFEN FTRAE
B EFHEARGEHMT :

80,390 140,559

77,930,000 ordinary shares and 2,460,000 ordinary shares
were cancelled on 11th June 2020 and 23rd July 2020
respectively.

During the year ended 31st December 2019, the Company

repurchased and cancelled its own shares as follows:

EEkE A FRERK EffERE

Number of Price per share Aggregate

ordinary =5 ={K consideration

fEE A H Month of repurchase shares Highest Lowest paid
T BT BT FET

‘000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000

Z—-NFRA May 2019 74,280 0.80 0.74 57,796
Z-NERA June 2019 15,830 0.76 0.75 11,892

90,110,000 L BB ER —E—NEXNA+LBEH -

90,110 69,688

90,110,000 ordinary shares were cancelled on 19th June 2019.



ANNUAL REPORT 2020 44t ® CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED h {22 kB G B 2 0

B=E

31. HEGE 31

ENHEEE Lease liabilities payable

—FRN Within one year

E_EERFE In the second to fifth year,
(BREEEMF) inclusive

W RREE KA Less: future finance costs

HEBGB HE Present value of lease liabilities

W —ERNIHEESE  Less: amount due for settlement
within one year

—FRINE

Yy

-] Amount due for settlement
after one year

HERBHAETIE -

LEASE LIABILITIES

REREMK

Minimum lease payments

4% & M % #t 3 Mt 5% Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
—E-FF+=HA=+—HILEE For the year ended 31st December 2020

REHERRZRE
Present value of
minimum lease payments

ZECEZF —E-NF —E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019 2020 2019
TER FHL TEx FEL
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000
4,785 5,651 4,704 5,394
983 7,220 981 7,100
5,768 12,871 5,685 12,494
(83) (377) - -
5,685 12,494 5,685 12,494
(4,704) (5,394)

981 7,100

The lease liabilities are denominated in HK$.
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-z

=>] ET

2 5 B &K 32. TRADE PAYABLES

UNTAESRMNBEREBEZAH BRI The following is an aging analysis of trade payables,
based on the invoice dates:

—E-EHF —ZE-NF
2020 2019
FERT FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
0&30H 0 to 30 days 17 45,170
31260H 31 to 60 days - 25,012
61E90H 61 to 90 days - 2,431
B #®90H Over 90 days 22,693 5,638
22,710 78,251

HEFS T2 FHBRKHAEVANE -

=
&3 5K

WE&% EEtEB R HEAM 33

The average credit period granted by suppliers ranges

from 30 to 90 days.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED, ACCRUALS AND

OTHER PAYABLES

—E-EF —ZT-hF
2020 2019
FHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
2 U EIR S (4 5E) Deposits received (Note) 77,800 79,360
fEEtIE B Accruals 3,519 7,381
Hfh FE A SRR Other payables 1,589 513
82,908 87,254

Mt - Note:

CEUREZeIBREEY LERXNEBBAKBHTEZ

Deposits received mainly represented deposits received from

distributors prior to the theatrical release and delivery of master

materials of film.
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ﬁﬁ?fﬁ%g 34. BANK BORROWINGS
—E-NF
2019
FHET
HK$'000
BEBRITEE Secured bank borrowings 1,293,880 1,030,150
—E-NF
2019
FET
HK$’000

JE(EE 2 BREE Carrying amounts repayable:

—F R Within 1 year - 1,030,150
iR —FEIRME More than 1 year but less than 2 years - -
HAMTFRLRAF More than 2 years but less than 5 years 1,293,880 -
1,293,880 1,030,150
RZE_ZEF+-_A=1+—H KEBZET At 31st December 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings

&8 LA A 5= B BR T (B 491,879,503,0008 7t (=&
— % :1,651,619,00080) 2 MEFE - FH
ERFEREBRARZTHER  MAERRL
TREZEAAERIRAADRREZBEER
—HEREAERS  HASEMEEHN=M@A
ok 7~ M8 A AR LAHIBORING .35/ 8 % 2 & | & &t
B WAEN)B BRIk A BB ET361E A (i)
WKE@EE#%¥ZWH&T BE%9MEA (JA
REERE)EE -

BE_Z_ZTHE+_A=+—HILFERN 1T
BEZIMEEELERE_T__FAHA+HERB -

FE 13 IF 122 IR R 2 7R 0B

JEf TR ER 2 5
KIS EE -

RERERR 2R RARE

35.

are secured by the Group’s stock of properties with
carrying amounts of approximately HK$1,879,503,000
(2019: HK$1,651,619,000), quota capital of China Star
Creative Development Limited, personal guarantee
provided by Mr. Heung and Ms. Chen and corporate
guarantee provided by the Company together as
securities, interest bearing at HIBOR for three or six
month period selected by the Group plus margin of
3.35% per annum and repayable by the earlier of (i) 36
months from date of the agreement of the loan or (ii) 9
months after date of issuing of the occupation permit of
the Group’s pledged properties.

During the year ended 31st December 2020, the
maturity date of bank borrowings extended to 15th
September 2022.

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

The amounts due to non-controlling interests are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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36. ﬁ?}fﬁ?ﬁ 36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

(a) RZZE-ZEF+_A=+—H AEEE (a) At 31st December 2020, the Group’s stock
HE{E491,879,503,000/8 T (Z T — L5 : of properties with carrying amounts of
1,651,619,0008 L) 2 MEFE - FHE approximately HK$1,879,503,000 (2019:
BIERBRARZEREER  MEER HK$1,651,619,000), quota capital of China
PRzt 2 AARBRARARARREZ Star Creative Development Limited, personal
RAER BE—ERERREEMER guarantee provided by Mr. Heung and Ms.
RITEER2HEM o Chen and corporate guarantee provided by the

Company together as securities, have been
pledged to secure the banking facilities granted
to the Group.

(b) RZEZZEF+ZA=+—H  *5HY (b) At 31st December 2020, the Group’s time
249,000/ 7T (== — /L4 : 249,000/ 7T.) deposits with the amount of approximately
CEHEZREEMIEAREREANRIH HK$249,000 (2019: HK$249,000) are pledged
MEFTEL TR ZER - as guarantee to Macau Government for

development of stock of properties located in
Macau.
37 7?(1:% 37. COMMITMENTS
REBBUTREITEE The Group has the following outstanding commitments:
—Z-NF
2019
FET
HK$'000
ERERDHTHN BEREE: Authorised and contracted, but not
provided for:
—fRRNRFAZYMEFEZ — Development expenditure for stock of
Bl ac & properties in Macau 346,069 373,110

—HEYEEBKE — Expenditure for leasehold improvement - 3,918

—RELE — Expenditure for equipment 7 -

—REMEZKE - Expenditure for investment property 127,971 -

—BRRE  BIEREY — Film rights, films in progress and film

ER-2i s deposits 225,691 263,452
699,738 640,480
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special general

38. URHB XM ZRIERS 38.
BER-_ZE——F XA+ N\BET2ARTR

HEAS FRBy —TBREZIER ARAEHT meeting of the Company held on 28th June 2012, a new

— IR BT & ([F ARt &1) -

HRARR SR BARET S ([ERRERTE])
BERZZF—ZFRAZ+BER BitBEHEE
MRERIREEBERET I MBE L - AR Ll
BRI R EBRET S D RE T B RITE ZER
REBNDAR AR - WA R B EERET B 2 R T
LATTfE o

AR 8 2 T 2GR T

(i) AEEESARBRARNLKESERS
BERHBRE MMERRSERAEES
REE R B R AR 2 T f R A (E
(MBREEED L2 AR ARERR 2
RSB -

(i) AERZ2EZFEBRAKELTAREEE
B2RBIAFBES (BEARRRENM
MEARSEAREEEEZENES
BRATHFATRERBLEST) - A
SEMBETEMNEFZEMBEA  RAE
SEIEMRKRERBZENXBLSE
CEBH AEH RELREX  BR-
BN HEH LEFAEEA T
P HEABEEMDFEAN) XD H
B EXIFEFP(BREAIERP)HES
EEENERRCT A Y NEE ST
WIREERIELERZEMAL -

share option scheme (the “New Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company.

The previous share option scheme of the Company (the
“Old Option Scheme”) was expired on 26th May 2012,
no further options can be granted under the Old Option
Scheme thereafter. However, all outstanding share
option granted under the Old Option Scheme prior
to the said expiry shall remain valid and exercisable
in accordance with the provisions of the Old Option
Scheme.

The major terms of the New Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(i) The purpose is to enable the Company to
grant options to selected eligible participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group or any
invested entity in which the Group held an equity
interest (the “Invested Entity”).

(i) The eligible participants include full time or part
time employees of the Group or any Invested
Entity (including any directors, whether executive
or non-executive and whether independent or
not, of the Company or any subsidiary or any
Invested Entity); any holder of any securities
issued by the Group; and any business or
joint venture partners, contractors, agents or
representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers,
producers or licensors, customers, licensees
(including any sub-licensee) or distributors,
landlords or tenants (including any sub-tenants)
of the Group or any Invested Entity or any
person who, in the sole discretion of the board
of directors, has contributed or may contribute to
the Group or any Invested Entity.
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38. UROD XN ZRERS (&

FEREA S Z TR EFBANT - (8)

(iii)

(iv)

BREFERE BT R L 2 BREER
HRIB A ) E R ) At S A A At 87T 8
R ZBERERMS R ZBNEE LRTE
BANIEBRE S EARAR 2 #
TTRAZ210% » iz LR AT i AR B R
RELEH - AITEREFERESE R
Ef E A i gt 8 (R IR E B RERT3)
EREMARTEZ BREFAEETZ
B8R LRI SEATHEDE#TRNZ
30% ©

PRIFEGIRRALE - REM+ @A NR
TELAER2EEZBEE (BREET
- DEERARTERRE) BETER
BEHRTEBBHTZRDEBTISBETE
EETRMDZ1% -

REZEBEEEASH (BEZA) L2
TZEAARAABIBREIERR (TE
RETRADKEFAEEHEA LIS
VR TEEREFTMBEATERZ
BRE(RECTE BEEREAITE
BRE BTEREETRETETZR
NEH (B RTBEBADAEET
B 15 20.1% 5 R(b)IR B &R H A E#A
RARGOZRTENE  BEETSBEG
5,000,000/ 7 * BRIFEFARE#LE ©

38.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The major terms of the New Option Scheme are

summarised as follows: (Continued)

(iiif)

(iv)

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which share options may be granted under the
New Option Scheme together with options which
may be granted under any other share option
scheme for the time being of the Company must
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of approval of
the New Option Scheme and such limit might
be refreshed by the shareholders in general
meeting. The maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
share options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme (including the Old Option
Scheme) must not exceed 30% of the shares in

issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each eligible participant (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue from time
to time unless the same is approved by the
shareholders.

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each substantial shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company
or any of its respective associates or an
independent non-executive director or any of
his associates (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding share options) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such
grant: (a) representing in aggregate over 0.1 per
cent. of the shares in issue; and (b) having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares at the date of each grant, in excess
of HK$5,000,000, unless the same is approved
by the shareholders.
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38. URBXF2RERS (&)

FEREA 2 TR EFBANT - (8)

(vi) TEHAHEFTSRELBRERRE B
REFBRT - AEBEBA KL AHES
Fo

(viy BRRBRLHABBREIBROTITRBES
SEES  LWE—RREBIRAERNFET
ERI VAR A EARERY -

(viii) A ABERE L B B0 AN B K
B (nER)  WARARRIMBTLZ
KﬂLEmE°

(ix) HEREZOTFESNEAATSEZ&ZSE :

a. REL HBA R A — BB ) £ B
Rz E

b. EREHAHIAEEEA (AL
AR B FT 2 3% ) AR R E — AR
2 FHWHE : &

c. RELHHBEARRR — KKz E
@

(x)  FBBUETENRABHEI0F B -

R-B_ZFER-_F-NF+-_A=+—H £
ﬁ%h%ﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@Z%h%°ﬁi:
ZoEERZE-NAFTAZT-BUEFER -
BUEBAREERL 176 KW EEMEEE -

38.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The major terms of the New Option Scheme are
summarised as follows: (Continued)

(vi) The exercisable period should be determined by
the board of directors upon grant of the share
option but in any event should not exceed 10
years from the date of offer for grant.

(vii)  Save as determined by the board of directors
provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant
share options, there is no general requirement
that a share option must be held for any

minimum period before it can be exercised.

(viii)  The acceptance of a share option, if accepted,
must be made within 30 days from the date of
grant with a non-refundable payment of HK$1
from the grantee to the Company.

(ix) The exercise price of a share option must be the
highest of:

a. the closing price of a share of the
Company on the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer;

b. the average closing price of a share of
the Company from the 5 business days
(has the meaning stated in the Listing
Rules) immediately preceding the date of
offer; and

C. the nominal value of a share of the
Company on the date of offer.

(x) The New Option Scheme is effective for 10 years
from the date of adoption.

At 31st December 2020 and 2019, there was no
outstanding share options under any share option
scheme. No share option was granted, exercised,
lapsed, expired or cancelled during the years ended
31st December 2020 and 2019.
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A

©
£

39. E j( Egg* + 5‘5% 39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS
FTEVBBRRIBEMBREIN  KEBHEEE Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
I T TIINERRS : financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material transactions with related parties:
Mm%k £ 8B LT AEBEDRSE (a) Mr. Heung and Ms. Chen had provided personal
1,600,000,0007% 7T 2 Al ) AR 1T 15 E 58 guarantee to a bank for the Group to obtain
MIRTEBEAZR RZIE_TFRZ available banking facilities with the amounts of
E-NFTA=1T—H MAELERK HK$1,600,000,000. At 31st December 2020 and
TATREEAERDE RSO RBA - 2019, the provision of personal guarantee by Mr.
Heung and Ms. Chen remains in full force and
effect.
FRAEEHEEREATIIY T TR (b) During the year, the Group entered into the
v following transactions with its related parties:
—E-NF
2019
FET
HK$'000
XEME Nature of transactions
CWERE —HAER%¥2  Income received from a joint
WA venture:
BEBBWA Management fee income - 270

ol EREEETERRR Income received/receivable
BEE2HA from substantial shareholder

and director:

BERF B U A Loan interest income 75,599 67,071
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Ej{ Eﬁ A j: X5 (/“i) 39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

BRGEMBERRDZEMBEREEIN  AEEEHE Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

ATHLT THERRS : (&) financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material transactions with related parties:
(Continued)

(c) RIEEF  HEEA T ZX5EHFE (c) Details of the balances with related parties at
BN A WRERM 17 - 1835 ¢ the end of the reporting period are set out in

notes 17, 18 and 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(d)y IWEREHBREMTI4MEE  TEER (d)  Compensation for key management personnel,
ABZHE(BHEENEARTESERET including amount paid to the directors of the
EaFMES 2FBE) AT Company and certain of the highest paid

employees, as disclosed in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements, is as follow:
—ZE-NF
2019
FHET
HK$'000
& & H th % B Salaries and other remuneration 21,880 23,116
RRAE N E B AR Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 131 115
22,011 23,231

EENIEERABZHEMIBEFEMER
EREBBARBREMSBEMETE -

The remuneration of the directors and key
management personnel is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.
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40.

i 18 2 5 315

AATIMBATIN -_Z-_EF4+_-_A=+—802

ZE-F-TF+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31st

SHESHINOT December 2020 are listed as follows:
N
/AL g8 iR b ity BETRAR
WEAFAR 8%/ 4% LY ERRREELH Ra/ifEs  IEER
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held ~ held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
IBIBF CIE
2020 2019
% %
EERERLA & Lk 100 100 T ENGRAREE
Art Lord Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$!  Art piece investment and rental
Asiatop Data Limited &5 LR 100 100 081 RERBARE
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10  Provision of nominee services
Best Combo Limited EERREE LR 100 100 Er o RERR
BVI Ordinary US$T  Investment holding
Best Mind International Inc. EERREE LR 100 100 100X #3
(#7#h) (Note b) BVI Ordinary US$100  Investment
Big Century Limited £ LER 100 100 1B BANEFLERZ
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Holding of property for rental
purpose
Business First Limited ABRRBE LER 100 100 T HEERERE
BVI Ordinary US$1 Holding of cable right
Gl INS: 2 (30 L3k 100 100 BT EAER
China Star Artist Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Artist management
TE2EFERARRA W) g THAL 100 100 100000%F5%  TBEFRRRE
China Star Creative Macau Quota capital MOP100,000  Immovable property
Development Limited (Note b) development and

investment
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40. B A TEE () 40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
AAH
ELYAAYE 72 it ek BEARAR
WEARAR g5/4% g3l BERRERLH Ra/2REs  IZEE
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation sharesheld  held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
ZECEF ZT)E
2020 2019
% %
China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited EEREE LAk 100 100 WET  RELR
BVI Ordinary US$200  Investment holding
hEERELRERLT B LR/ 100 100 2EThERRR  RAER
China Star Entertainment Holding Limited Hong Kong BRERELR 1,00000087A  Invesiment holding
Ordinary/Non- EREEELR
voting deferred (Hi#a)
HKS2 for ordinary
shares and
HK$1,000,000 for
non-voting deferred
shares (Note d)
TEEERRTARAT B EAR 100 100 10000087  SFRESEBELT
China Star HK Distribution Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000  Distribution of films and

television drama series

TEEFEREERLA B EAR 100 100 1000000B  SEMERTRREEM
China Star HK Entertainment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000  Distribution of video rights and
Company Limited investment holding
TEESERARAT &3 R 100 100 QT REETYREEE ZER
China Star --Content Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2k ARE
Provision of film production
controller, director and
producer services
China Star International Distribution Limited ~ XBRXES Bk 100 100 BO0IET  EYREREEHLT
(f#a) (Note a) BVI Ordinary US$8,001  Distribution of films and

television drama series
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40. B R TS (&) 40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
LN
/R EE frisif fifER BRTRAR
WEAAAR B%/1% E3l BERREELS Ra/3mEs  IZEE
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
CE2RE CENE
2020 2019
% %
China Star International Movie Limited ABRAES LER 100 100 = EREE
(##b) (Note b) B Ordinary US$1 Film production
HEEREARDA W) hE BHER 100 1000000 6%  NEXERRE
China Star Investment Limited (Note d) Taiwan Registered NT$1,000,000  Property development and
capital investment
THERSYRARLT (30 Lk 100 100 15000008 RRUERRBRREZMK
China Star Laser Disc Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,500,000  Provision of management
services and Investment
holding
HEEERARDA (WD) i1y ERAL 100 100 BO000EFH  NREEEAREZERER
China Star Management Company Limited Macau Quota capital MOP250,000  Property project management
(Note b) and construction project
management
HEEERERAT B Lak 100 100 BT REER
China Star Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1  Investment holding
TEEEYARLA B Lak 100 100 2B ERRFREL
China Star Movie Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2  Film production and
distribution
THEEY (2R ARLA WD) 1y ERAL 100 100 BO0ERE  STRERES
China Star Movie (Macau) Limited (Note b))~ Macau Quota capital MOP25,000  Film production and
distribution
HEEYEERAT Bk LR 100 100 2B RAETME
China Star Pictures Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2  Holding of film rights
HEEERLRARAA Bk LR 100 100 8L REREFHHRE
China Star Publishing Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2  Holding and licensing of song
rights
China Star Trademark Limited EERGES LAk 100 100 #n REBERWE
BVI Ordinary US§1 Holding of trademark and

copyrights
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40. B RTINS (&) 40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
L]
ELYE VYA 2 FERS g BRARMARE
WEARDEH 8%/ %% £5 BERRRELA Ra/ifEk  TEER
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation sharesheld  held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
IR2%F CENF
2020 2019
% %
China Star Worldwide Distribution B.V. HR EAR - 100 181518 BTRESEBELS
(Hi#a) (Note a) Netherlands Ordinary EUR18,151  Distribution of films and

television drama series

FRELXERAT 20 EAR 100 100 000037 REZK
Chunjiao Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000  Investment holding
Classic Champion Holdings Limited AERAES Bk 100 100 =T RERR
(f7#b) (Note b) BVI Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
Crown Gem Investments Limited AERAES LR 50 50 B RARR
BVI Ordinary HK$1  Investment holding
Empowered Century Limited AERAES Bk 100 100 =T RERR
BVI Ordinary US§1 Investment holding
First-Up Investments Limited AERAES Bk 100 100 #T EAEERREREARS
BVI Ordinary US§1 Artist management and
provision of agency
services
EREBERAT B R 100 100 B PRk
Gold Choice International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Film production
BRERERAA Hit0) ! TRER 50 50 B0RAE  REELK
Hercules-Holding Company Limited (Note b) ~ Macau Quota capital MOP25,000  Investment holding
AERZARLT B R 100 100 BT SRRERREREM
Hero Star Entertainment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Television drama series

production and distribution
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40. B A TEE (&) 40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
ARH
/R EE frisif fifER BRTRAR
WEAAAR B3/ 1% E3l BERREELS Ra/3mEs  IZEE
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
ZRCBF ZT)E
2020 2019
% %
High Productive Trading Limited ABRAES LRl 100 100 % RERR
BVI Ordinary US§1 Investment holding
Intrinsic Value Limited EERGES LAk 100 100 % RERR
BVI Ordinary US§1 Investment holding
Moder Vision (Asia) Limited ABRRBS LBk 100 100 Fr  RERR
BVI Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
R (B ERAT Bk Lak 100 100 2L RENE
Newrich (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2  Property holding
FINRERAT Bk Lak 100 100 B REEARH
Obba Bar Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1  Provision of catering services
—~REEYARLA B Lak 100 100 300000087 EFRIE
One Hundred Years of Film Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,000,000  Film production
Over Profit International Limited ABRAES LRk 50 50 00xn  REER
BVI Ordinary US§100  Investment holding
ERGFERLR 5 ERR/ 100 100 1,001,000 EFET
Riche Video Limited Hong Kong BRZEELR BL@E%  Film distribution
Ordinary/Non- 12,000,000
voting deferred AERZEEL
&by (rite)
HK$ 1,001,000
for ordinary
shares and
HK$2,000,000 for

non-voting deferred
shares (Note )
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40. B RTINS (&) 40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
L]
ELYE VYA 2 FERS g BRARMARE
WEARDEH 8%/ %% £5 BERRRELA Ra/ifEk  TEER
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation sharesheld  held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
IR2%F CENF
2020 2019
% %
BRREARAT B EAR 100 100 21 BFSYRERERH
S & W Entertainment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2  Production of film and

television drama series

Smart Value Developments Limited AERAES LR 100 100 =T RERR
BVI Ordinary US§1 Investment holding
REREEEREERAA (Witn) ! TRER 50 50 100000£%%  THEXRRRA
Splendid Construction and Investment Macau Quota capital MOP100,000  Immovable property
Company Limited (Note b) development and
investment
AR RERRAT B 2R 100 100 B REER
Star Choice Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Investment holding
RERRARAT B EAR 100 100 BT REER
Star Joy International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Investment holding
EBERERAA Witn) ! TRER 50 50 B00RFE  RELK
Stronghold-Holding Company Limited (Note b) Macau Quota capital MOP25,000  Investment holding
Summer Sound Investments Limited AERAES LR 50 50 005 REERK

BVI Ordinary US$100  Investment holding
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40. B RTINS (&) 40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
A0
/BT g2 FrEkS fiEfaR BRIRYR
WEAREH B3/ 1% 23 BERREELS Ra/3mEs  IZEE
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
CE2RE CENE
2020 2019
% %
Triumph Top Limited EERGES LAk 100 100 % RERR
BVI Ordinary US§1 Investment holding
Turbo International Company Limited EERGES LAk 100 100 5000057 REEREELIRE
BVI Ordinary US$50,000  Holding TV drama series

licensing rights

ERREERAT Bk LER 100 - B REER
Well Charm Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1  Investment holding
EEHXN AL RERAT Gl HhEx 100 00 1000000k ETPERE ERRE
= - REZRENREAR
(Wi ekt (Notes ¢ and f) The PRC Registered HK$10,000,000 :
capl Figlglfe

Distribution of PRC film,
corporate planning, props
and equipment rental and

dramatic creation

Bzt Notes:

(a) EEREEER - (a) Operating internationally.

(b) TR EETE - (b) Operating in Macau.

(c) TER B LTS - (c) Operating in the PRC.

(d) EREKEER - (d) Operating in Taiwan.

(e) EREREERONDER L EREF D ZZR AR (e) The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no
B BURZARKREARGZAES HEZEKX rights to dividends nor receive notice of nor to attend
EREELREZEN EEREBENATEAR or vote at any general meeting of the Company nor to

FEADIK ° participate in any distribution on winding up.

(f) BEINERE - () Wholly foreign owned enterprises.
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

40. B A RS (&) 40.

Best Combo Limited * Best Mind International
Inc. » China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited »
China Star Worldwide Distribution B.V. (B
RZZE_ZFEFRNATABBERBER)
Classic Champion Holdings Limited & Turbo
International Co. Limited¥J ARG EERFH °
FrEEMMEARBARREMERSE -

BRBEEAEN WBLARAZIZEXEMHUARE
o

FAMBARRFEABRFhEMSHTERE
Bz EHESF -

EERR AEBZRERESHAEENE T
EX-E - YERMEFE USG5 MR
RABILZ2Y - o YEZEHF2ENE DA
2B BERBRTNET -

(Continued)

Best Combo Limited, Best Mind International Inc.,
China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited, China Star
Worldwide Distribution B.V. (voluntarily liquidated on
19th June 2020), Classic Champion Holdings Limited
and Turbo International Co. Limited are directly held by
the Company. All other subsidiaries are indirectly held
by the Company.

Except otherwise stated, the principal place of
operation of the subsidiaries is in Hong Kong.

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

The directors consider that the Group’s non-controlling
interests were insignificant to the Group and thus are
not separately presented in these consolidated financial
statements for both years. In addition, no separate
financial information of these non-wholly owned
subsidiaries is required to be presented.
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m.%ﬂﬁ%%%ﬁ%&%ﬁ% a1.

(a)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE

COMPANY
AR TEHBERREK (a) Statement of financial position of the
Company
—E-NEF
2019
FAET
HK$'000
IRBEE Non-current asset
AN NGIE Interests in subsidiaries 81,074 70,499
RBEE Current assets
NG ] Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,027,559 2,104,250
FE—HE&EERIA Amount due from a joint venture 30 -
Be BRRBEREAM Deposits, prepayment and other
JE Wz IE receivables 4,574 14,696
FEUWE X Loan receivable - 99,568
He RIRTTHE & Cash and bank balances 332,411 284,002
2,364,574 2,502,516
mEE Total assets 2,445,648 2,573,015
EXRFHE Capital and reserves
&% 4< Share capital 26,306 27,110
B Reserves 2,356,155 2,505,597
RS Total equity 2,382,461 2,532,707
kRBEE Non-current liability
AR ENGIE ¢ Amounts due to subsidiaries 27,297 27,304
REBAE Current liabilities
B EZS - FEETITEE K& Deposits received, accruals and
E b B 5RIR other payables 11,096 13,004
FEHHI B A R FUA Amount due to subsidiaries 24,794 -
35,890 13,004
EEEE Total liabilities 63,187 40,308
EahaEHEE Total equity and liabilities 2,445,648 2,573,015
RBEEFE Net current assets 2,328,684 2,489,512
BEERREBARG Total assets less current liabilities 2,409,758 2,560,011

HATEERRESFERE

MR
Heung Wah Keung
BE

Director

Signed on behalf of the board of directors by:

BR B 2

Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany

EF

Director
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

N ZRFUBRARRRRERER 4.
8 (Z) AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

AKATRERT (b) Movement of reserves of the Company
IHTER
RHEE EON-E EHRE EAHAGRE REER &t
Bonus
convertible Capital
Share  Contributed bonds reduction Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve earnings Total
T FiEn Tt T ThEr ThERL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(rita) (f#b) (i) (Hizta)
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c) (Note d)
RZE-N5-F-8 At 1st January 2019 1,986,306 563,885 1132 316,008 55,676 2,923,007
FEFERZESELE Loss and total comprehensive loss for
the year - - - - (9.319) (9,319)
BERUZHED Shares repurchased and cancelled (68,787) - - - - (68,787)
BERGERDEEREK Costs attributable to repurchase and
cancellation of shares (296) - - - - (29)
SRR BRE (W) Special interim dividend
(note 12) - (339,008) - - - (339,008)
EEY N Transfer to contributed surplus - 316,008 - (316,008) - -
RZE-NETZAZT-BR At 31st December 2019 and
RIZZEFE-A-H at 1st January 2020 1,917,223 540,885 11382 - 46,357 2,505,597
EEFERZESRLE Loss and total comprehensive loss for
the year - - - - (9,139) (9,139)
BEEUFERD Shares repurchased and cancelled (139,755) - - - - (139,755)
BERFERAEERA Costs atiributable to repurchase and
cancellation of shares (548) - - - - (548)
RZF-BEtZA=1-H At 31st December 2020 1,776,920 540,885 1,182 - 3,218 2,356,155
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41.

it Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T-TE+-A=+—HILEE For the year ended 31st December 2020

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b)

Movement of reserves of the Company
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the share premium of the Company
can be used in paying up unissued shares of
the Company to be issued to shareholders of

the Company as fully paid bonus shares.

The contributed surplus of the Company
brought forward represents the amount
transferred from the capital account due
to the capital reduction effective on 10th
September 2002 and various capital reduction

subsequently.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), the contributed surplus of
the Company is available for distribution or
apply the amount standing to the credit of the
contributed surplus account in such manner as
the board of directors considers appropriate,
including but not limited to setting off against
any accumulated losses of the Company.
However, the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or (ii) the realisable value of its
assets would thereby be less than its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium

accounts.
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41.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Movement of reserves of the Company
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
special general meeting of the Company held
on 25th October 2012 in relation to the bonus
issue of shares (with a right for shareholders
to elect to receive Bonus CBs in lieu of bonus
shares), Bonus CBs can be converted into
ordinary shares at initial conversion price
of HK$0.01 per share were issued by the
Company. The Bonus CBs are recognised as
equity and are presented in “bonus convertible
bonds reserve”. The Bonus CBs are unlisted
and irredeemable but have conversion rights
entitling the bondholders to convert into an
equivalent number of shares as the number of
bonus shares which the Bonus CBs holders
would otherwise be entitled to receive under
the bonus issue had the shareholder not
elected for the Bonus CBs. The Bonus CBs do
not carry voting rights at any general meeting
of shareholders of the Company. Bonus CBs
holders can exercise the conversion rights at
any time after the issue of Bonus CBs, subject
to the terms and conditions of the applicable
deed poll constituting the Bonus CBs.

(d) The capital reduction reserve of the Company
represents the amount arising in relation to the
reduction of the nominal value of 332,640,000
issued shares of the Company from HK$1.00
each to HK$0.05 each in 1998. Pursuant to a
resolution passed by the directors pursuant to
Bye-law 129 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the
capital reduction reserve shall be applicable
for meeting claims on or liabilities of the
Company or contingencies or for paying off
any loan capital or for equalising dividends
or for any other purpose to which the profits
of the Company may be properly applied.
Considering that the capital reduction reserve
has same nature as the contributed surplus
account of the Company which was also
arising from capital reduction, the reserve is
transferred to the contributed surplus account
pursuant to a board resolution approved by the
directors in order to simplify reserves of the
Company.
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42. MEFHMELEE2HE 42

TERFANHBETDMELEZAEEERE (B
NEARFEHEZEAEZRRAR) MEE (B
) BMEERBMELBGEEM
BRASREELXBHURKRRSREFENA
SEZEARERERTHIEARERD RS

RelEReg

=B

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities (including
liabilities associated with assets classified as held for
sale), including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for

ME ° which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

RITEE HEAE ERFE ERRE @it
Bank Lease Interest Dividend
borrowings liabilities payables payables Total
T T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZE-NE—-A-H At 1st January 2019 - 18,341 - 420,326 438,667

BEZRENE Financing cash flows 1,030,150 (5,847) (37,131) (759,334) 227,838

FE2EE Non-cash changes

BRRERE WH12) Special interim dividend

(note 12) - - - 339,008 339,008

BRRNEHR (WiH9) Interest expenses recognised (note 9) - - 408 - 408

EREFBRZ (H##9) Interest expenses capitalised (note 9) - - 36,723 - 36,723

RZZ-NE+-A=1t-HBEK At 31st December 2019 and

AZEZTF-F-H at 1st January 2020 1,030,150 12,494 - - 1,042,644

REZRENE Financing cash flows 263,730 (5,269) (64,146) - 194,315

FH2EG Non-cash changes

ERRNIRAX W29 Interest expenses recognised (note 9) - - 250 . 250

EREFBRZ (H##9) Interest expenses capitalised (note 9) - - 63,896 - 63,896

Ry Reassessment of lease term - (1,540) - - (1,540)

R-E-EF+-A=+-H At 31st December 2020 1,293,880 5,685 - - 1,299,565
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44.

45.

i Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
E-ZT-FTF+-F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2020

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION
During the years ended 31st December 2020 and 2019,
the Group has no major non-cash transactions.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 29th January 2021, the Group completed the
acquisition of a property in Taiwan at the consideration
of approximately HK$161,401,000. The property will be
held as an investment property for long term capital
growth purposes and is expected to generate stable
rental income.

There is no other significant event took place
subsequent to end of the reporting period.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
30th March 2021.

221



222

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED th B2 Bl B BB 2 0] e ANNUAL REPORT 2020 “F#t

T4 B} % B 22 Five Year Financial Summary

AEBEBELEAVRFEZENEXEREERAGER

2(REBACTZEZEERPBRR)HIINTX -

A summary of the published results and the assets and

liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as

extracted from the published audited financial statements, is

set out below.

E4 Results
BE+-A=t-RALEE
For the year ended 31st December
—E-NAE ZE-N\E ZZ—+F ZT—RE
2019 2018 2017 2016
FEL TEL FiEL FEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(&)
(restated)
& Revenue 5,026 7,053 3,493 9,272 266,420
BrEiAT (E18) R (Loss)/profit before tax (110,475)  (335,696) (405,336) 110,036 (291,928)
FEHEe,/ (%) Income tax credit/(expense) 32 (35) - (5) -
KEBERQEER7EE  (Loss)/profit for the year from
(B8B),/&H continuing operations (110,443)  (335,731) (405,336) 110,031 (291,928)
RECRIBEER Profit/(loss) for the year from
FEREF/ (FBR) discontinued operations - - 1,458,855 (36,695) (43,683)
FE (BB &5F (Loss)/profit for the year (110,443)  (335,731) 1,053,519 73,336 (335,611)
UTALTEGEEE (Loss)/profit for the year
(B18) /5H attributable to:
VN/NSIEZEIN Owners of the Company (110,430) (335,226) 1,053,530 73,312 (335,609)
EFel e $ Non-controlling interests (13) (505) (11) 24 (2)
(110,443)  (335,731) 1,053,519 73,336 (335,611)
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EEREE Assets and liabilities
R+=B=+-H
At 31st December
—T-NFE ZE-)N\F ZZ—+tF ZIE—RF
2019 2018 2017 2016
TET FHT FHT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%)
(restated)
EEBE Total assets 5,343,571 5398206 5483222 5099803 4,277,204
BfEMEE Total liabilities (1,908,300) (1,711,297) (1,051,385) (1,818,343)  (1,069,277)
EEFE Net assets 3,435,271 3,686,909 4,431,837 3,281,460 3,207,927
AARHEAELER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 3,435,914 3,687,539 4,431,962 3281574 3,208,362
FEE it Non-controlling interests (643) (630) (125) (114) (435)
BER Total equity 3,435,271 3,686,909 4,431,837 3,281,460 3,207,927
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AEER-B-RFE+-A=+—BZERPMEFE

Particulars of the Group’s properties under development at

IR T X : 31st December 2020 are set out below:
BahE fhat
st HE HBEEE REE
1% BRHE TIRR RIFH  (FFK) (E5K) R# BEERE%
Estimated
Approx. gross
Estimated sitearea  floor area Effective %
Stage of completion (square (square held by
Location Lot number completion year meter) meter)  Usage the Group
RFYNEEEE 6£7EC - DREME BIRER i S 3,900 46,157 - HEREES 100%
BERZZ-NE
+ZARI  E#T
REIR
Zona de Aterros do Porto Lot C,Dand E in Construction stage 2021 Residential, commercial
Exterior, Macau (ZAPE) Quarteirdo 6 completed in and carparking
December 2019,
renovation in
progress
RFMBLBLAEH BERHACET R REER = 1152 4,700 30000 EEREES 50%
HERNE
Nam Van Lakes Zone, Lot 7, da Zone C do Development stage 2024 Residential and

Avenida Doutor
Stanley Ho, Macau

Plano de Urbanizagéo
da Zone da Baia da
Praia Grande

carparking
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